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GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance with
the Companies Act 2014 and the applicable regulations.

Irish company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under the law,
the Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (“Relevant Financial Reporting Framework™). Under company law,
the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities and financial position of GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc (the “Company”) as at
the financial year end date and of the profit or loss of the Company for the financial year and otherwise comply
with the Companies Act 2014.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies for the Company financial statements and then apply them consistently;
° make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
° state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting

standards, identify those standards, and note the effect and the reasons for any material departure from
those standards; and

° prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps or causes to be kept adequate accounting
records which correctly explain and record the transactions of the Company, enable at any time the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company to be determined with reasonable accuracy, enable
them to ensure that the financial statements and Directors’ report comply with the Companies Act 2014 and with
the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2011
and Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2019 (as amended) and the Listing Rules of Euronext Dublin
and enable the financial statements to be audited. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

On behalf of the Directors:

. DocuSigned by:
\/\ 05DC1823CECBA463...

OF94C579AE8A4FS..
Director: Siobhan Moloney Director: Conor Hoey

Date: 25" April 2024
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GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Report of the Directors
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 3 1% December 2023.

Principal Activity

The Company is an umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital incorporated on 1% June
2010 with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 485081 and segregated liability
between sub-funds. The Company is authorised in Ireland by the Central Bank of Ireland pursuant to the UCITS
Regulations. Accordingly, the Company is supervised by the Central Bank of Ireland.

The Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment of each sub-fund of the Company (each a "Sub-
Fund", together the "Sub-Funds") and the supervision of the investment objective and policy of each Sub-Fund.

Results for the financial year and state of affairs at 31° December 2023
The Combined Statement of Financial Position as at 31% December 2023 and the Combined Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the financial year ended 31% December 2023 are set out on pages 367 to 368.

Review of the Development of the Business
Please see the Investment Managers’ Reports for further details.

Significant Events During the Financial Year

In October 2022, Crédit Agricole - Caisse d'Epargne Investor Services (CACEIS) and Royal Bank of Canada
(RBC) announced they had signed a memorandum of understanding for the intended acquisition by CACEIS of
the European asset servicing business of RBC. As part of this acquisition, CACEIS would acquire the entire issued
share capital of RBC Investor Services Bank S.A. (IS Bank). Completion of the sale of IS Bank occurred 3™ July
2023, following regulatory approval. As a result, RBC Investor Services Ireland Limited has become CACEIS
Investor Services Ireland Limited and RBC Investor Services Bank S.A., Dublin Branch has become CACEIS
Investor Services Bank S.A., Dublin Branch.

On 1* January 2023, Grant Thornton Ireland were appointed as auditor of the Company.

On 24" January 2023, revised supplements for London & Capital Global Balanced Fixed Income Fund & London
and Capital Global Growth Fixed Income Fund were noted by the Central Bank of Ireland, with the material
update being name changes to London & Capital Global Bond Fund and London & Capital Global Credit
Opportunities Fund respectively.

On 13™ April 2023, a revised supplement for each of the following sub-funds was noted by the Central Bank of
Ireland, with the update being a change in the name of the benchmark for the sub-funds: Atlantic House Defined
Returns Fund, Causeway Defined Growth Fund and Principal Asset Allocation Fund.

On 14" April 2023, a revised supplement was noted by the Central Bank of Ireland for each of the following sub-
funds: 1) Semper Total Return Fund, with the material update being a change to the distribution dates of the Fund
to the last day of each quarter; and 2) Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund, with the material update being
a change to the performance fee index of the sub-fund.

On 6th June 2023, a revised supplement was noted by the Central Bank of Ireland for each of the following sub-
funds with the change being an update to the SFDR Annex of each supplement: 1) GSI Global Sustainable Focused
Value; 2) Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund, with the additional update being the correction of the name of the
“distributing” share class; and 3) Calamos Global Convertible Fund, with the additional update being the change
of (i) name of the benchmark and (ii) the 144A securities exposure range.

On 21st June 2023, a revised supplement was noted by the Central Bank of Ireland for the GSI Global Sustainable
Value Fund, with the change being an update to the SFDR Annex of the supplement.

On 6th July 2023, the Second Addendum to the Prospectus was noted by the Central Bank of Ireland, to reflect
the change to the i) registered address of the Company, as well as the Manager and Global Distributor; and ii)
Company Secretary.
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GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Report of the Directors
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023
(Continued)

Significant Events During the Financial Year (Continued)

On 6™ July 2023, a revised supplement for the Third Avenue Real Estate Value Fund was noted by the Central
Bank of Ireland, with the update being the removal of Share Class AS, reflecting the closure of the share class as
of 30" June 2023.

On 14" July 2023, a revised supplement was noted by the Central Bank of Ireland for each of the following sub-
funds: 1) GSI Global Sustainable Value Fund, with the update being the change of Investment Adviser, and
relaunch of Class C Accumulation shares; and 2) GSI Global Sustainable Focused Value Fund, with the update
being the change of Investment Adviser, and update to the Listing section of the supplement.

On 4™ August 2023, a revised supplement was noted by the Central Bank of Ireland for the Atlantic House US
Enhanced Equity Fund, with the material update being a change in (i) the functional currency of the sub-fund,
changed from USD to GBP, (ii) investment policy and objectives, and (iii) name of the sub-fund to Atlantic House
Dynamic Duration Fund.

On 21 September 2023, a revised supplement was noted by the Central Bank of Ireland for each of the following
sub-funds: 1) Atlantic House Global Defined Returns Fund, with the update being the a) introduction of 2 new
share classes (Class I Distribution 5% Shares and Class I (Hedged) Distribution 5% Shares); and b) update to the
name of 2 existing share classes as follows: Class I Distribution 4% Shares and Class I (Hedged) Distribution
4% Shares; and 2) Third Avenue Real Estate Value Fund, with the update being the change of benchmark to:
Solactive GBS Developed Markets Investable Universe Property USD Index TR.

On 6™ October 2023, a revised supplement was noted by the Central Bank of Ireland for the Atlantic House Total
Return Fund, with the material update being a change in (i) anticipated range of leverage, and (ii) name of the
sub-fund to Atlantic House Balanced Return Fund.

On 13™ October 2023, a revised supplement for the Semper Total Return Fund was noted by the Central Bank of
Ireland, with the update being a change of 1) investment manager to Medalist Partners, LLP; and ii) name of the

sub-fund to Medalist Partners Total Return Fund.

On 24" November 2023, a revised supplement for the Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund was noted by the
Central Bank of Ireland, with the update being a change to the cash limit disclosure.

On 29" November 2023, a revised supplement for the Principal Asset Allocation Fund was noted by the Central
Bank of Ireland, with update being 1) a change of investment manager to Coleman Capital LLP; and ii) the removal

of Share Class C, reflecting the previous closure of the share class.

On 29™ November 2023, a new supplement was noted by the Central Bank of Ireland which incorporated the
Atlantic House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund.

During the year Medalist Partners Total Return Fund had redemptions of approximately $64m largely related to
the IGH share class. This equates to around 70% of the NAV as per 31 December 2022.

New Fund Launches
On 9™ January 2023, the Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund was launched and produced its first NAV.
On 26™ June 2023, the Atlantic House Global Defined Return Fund was launched and produced its first NAV.

On 30" June 2023, the Innovative Portfolios Preferred Income Fund was launched but it is unfunded as at year
end.
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GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Report of the Directors
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023
(Continued)

Significant Events During the Financial Year (Continued)
On 29" November 2023, the Atlantic House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund was launched and
subsequently produced its first NAV on 4" December 2023.

Adherence to sanctions

With the assistance of the Company's third party reporting provider “RiskSystem” the Company was able to
identify if any of the Sub-Funds have business exposure to ongoing conflicts across the global through the
investment funds. RiskSystem have also been compiling and integrating on a daily basis the updated lists of
sanctions applied by the global regulatory authorities and running them against the Company's portfolios to
ascertain if any of the Sub-Funds are in scope. In conjunction to the work with RiskSystem, we have additional
controls in place with our Administrator, CACEIS, to ensure the sanctions in place are adhered to across the
breadth of our Sub-Funds. At the date of the approval of the financial statements, the Company has no exposure
with regards to sanctions relating to Russia/Ukraine, Belarus or Gaza/lsrael.

There are no other significant events during the financial year to be disclosed.

Subsequent Events

On 22" February 2024, a revised supplement for the Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund was noted by the
Central Bank of Ireland, with the update being the i) introduction of 2 new share classes (Share Class A
Accumulation (EUR) and Share Class D Distribution (EUR)); and ii) insertion of the word “hedged” to the name
of the Euro and US Dollar share classes. These share classes were also listed on Euronext

On 1% March 2024, the Third Avenue Global Value Fund was launched.

It has been resolved that during Q2 2024 the TEAM International Equity Fund will be closed.

There are no other subsequent events to be disclosed since the financial year end.

Dividends

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 8" February 2023 and paid on 17" February 2023:

Class I - Class I -
Sub-Fund Name GBP Class GBP Dist Class
Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund £0.011337 £0.013845

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 5" May 2023 and paid on 16" May 2023:

Class I — Class I -
Sub-Fund Name GBP Class GBP Dist Class
Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund £0.011360 £0.013838

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 8" August 2023 and paid on 15" August 2023:

Class I — Class I —
Sub-Fund Name GBP Class GBP Dist Class
Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund £0.011601 £0.014096
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Dividends (Continued)

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 7" November 2023 and paid on 14" November
2023:

Class I - Class I -
Sub-Fund Name GBP Class GBP Dist Class
Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund £0.011555 £0.014005

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 8" February 2023 and paid on date 17 February
2023:

Class I (Hedged) — Class Z (Hedged) — Class Z (Hedged) —

Sub-Fund Name GBP Class EUR Class GBP Class
Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund £0.010440 €0.010109 £0.010272
Class Z —
USD Class
$0.010073

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 5™ May 2023 and paid on date 16™ May 2023

Class I (Hedged) — Class Z (Hedged) — Class Z (Hedged) —

Sub-Fund Name GBP Class EUR Class GBP Class
Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund £0.009878 €0.009645 £0.009725
Class Z —
USD Class
$0.009889

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 8" August 2023 and paid on 15" August 2023:

Class I (Hedged) — Class Z (Hedged) — Class Z (Hedged) —

Sub-Fund Name GBP Class EUR Class GBP Class
Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund £0.010384 €0.010012 £0.010233
Class Z —
USD Class
$0.010249

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 7" November 2023 and paid on 14™ November
2023:

Class I (Hedged) — Class Z (Hedged) — Class Z (Hedged) —

Sub-Fund Name GBP Class EUR Class GBP Class
Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund £0.010521 €0.010179 £0.010394
Class Z —
USD Class
$0.010540
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Dividends (Continued)

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 8" February 2023 and paid on date 17" February

2023:
Class C —
Sub-Fund Name USD Class
Causeway Defined Growth Fund $0.011419
Class D —
USD Class
$0.011356

Class C (Hedged) — Class C (Hedged) —
GBP Class EUR Class
£0.011699 €0.008949
Class D (Hedged) —
GBP Class
£0.011575

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 5™ May 2023 and paid on 16™ May 2023:

Class C —
USD Class

$0.010984

Sub-Fund Name
Causeway Defined Growth Fund

Class D —
USD Class

$0.010911

Class C (Hedged) — Class C (Hedged) —
GBP Class EUR Class
£0.010872 €0.008397
Class D (Hedged) —
GBP Class
£0.010742

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 8" August 2023 and paid on 15" August 2023:

Class C —
USD Class

$0.011696

Sub-Fund Name
Causeway Defined Growth Fund

Class D —
USD Class

$0.011605

Class C (Hedged) — Class C (Hedged) —
GBP Class EUR Class
£0.011725 €0.008958

Class D (Hedged) —
GBP Class

£0.011571

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 7" November 2023 and paid on 14™ November

2023:
Class C —
Sub-Fund Name USD Class
Causeway Defined Growth Fund $0.010810
Class D —
USD Class
$0.010711

Class C (Hedged) — Class C (Hedged) —
GBP Class EUR Class
£0.010675 €0.008179
Class D (Hedged) —
GBP Class
£0.010521

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 1°' June 2023 and paid on 13 June 2023:

Class A —
Sub-Fund Name GBP Dist Class
GSI Global Sustainable Focused Value Fund £1.262331
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Dividends (Continued)

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 1% December 2023 and paid on 13" December
2023:

Class A — GBP Class J — GBP
Sub-Fund Name Dist Class Dist Class
GSI Global Sustainable Focused Value Fund £0.941800 £0.993000

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 1°' June 2023 and paid on 13 June 2023:

Class A —
Sub-Fund Name GBP Class
GSI Global Sustainable Value Fund £1.832300

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 1% December 2023 and paid on 13™ December
2023:

Class A —
Sub-Fund Name GBP Class
GSI Global Sustainable Value Fund £1.377000

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 11™ April 2023 and paid on 14" April 2023:

Class X — Class X — Class X —

Sub-Fund Name GBP Class USD Class EUR Class
London & Capital Global Bond Fund £1.309679 $1.445561 €1.338367
London & Capital Global Credit Opportunities Fund £1.822632 $2.162706 €1.302035
London & Capital Global Star Equity Fund £1.328509 $1.568389 €0.998993
Class A — Class A — Class A —

GBP Class USD Class EUR Class

London & Capital Global Balanced Fund £0.952707 $1.014177 €1.168148
London & Capital Global Growth Fund £0.810761 $0.849984 €1.479323

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 2™ October 2023 and paid on 10™ October 2023:

Class X — Class X — Class X —

Sub-Fund Name GBP Class USD Class EUR Class
London & Capital Global Bond Fund £1.567545 $1.647396 €1.250891
London & Capital Global Credit Opportunities Fund £1.943506 $2.117552 €2.019022
London & Capital Global Star Equity Fund £2.155177 $2.440170 €1.952893
Class A - Class A - Class A —

GBP Class USD Class EUR Class

London & Capital Global Balanced Fund £1.422399 $1.310697 €1.240929
London & Capital Global Growth Fund £1.553196 $1.323543 €1.043786
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Dividends (Continued)

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 1%t March 2023 and paid on 8" March 2023:

Class I (Inc) —
GBP Hedged Class

£1.447397

Sub-Fund Name
Medalist Partners Total Return Fund

Class C -
GBP Hedged Class

£0.403933

Class I (Inc) — Class I (Inc) —
USD Class GBP Class
$1.315885 £1.551227

Class I (Inc) —
EUR Hedged Class

€1.312979

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 30" June 2023 and paid on 12 July 2023:

Class I (Inc) —
GBP Hedged Class

£1.913902

Sub-Fund Name
Medalist Partners Total Return Fund

Class C —
GBP Hedged Class

£1.887655

Class I (Inc) — Class I (Inc) —
USD Class GBP Class
$2.036815 £2.010144

Class I (Inc) —
EUR Hedged Class

€1.968586

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 29" September 2023 and paid on 10" October 2023:

Class I (Inc) - GBP
Hedged Class

£1.452356

Sub-Fund Name
Medalist Partners Total Return Fund

Class C — GBP
Hedged Class

£1.223219

Class I (Inc) - USD
Class

$1.402648

Class I (Inc) — GBP
Class

£1.440064

Class I (Inc) - EUR
Hedged

€1.400884

The following dividends per share were declared with ex-date 29" December 2023 and paid on 10" January 2024:

Class I (Inc) - GBP

Sub-Fund Name Hedged Class
Medalist Partners Total Return Fund £0.983928
Class C — GBP

Hedged Class

£0.962852

Risk Management objectives and policies

Class I (Inc) - USD
Class

$1.139947

Class I (Inc) - GBP
Class

£1.120551

Class I (Inc) - EUR
Hedged

€0.991333

Descriptions of the risks associated with the Company and the policies employed for managing these risks are

contained in Note 4 of these financial statements.

Directors
The Directors at the date of this report are listed on page 9.

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31% December 2023 and 31% December 2022, there were no Directors’ interests in shares.
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Accounting Records

The measures taken by the Directors to secure compliance with the requirements of Section 281 to 285 of the
Companies Act 2014 with regard to the keeping of accounting records are the use of appropriate accounting
systems and procedures and employment of competent persons. The accounting records are maintained at
CACEIS Investor Services Ireland Limited, 4™ Floor, One George’s Quay Plaza, George’s Quay, Dublin 2,
Ireland.

Corporate Governance Code

General Principles
The European Communities (Directive 2006/46/EC) Regulations (S.I. 450 of 2009 and S.I. 83 of 2010) (the
“Regulations”) requires the inclusion of a corporate governance statement in the Report of the Directors.

Although there is no specific statutory corporate governance code applicable to Irish collective investment
schemes whose shares are admitted to trading on Euronext Dublin, the Company is subject to corporate
governance practices imposed by:

(1) The Irish Companies Act 2014 which is available for inspection at the registered office of the Company; and
may also be obtained at www.irishstatutebook.ie/home.html.

(i1) The Articles of Association of the Company which are available for inspection at the registered office of the
Company and at the Companies Registration Office in Ireland;

(ii1) The Central Bank in their UCITS Regulations which can be obtained from the Central Bank’s website at:
www.centralbank.ie; and

(iv) Euronext Dublin through the Code of Listing Requirements and Procedures which can be obtained from their
website at: https://www.euronext.com/sites/default/files/2019-06/Open-Ended-Fund-Rules.pdf.

Irish Funds has published a corporate governance code, the Corporate Governance Code for Collective Investment
Schemes and Management Companies (the “Code”) that may be adopted on a voluntary basis by Irish authorised
collective investment schemes. It should be noted that the Code reflects existing corporate governance practices
imposed on Irish authorised collective investment schemes, as noted above. If the Code is adopted on a voluntary
basis, it can be referred to in the disclosures made in the Report of the Directors in compliance with the provisions
of the European Communities (Directive 2006/46/EC) Regulations (i.e. S.I. 450 of 2009 and S.1. 83 of 2010).

The Board of Directors voluntarily complies with the Code which was adopted with effect on 31% December 2012.
The Board of Directors have assessed the measures included in the Code as being consistent with its corporate
governance practices and procedures for the financial year.

Internal Control and Risk Management Systems in Relation to Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control and risk
management systems of the Company in relation to the financial reporting process. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of error or fraud in achieving the Company’s financial reporting objectives
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Directors have procedures in place to ensure all relevant books of account are properly maintained
and are readily available, including production of annual and half-yearly financial statements. The annual financial
statements of the Company are required to be approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and the annual
and half-yearly financial statements of the Company are required to be filed with the Central Bank of Ireland. The
annual financial statements of the Company are also required to be filed with Euronext Dublin. The statutory
financial statements are required to be audited by independent auditors who report annually to the Board on their
findings.

22



GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Report of the Directors
For the financial year ended 31 December 2023
(Continued)

Corporate Governance Code (Continued)

Internal Control and Risk Management Systems in Relation to Financial Reporting (Continued)

The Board of Directors have appointed Gemini Capital Management (Ireland) Limited to act as manager of the
Company, who have in turn appointed the Administrator to maintain the books and records of the Company. The
Administrator is authorised and regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland and must comply with the rules imposed
by the Central Bank of Ireland. The financial statements are prepared by the Administrator in compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). The Administrator uses various internal controls and
checklists to ensure that the financial statements include complete and appropriate disclosures required under
IFRS and relevant legislation.

From time to time the Manager also examines and evaluates the Administrator’s financial accounting and
reporting routines. The Board of Directors monitors and evaluates the independent auditor’s performance,
qualifications and independence. As part of the review procedures the Board of Directors receives reports on the
audit process.

The Board evaluates and discusses significant accounting and reporting issues as the need arises.

Dealings with Shareholders

The convening and conduct of Shareholders’ meetings are governed by the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Companies Acts. Although the Directors may convene an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company at any time, the Directors are required to convene an annual general meeting of the Company within
fifteen months of the date of the previous annual general meeting thereafter. Shareholders representing not less
than one-tenth of the paid up share capital of the Company may also request the Directors to convene a
Shareholders’ meeting. Not less than twenty one days notice of every annual general meeting and any meeting
convened for the passing of a special resolution must be given to Shareholders and fourteen days’ notice must be
given in the case of any other general meeting unless the auditors of the Company and all the Shareholders of the
Company entitled to attend and vote agree to shorter notice.

Two members present either in person or by proxy constitutes a quorum at a general meeting provided that the
quorum for a general meeting convened to consider any alteration to the class rights of shares is two Shareholders
holding or representing by proxy at least one third of the issued shares of the relevant Sub-Fund or class.

Every holder of participating shares or non-participating shares present in person or by proxy who votes on a show
of hands is entitled to one vote. A poll may be demanded by the chairman of a general meeting of the Company
or at least two holders of participating or non-participating shares present in person or by proxy, or any holder or
holders of participating or non-participating shares present in person or by proxy representing at least one tenth
of the shares in issue having the right to vote at such meetings.

Shareholders may resolve to sanction an ordinary resolution or special resolution at a Shareholders’ meeting. An
ordinary resolution of the Company or of the Shareholders of a particular Sub-Fund or class requires a simple
majority of the votes cast by the Shareholders voting in person or by proxy at the meeting at which the resolution
is proposed. A special resolution of the Company or of the Sharcholders of a particular Sub-Fund or class requires
a majority of not less than 75% of the Shareholders present in person or by proxy and voting in general meeting
in order to pass a special resolution including a resolution to amend the Articles of Association.

Board composition and activities

Unless otherwise determined by the Company in a general meeting, the number of Directors may not be less than
two. Currently the Board of Directors of the Company is composed of six Directors being as follows: Conor Hoey,
Kevin O’Neill, Orla Quigley, Stuart Alexander, Sinead Sheehan, Siobhan Moloney all of which have details listed
in the Directory on page 9 of this report.
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Board composition and activities (Continued)

The business of the Company is managed by the Directors, who exercise all such powers of the Company unless
required by the Companies Acts or by the Articles of Association of the Company to be exercised by the Company
in a general meeting.

A Director may, and the Company Secretary of the Company on the requisition of a Director will, at any time
summon a meeting of the Directors. Questions arising at any meeting of the Directors are determined by a majority
of votes. In the case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson has the casting vote. The quorum necessary for the
transaction of business at a meeting of the Directors is two.

Diversity

Owing to the organisational structure and operating model of the Company, whereby most activities/operational
tasks have been delegated by the Company to its various service providers, the Company does not have any
employees and therefore it has not been deemed necessary to put a documented diversity policy in place.

The Board acknowledges the importance of diversity to enhance its operation. During the selection process, the
Board is committed to selecting those with diversity of business skills, experience and gender and candidates for
appointment are considered based on these attributes.

The Board’s principle is that each member of the Board must have the skills, experience, knowledge and overall
suitability that will enable each director to contribute individually, and as part of the board team, to the
effectiveness of the Board.

Subject to that overriding principle, the Board believe that diversity of experience and approach, including
educational and professional background, gender, age and geographical provenance, amongst board members is
of great value when considering overall board balance in making new appointments to the Board.

The Board’s priority is to ensure that it continues to have strong leadership and the relevant skills to deliver the
business strategy.

The Board will ensure that all selection decisions are based on merit and that recruitment is fair and non-
discriminatory.

Independent Auditor

Grant Thornton Ireland were appointed during the year and expressed their willingness to be appointed as auditor
of the Company in accordance with Section 383 (2) of the Companies Act 2014, without need for a resolution at
the AGM.

Directors Compliance Statement

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for securing the Company’s compliance with the relevant
obligations as defined in section 225 of the Companies Act 2014 which includes drawing up and adopting a
compliance policy statement. This sets out the Company’s policies that, in the Directors’ opinion, are appropriate
to the Company respecting compliance by the Company with its relevant obligations, putting in place appropriate
arrangements or structures, that are in the Directors’ opinion designed to secure material compliance with the
Company’s relevant obligations including reliance on the advice of persons employed by the Company and
external legal and tax advisers as considered appropriate from time to time and that they have reviewed the
effectiveness of these arrangements or structures during the financial year.
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Statement of Relevant Audit Information

In accordance with section 330 of the Companies Act 2014, the Directors confirm that during the financial year
ended 31% December 2023:

a) So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s statutory
auditors are unaware; and

b) The Directors have taken all steps that ought to have been taken by the Directors in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Audit Committee

The Directors acknowledge that they are required, under Section 167 of the Companies Act 2014, as amended, to
consider the establishment of an audit committee. An audit committee's responsibilities under Section 167 must
comprise at least the following:

a) monitoring the financial reporting process;

b) monitoring the effectiveness of the systems of internal control, internal audit and risk management;

¢) monitoring the statutory audits of the statutory financial statements; and

d) monitoring and reviewing the independence of the statutory auditors, in particular the provision of additional
services to the Company.

The Directors have decided not to establish an audit committee at this time. In the Directors' opinion, the
responsibilities of an audit committee under Section 167 are already being fulfilled by virtue of the Board’s
corporate governance regime and the existing arrangements and structures in place designed to monitor
compliance with the extensive legal and regulatory obligations of the Company including the Company’s financial
reporting process. In arriving at their decision, the Board have considered the nature, scale and complexity of the
Company's business activities in conjunction with the legal and regulatory obligations.

The Board is formed of six non-executive Directors. All Directors are fully independent of the financial statement
preparation and production process. The Company complies with the provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code. Whilst continuing to retain the overall responsibilities as required by Section 167, the Directors have
appointed Gemini Capital Management (Ireland) Limited to act as manager of the Company and to provide or
procure the services of investment manager, administrator, registrar, transfer agent and distributor to the
Company. Gemini Capital Management (Ireland) Limited has appointed CACEIS Investor Services Ireland
Limited to act as administrator, registrar and transfer agent. The Company has appointed CACEIS Investor
Services Bank S.A., Dublin Branch as depositary of the assets of the Company. The Board regularly receives
reporting from these delegates and auditors detailing reviews performed during the year. The Board continues to
monitor the relationship with the Company’s statutory auditors with regard to independence and objectivity and
to make appropriate decisions with regard to performance, remuneration, selection and retention of statutory
auditors.

Connected Persons

Regulation 43 of the Central Bank UCITS Regulations “Restrictions of transactions with connected persons”
states that “A responsible person shall ensure that any transaction between a UCITS and a connected person is
conducted a) at arm’s length; and b) in the best interest of the shareholders of the UCITS”.
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Connected Persons (Continued)

As required under Central Bank UCITS Regulation 78.4, the Directors, as responsible persons are satisfied that
there are arrangements in place, evidenced by written procedures, to ensure that the obligations that are prescribed
by Regulation 43(1) are applied to all transactions with a connected party and all transactions with connected
parties that were entered into during the year to which the report relates complied with the obligations that are
prescribed by Regulation 43(1). The Directors are satisfied that the transactions with connected parties during the
financial year were carried out as if negotiated at arm's length and in the best interests of the Shareholders.

On behalf of the Directors:

%Signed by: @M@_\/
[OFQAC\S{QEBA4F8... 05DC1823CECB463...
Director: Siobhan Moloney Director: Conor Hoey

Date: 25" April 2024
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As required by the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investmentin Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2011 (as amended) (“the Regulations”) and solelywithin the context of our oversight duties as
depositary,we are pleased to presentour report as follows.

In our opinion, GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) plc (the “Company’) has been managed for the year ended
31 December2023:

(i) In accordance with the limitations imposed on the investmentand borrowing powers ofthe
Companyby the Memorandum & Articles of Association and the Regulations; and

(i) Otherwise in accordance with the provisions ofthe Memorandum & Articles of Association and the
Regulations.
dbyRob Lucas e- y Eoghan Cassidy
on -0211:12:57GMT  on -02 10:24:08 GMT
CACEIS INVESTOR SERVICES BANK S.A. Date: 2 April 2024

DUBLIN BRANCH
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S.A. acompany

incorporated under the laws of Luxembourg, registered office: 14, Porte de France, L-
4360, Esch-sur-Alzette, Luxembourg

Registered in Ireland under number 905449

Tel. +353 1 6130400

www.caceis.com
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of GemCap Investment Funds
(Ireland) Plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc (the “Company”),
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position and Schedule of Investments as at 31 December
2023 and the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares and the Statement of Cash Flows for the financial year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, including the summary of significant
accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements
is Irish law and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European
Union.

In our opinion, the Company’s financial statements:

e (give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union of the
assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023 and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended; and

o have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014,
the European Communities (Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2011 and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section
48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) (Amendment)
Regulations 2019.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (‘ISAs
(Ireland)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
‘Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard for Auditors (Ireland) issued by
the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and the ethical pronouncements
established by Chartered Accountants Ireland, applied as determined to be appropriate in the
circumstances for the Company. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the director’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the
directors’ assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern basis of accounting
included:

e Obtaining an understanding of the process and relevant controls over the Company’s going
concern assessment;

e Obtaining the directors’ formal assessment of going concern and challenge of key assumptions
within the assessment. This included reviewing each of the sub-funds’ post year end
performance and business activities including post year end subscriptions and redemptions,
post year distributions, and NAV movements in order to support the appropriateness of the
Company’s going concern assessment
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Conclusions relating to going concern (continued)

e Making enquiries and discussions with management, and reviewing the board minutes during the
financial year up to date of approval of the financial statements, in order to understand the future
plans for the company and to identify potential contradictory information; and

e Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures made in the financial statements with respect to the going
concern assumption.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue. Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect
to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other matter

The financial statements of GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc for the financial year ended 31
December 2022, were audited by Deloitte Ireland LLP who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 26 April 2023.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current financial year and include the most significant assessed risks
of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest
effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit, and the directing of efforts of
the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and therefore we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Overall audit strategy

We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for
example, the selection of pricing sources to value the investment portfolio. We also addressed the risk of
management override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was any evidence of potential
bias by the directors that could result in a risk of material misstatement due to fraud. Based on our
considerations as set out below, our areas of focus included existence and valuation of financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss.

How we tailored the audit scope

The Company is an umbrella type open ended investment company with variable capital and segregated
liability between sub-funds. As at 31 December 2023, there were twenty two (22) active sub-funds namely,
Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund, Atlantic House Balanced Return Fund, Atlantic House Defined Returns
Fund, Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund, Atlantic House Global Defined Returns Fund, Atlantic
House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund, Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund, Calamos
Global Convertible Fund, Calamos Growth And Income Fund, Causeway Defined Growth Fund, GSI
Global Sustainable Focused Value Fund, GSI Global Sustainable Value Fund, London & Capital Global
Balanced Fund, London & Capital Global Bond Fund, London & Capital Global Credit Opportunities Fund,
London & Capital Global Equity Opportunities Fund, London & Capital Global Growth Fund, London &
Capital Global Star Equity Fund, Medalist Partners Total Return Fund, Principal Asset Allocation Fund,
TEAM International Equity Fund, Third Avenue Real Estate Value Fund, and are listed on the Euronext
Dublin.

The directors control the affairs of the Company and they are responsible for the overall investment policy,
which is determined by them. The Company engages Gemini Capital Management (Ireland) Limited (or
the “Manager”) to manage certain duties and responsibilities with regards to the day-to-day management
of the Company.
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Key audit matters (continued)

How we tailored the audit scope (continued)

The directors have delegated certain responsibilities to CACEIS Investor Services Ireland Limited (the
"Administrator"). The financial statements, which remain the responsibility of the directors, are prepared
on their behalf by the Administrator. The Company has appointed CACEIS Investor Services Bank S.A.,
Dublin Branch (the "Depositary™) to act as depositary of the Company's assets.

We tailored the scope of our audit taking into account the types of investments held by the Company, the
involvement of third party service providers, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in
which the Company operates. We look at each sub-fund at an individual level.

In establishing the overall approach to our audit we assessed the risk of material misstatement at a sub-fund
level, taking into account the nature, likelihood and potential magnitude of any misstatement. As part of
our risk assessment, we considered the Company’s interaction with the Administrator, and we assessed the
control environment in place at the Administrator.

Materiality and audit approach

The scope of our audit is influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds
for materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, such as our understanding of the Company
and its environment, the history of misstatements, the complexity of the Company and the reliability of the
control environment, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually and on the financial
statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for each of the Company’s sub-funds as
follows: 1% of the NAV at 31 December 2023. We have applied this benchmark because the main
objective of the Company is to provide investors with a total return at a sub-fund level.

We have set performance materiality for the Company at 60% of materiality, having considered business
risks and fraud risks associated with the Company and its control environment. This is to reduce to an
appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements in
the financial statements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

We agreed with the directors that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above
5% of each sub-fund’s materiality, as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.

Significant matters identified

The risks of material misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit, including the allocation of our
resources and effort, are set out below as significant matters together with an explanation of how we tailored
our audit to address these specific areas in order to provide an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Significant matter Description of significant matter and audit response
Existence and valuation of There is arisk that the financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL
financial assets and liabilities at | held by the Company do not exist or that the balance included
fair value through profit or loss | in the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023
(“FVTPL”) is not valued in line with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”), as adopted by the European Union.

The Company has an investment

portfolio consisting of equities, Significant auditor’s attention was deemed appropriate
bonds, investment funds, because of the materiality of these investments and the level
exchange traded funds, asset- of subjectivity in estimating the fair value of investments at

backed securities, mortgage Level 3 (i.e., autocallable swaps held by Atlantic House and
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Significant matter

Description of significant matter and audit response

backed securities, treasury bills,
real estate investment trusts, and
derivatives (swaps, options,
forward currency contracts)
carried at fair value through profit
or loss.

As at 31 December 2023, carrying
values of these financial assets
and liabilities at FVTPL were
$4,806,965,420 (Investments in
transferrable securities of
$4,573,801,858 (2022:
$3,653,682,441) and Investments
in financial derivative instruments
$233,163,562 (2022:
$116,473,102)) and $140,284,695
(2022: $97,497,002) which
represented 94% and 63% (2022:
94% and 60%) of the Company’s
total assets and total liabilities,
respectively.

Further details to these financial
assets and financial liabilities is
included found in Note 2 and
Note 3 of the financial statements.

Causeway sub-funds). In addition, this is one of the key areas
on which our audit is concentrated as the valuation of
investments is a key driver of the Company’s performance and
net asset value. As a result, we considered these as key audit
matters.

Existence of financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL
The following audit work has been performed to address the
risk:

We obtained an understanding of the processes in place in
relation to the existence of the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities by conducting a walkthrough of these processes and
reviewed the Administrator’s controls report.

We obtained independent confirmations of the existence of the
financial assets and liabilities from the Company’s Depositary
and counterparties, and agreed the amounts held to the
accounting records as at 31 December 2023. Reconciling
items noted were tested to underlying supporting
documentation.

No issues were identified during the course of our audit work
on this matter.

Valuation of financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL
The following audit work has been performed to address the
risk:

We obtained an understanding of the processes in place in
relation to the valuation of the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities by conducting a walkthrough of these processes and
reviewed the Administrator’s controls report.

We re-performed the assigned valuation of each securities as
at 31 December 2023 to independent pricing sources, broker
prices or counterparty confirmations.

For auto-callable swaps, we selected a sample to test the
valuation reports prepared by the management and
independent valuation prepared by the independent valuer.
For the selected samples, we also engaged our internal
Financial Services Advisory team to independently produce a
valuation of the swaps using in-house models and assumptions
and details from the swap agreements.

No issues were identified during the course of our audit work
on this matter.
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Other information

Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and the auditor’s report thereon, including the Report of the Directors, Report of the Depositary to the
Shareholders, Investment Manager’s Report and Supplementary Information (Unaudited). The directors
are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies in the financial statements, we are required to determine whether
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by the Companies Act 2014

o We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

e In our opinion, the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial
statements to be readily and properly audited.
The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

e In our opinion, the information given in the Report of the Directors is consistent with the financial
statements. Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion, the
Report of the Directors has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2014.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Based on our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Directors.

Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of
directors’ remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of the Act have not been made.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Corporate governance statement

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit of the financial statements, the
description of the main features of the internal control and risk management systems in relation to the
financial reporting process, specified for our consideration and included in the Corporate Governance
Statement, is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with section
1373(2)(c) of the Companies Act 2014.

Based on our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of
our audit of the financial statements, we have not identified material misstatements in the description of
the main features of the internal control and risk management systems in relation to the financial reporting
process included in the Corporate Governance Statement.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as they determine necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intends to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements

The objectives of an auditor are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Irish
Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority’s website at: http://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-
1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dc9c3a/Description_of auditors_responsibilities_for_audit.pdf. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk
that material misstatement in the financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly
planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (Ireland). The extent to which our procedures are
capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-
compliance with laws and regulations related to compliance with Listing Rules of the Euronext Dublin,
Central Bank of Ireland (“CBI”) Acts, Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (“SFDR”) and Irish and
EU Legislation, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the
financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the
preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2014 and lIrish tax legislation. We
evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related
to posting inappropriate journal entries to manipulate financial performance and management bias through
judgements and assumptions in significant accounting estimates, in particular in relation to significant one-
off or unusual transactions. We apply professional scepticism through the audit to consider potential
deliberate omission or concealment of significant transactions, or incomplete/inaccurate disclosures in the
financial statement.


http://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dc9c3a/Description_of_auditors_responsibilities_for_audit.pdf
http://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dc9c3a/Description_of_auditors_responsibilities_for_audit.pdf
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Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
(continued)

In response to these principal risks, our audit procedures included but were not limited to:

« inquiries of management on the policies and procedures in place regarding compliance with laws
and regulations, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance and
whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud,;

* inspection of the Company’s regulatory and legal correspondence and review of minutes of board
meetings during the year to corroborate inquiries made;

» gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risk related to fraud,;

« discussion amongst the engagement team in relation to the identified laws and regulations and
regarding the risk of fraud, and remaining alert to any indications of non-compliance or opportunities
for fraudulent manipulation of financial statements throughout the audit;

« identifying and testing journal entries to address the risk of inappropriate journals and management
override of controls;

« designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing or extent of our
testing;

+ challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting
estimates, including valuations of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss;

« review of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation and inquiries
of management; and

* engagement partner’s assessment of the engagement team’s collective competence and capabilities
to identify or recognise non-compliance with the laws and regulation.

The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of irregularities including fraud rests with those
charged with governance and management. As with any audit, there remains a risk of non-detection or
irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or override
of internal controls.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 391 of the
Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

We were appointed by the Board of directors on 3 August 2023 to audit the financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2023. This is the first year we have been engaged to audit the financial
statements of the Company.

We have not provided non-audit services prohibited by the IAASA’s Ethical Standard and have remained
independent of the Company in conducting the audit.

The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the board of directors.

(.—i\\ E \\-s:_s—_i-‘

David Lynch

For and on behalf of

Grant Thornton

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin

Date: 25 April 2024
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Investment Manager’s Report

Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund

Full year review
Macro & markets recap

After H1 2023 was dominated by the surge in tech and consumer mega-cap stocks — in conjunction with excitement around
the potential of generative Al - the defining market dynamics of H2 were the rise and fall of bond yields, and their influence

on financial markets more broadly.

In Q4, we saw a sharp reversal lower in US Treasury yields, with the 10-year peaking above 5% in October, before finishing
the year below 4%. With US economic growth remaining robust, and inflation data continuing to moderate, fears of ‘higher
for longer’ were replaced by hopes of Fed rate cuts as early as H1 2024.

Normalized As Of 12/30/2022
Last Price
I S&P 500 INDEX 24.2305 -1.43%
M S&P 500 Equal Weighted Index 11.5577 -3.60%
M US Generic Govt 10 Yr 011 113.98%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Now Dec
2023

HMSO LN Equity (Hammerson PLC) Lawson Property Stocks Daily 30DEC2022-31DEC2023 CopyrightZ 2024 Bloemberg Finance L.P. 09-Jan-2024 13:38:32

Source: Bloomberg

A weaker dollar further eased financial conditions, and both stocks and bonds surged into year-end. In stark contrast to the
incredibly narrow market gains of H1 — when the ‘Magnificent Seven’ accounted for almost all upside — this was a much
broader rally, encompassing almost all segments of the market. In fixed income, credit spreads tightened further, adding to
substantial gains from duration.

Total return of major global financial assets 2023 (local currency)
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Investment Manager’s Report (Continued)

Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund (Continued)

2023 performance

The fund also delivered a strong finish to the year, with a gain of 4.1% in the fourth quarter, taking the 2023 return (from
January 9™ launch) to -1.5%, and the full year return for the underlying strategy (launched 2018) to 2.6%.

While the above performance is modest in absolute terms, this was an incredibly challenging year for sustainable investing,
illustrated by a more than 20% decline for the iShares Global Clean Energy ETF (featuring a 40% peak-to-trough drawdown),

along with weakness in other sustainable thematics.

To recap, the fund’s 8 core sustainable themes are as follows:

= =
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0

=

clean energy education future mobility health and wellbeing

b 0. 20 R
RE0REG

natural capital reduced inequality resource efficiency sustainable infrastructure

Of these, beyond the severe bear market in clean energy, other notable laggards in 2023 were healthcare, mobility and
infrastructure. Factors contributing to underperformance and deteriorating sentiment in the sustainable investing sphere
included:

) Delays in codification of the US Inflation Reduction Act into tax law
) Rising yields putting downward pressure on longer duration assets

) Lower power prices, combined with the higher cost of capital, impairing the economics of some renewable energy
projects and companies

) Growing ‘anti-ESG’ rhetoric and ETF outflows from the space

In combination, these headwinds led to a de-rating of ‘sustainable equities’, which in turn severely underperformed headline
US and global equity indices.

Against this backdrop, we are relatively satisfied with how we navigated the last 12 months. Sizeable cash and fixed income
allocations helped to protect capital as ‘green stocks’ suffered a major correction until late October, and having held our
composure on high conviction allocations, these subsequently rebounded sharply in November and December.

It is also important to re-emphasise the sustainable nature of this strategy — combining appropriate risk-adjusted returns with
positive impact (click here for latest impact report) — and while we expect to deliver attractive performance over time, the
pathway of returns will inevitably be different from more ‘traditional portfolios’, given the specific factors driving the
investment exposures.
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Investment Manager’s Report (Continued)

Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund (Continued)

2023 performance (Continued)

Over a longer timeframe, our Sustainable Growth strategy has delivered highly credible returns versus peers (indicated by
the relevant ARC PCI indices) but with a markedly different profile. See below for the return history of this strategy since
inception in 2018:
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Outlook for 2024

Risks — both economic and geopolitical — remain, and we are likely to see a slowdown in US growth, but we do not believe
this will be severe. We see many positive factors which we believe may outweigh negatives in the coming year, including:

fi

Inflation to continue surprising to the downside - potentially even ‘undershooting’ central bank targets by year-end

Facilitating Fed rate cuts across the year - with easing also likely in Europe, China and the UK

Al should continue to boost productivity - helping to further lower inflation in the process

Increased green infrastructure spending — the CHIPS and IRA acts in the US, along with equivalent programs in the
EU and China

American households are wealthy — consumers are seeing real wage growth, and US household wealth is at all-time
highs, reaching a staggering $151 trillion in Q4

Huge amount of money on the sidelines — in the US alone there was a record $5.9 trillion in money market mutual
funds, as of December
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Investment Manager’s Report (Continued)

Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund (Continued)
Outlook for 2024 (Continued)

On balance, we believe a "Roaring 2020s" scenario has gone from being an outside bet to a realistic possibility, with Al
boosting productivity, inflation normalising, and private sector balance sheets in good shape. Markets may have begun to
price in such an environment across November and December, but there are parts of the market — including some of the
notable 2023 laggards highlighted above — which could have a lot of room to run, as these positives permeate more broadly.

Focusing more specifically on the backdrop for sustainable investing, and the fund itself, having weathered something of a
‘perfect storm’ in 2023, we head into 2024 with inflation and yields having eased significantly; more attractive valuations;
the IRA bill having been codified into US tax law; and power-hungry Al computing underpinning spending on renewable

energy. As such, we believe the opportunity set and outlook for the fund to have improved significantly from twelve months
ago.

APW Investors Limited

Date: 25 April 2024
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31° December 2023

Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund

ASGF*
31 Dec 2023
Note £
ASSETS
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investments in Transferable Securities 3 23,569,142
Cash at bank 5 63,248
Dividends and interest receivable 1,492
Receivable from Investment Manager 7,10 6,178
TOTAL ASSETS 23,640,060
LIABILITIES
Investment management fees payable 7, 10 9,129
Management fee payable 7 5,138
Administration fees payable 7 8,849
Transfer agency fees payable 7 1,560
Directors’ fees payable 7 120
Depositary and depositary oversight fees payable 7 4,489
Audit fees payable 7 6,745
Other fees payable 3,211
TOTAL LIABILITIES (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares) 39,241
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES 23,600,819

*Launched on 9™ January 2023. Therefore, no comparatives available.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the Financial Year Ended 31° December 2023

Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund

ASGF*
31 Dec 2023
Note £
INCOME
Dividend income 111,960
Net realised and unrealised gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 9 71,712
Bank interest 36,942
Expense reimbursement from Investment Manager 7,10 51,831
Other income 2,503
TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME 274,948
EXPENSES
Investment management fees 7,10 90,838
Management fees 7 66,792
Administration fees 7 11,801
Directors’ fees 7 8,639
Depositary and depositary oversight fees 7 12,241
Audit fees 7 6,745
Transfer agency fees 7 4,839
Bank interest expenses 1
Formation expenses 40,031
Other fees and expenses 7 72,156
Total Operating Expenses 314,083
Operating Loss (39,135)
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations (39,135)

*Launched on 9" January 2023. Therefore, no comparatives available.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements. All of the results for the financial year

relate to continuing operations.

40



GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of

Redeemable Participating Shares

Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund

ASGF*
31 Dec 2023
£
Net Assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
beginning of the financial year -
Decrease in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations (39,135)
Capital transactions
Issue of redeemable shares during the financial year 25,611,931
Redemption of redeemable shares during the financial year (1,971,977)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the end
of the financial year 23,600,819

*Launched on 9" January 2023. Therefore, no comparatives available.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund

ASGF*
31 Dec 2023
£
Cash flows from operating activities
Decrease in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations (39,135)
Adjustment to reconcile decrease in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations to net cash used in operating activities
Dividend income (111,960)
Operating loss before working capital changes (151,095)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Net increase in financial assets and liabilities at fair value (23,569,142)
Increase in other receivables (6,178)
Increase in payables 39,241
Cash used in operating activities (23,687,174)
Interest paid (1,492)
Dividend received 111,960
Net cash used in operating activities (23,576,706)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 25,611,931
Payment on redemptions of redeemable participating shares (1,971,977)
Net cash provided by financing activities 23,639,954
Net increase in cash 63,248
Net Cash at the start of the financial year -
Net Cash at the end of the financial year 63,248
Analysis of Cash
Cash at the start of the financial year -
Cash held as collateral at the start of the financial year -
Overdraft at the start of the financial year -
Collateral due to brokers at the start of the financial year -
Cash at the end of the financial year 63,248

Cash held as collateral at the end of the financial year
Overdraft at the end of the financial year
Collateral due to brokers at the end of the financial year

*Launched on 9™ January 2023. Therefore, no comparatives available.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Schedule of Investments

As at 31" December 2023

Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund*

(expressed in GBP) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value assets
1) INVESTMENTS
A) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES
1) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : INVESTMENT FUNDS
IRELAND
BlackRock ICS Sterling Liquidity Fund 936,826 GBP 936,826 936,827 3.97
Federated Hermes Sustainable Global Equity fund 1,661,744 GBP 1,789,270 1,907,183 8.08
Pimco Funds: Global Investors Series Plc Pimco
Climate Bond Fund 198,477 GBP 1,762,939 1,865,680 7.91
Pinnacle Icav-Aikya Global Emerging Markets
Fund-Ucits 115,492 GBP 1,090,127 1,106,573 4.69
Polar Capital Funds Plc - Emerging Market Stars
Fund 119,489 GBP 1,136,117 1,162,624 493
Polar Capital Smart Energy Fund 161,055 GBP 1,306,902 1,280,384 5.42
Regnan Umbrella Fund ICAV - Regnan Global
Equity Impact Solutions 1,347,235 GBP 1,178,531 1,306,818 5.54
9,200,712 9,566,089 40.54
LUXEMBOURG
Artemis Funds Lux-Positive Future 1,949,248 GBP 1,262,603 1,206,391 5.11
Bluebay Funds-Bluebay Impact-Aligned Bond Fund 13,672 GBP 1,166,558 1,181,157 5.00
LO Funds - Circular Economy 114,132 GBP 1,196,742 1,249,357 5.29
Lombard Odier Funds - TerreNeuve 118,947 GBP 1,255,825 1,107,602 4.69
Schroder International Selection Fund Global
Energy Transition 11,961 GBP 1,425,538 1,254,664 5.32
Schroder International Selection Fund-Blueorchard
Emerging Markets Impact Bond 17,881 GBP 1,744,795 1,827,278 7.74
Schroder ISF Global Cities 10,355 USD 1,148,890 1,194,061 5.06
Schroder ISF Global Sustainable Food & Water 20,635 GBP 1,879,259 1,908,972 8.09
T Rowe Price Funds SICAV - Global Impact Credit
Fund 111,430 GBP 1,109,015 1,136,591 4.82
Vontobel Fund - Global Environmental Change 10,801 GBP 1,840,931 1,936,980 8.21
14,030,156 14,003,053 59.33
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : INVESTMENT
FUNDS 23,230,868 23,569,142 99.87
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES 23,230,868 23,569,142  99.87
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 23,569,142 99.87
OTHER ASSETS 70,918 0.30
OTHER LIABILITIES (39,241) 0.17)
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES 23,600,819  100.00

*Launched on 9™ January 2023.
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)
As at 31st December 2023

Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund*

% of Total Assets

Assets

Investment in Transferable Securities 99.70
Cash at Bank 0.27
Other Assets 0.03
Total Assets 100.00

*Launched on 9™ January 2023.
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Significant Portfolio Movements (unaudited)
315 December 2023

Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund*

Purchases
Security Name Quantity Cost % of
£ Total Purchases

BlackRock ICS Sterling Liquidity Fund 4,005,739 4,005,739 11.88
Schroder ISF Global Sustainable Food & Water 21,606 1,969,006 5.84
Federated Hermes Sustainable Global Equity fund 1,795,374 1,933,243 5.73
Pimco Funds: Global Investors Series Plc Pimco Climate

Bond Fund 213,380 1,895,917 5.62
Vontobel Fund - Global Environmental Change 11,116 1,894,268 5.62
Schroder International Selection Fund-Blueorchard

Emerging Markets Impact Bond 19,253 1,878,774 5.57
Schroder International Selection Fund Global Energy

Transition 12,454 1,491,760 4.42
Lombard Odier Funds - TerreNeuve 125,619 1,332,370 3.95
Artemis Funds Lux-Positive Future 2,020,888 1,309,534 3.88
Polar Capital Smart Energy Fund 161,055 1,306,902 3.88
LO Funds - Circular Economy 121,907 1,280,227 3.80
Polar Capital Funds Plc - Emerging Market Stars Fund 132,678 1,267,131 3.76
Bluebay Funds-Bluebay Impact-Aligned Bond Fund 14,645 1,250,383 3.71
Schroder ISF Global Cities 11,223 1,249,360 3.70
Goldman Sachs Funds SICAV 112,961 1,219,472 3.62
Regnan Umbrella Fund ICAV - Regnan Global Equity

Impact Solutions 1,384,721 1,211,601 3.59
T Rowe Price Funds SICAV - Global Impact Credit Fund 120,814 1,205,009 3.57
Schroder International Selection Fund-Digital Infrastructure 11,990 1,201,540 3.56
Columbia Threadneedle Lux III-CT Lux Responsible Global

Emerging Markets Equity 87,543 1,197,452 3.55
Pinnacle Icav-Aikya Global Emerging Markets Fund-Ucits 124,171 1,172,046 3.48
Polar Capital Funds Plc - Smart Mobility Fund 157,813 1,138,594 3.38
Wellington Global Impact Bond Fund 73,020 708,271 2.10

*Launched on 9th January 2023.
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Significant Portfolio Movements (unaudited) (Continued)
318 December 2023

Affinity Sustainable Growth Fund*

Sales
Security Name Quantity Proceeds % of
£ Total Sales
BlackRock ICS Sterling Liquidity Fund 3,068,914 3,068,914 29.99
Columbia Threadneedle Lux III-CT Lux Responsible
Global Emerging Markets Equity 87,543 1,171,329 11.45
Goldman Sachs Funds SICAV 112,961 1,161,241 11.35
Polar Capital Funds Plc - Smart Mobility Fund 157,813 1,155,194 11.29
Schroder International Selection Fund-Digital Infrastructure 11,990 1,081,266 10.57
Wellington Global Impact Bond Fund 73,020 702,099 6.86
T Rowe Price Funds SICAV - Global Impact Credit Fund 29,640 247,439 2.42
Schroder International Selection Fund Global Energy
Transition 1,386 225,639 2.20
Pictet - Global Environmental Opportunities 517 149,446 1.46
Federated Hermes Sustainable Global Equity fund 133,630 143,666 1.40
Schroder International Selection Fund-Blueorchard
Emerging Markets Impact Bond 1,372 135,385 1.32
Pimco Funds: Global Investors Series Plc Pimco Climate
Bond Fund 14,903 132,490 1.29
Polar Capital Funds Plc - Emerging Market Stars Fund 13,189 121,609 1.19
T Rowe Price Funds SICAV - Global Impact Credit Fund 9,383 93,271 0.91
Schroder ISF Global Cities 869 93,242 0.91
Schroder ISF Global Sustainable Food & Water 971 84,020 0.82
Pinnacle Icav-Aikya Global Emerging Markets Fund-Ucits 8,679 83,218 0.81
Bluebay Funds-Bluebay Impact-Aligned Bond Fund 972 78,587 0.77
LO Funds - Circular Economy 7,775 75,406 0.74
Lombard Odier Funds - TerreNeuve 6,671 62,288 0.61

*Launched on 9" January 2023.
The tables above show a breakdown of material purchases and sales of the Portfolios in accordance with Central Bank UCITS Regulations

79(2) requirements. All purchases and sales of investments exceeding 1% of the total value of each purchases and sales respectively, a
minimum of 20 of each such purchases and sales, are disclosed.
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Investment Manager’s Report
Atlantic House Balanced Return Fund*

Market Review

A wise man once pointed out that the stock market is not formed by thousands of clever men and women
independently arriving at their own views.

It is much more like a school exam hall where two bright kids at the front — one an optimistic bull, and one a
pessimistic bear — pass back the answers to the rest of the class. Ultimately each investment has a buyer and a
seller and so views form into two basic groups, even though the world itself'is far more nuanced than this suggests.

This was never truer than in 2023. At the start of the year, inflation enthusiasts argued for a generational shift in
inflation expectations — forecasting a return to the economic malaise of the 1970s.

Meanwhile economic pessimists foresaw an avalanche of consumer and business failures resulting from the higher
interest costs.

Thankfully, neither outcome came to pass, and inflation slowed meaningfully even as the world economy
continued to grow at close to 3%. This year is a reminder that the volume of the debate is often a poor indicator
of the likelihood of outcomes.

Financial markets price in uncertainty, which dampens valuations and helps enhance the long term returns for
patient investors.

As we entered 2023, we recognized a shift in this balance due to a decline in global energy prices. Natural gas
prices fell rapidly as alternative supply and lower demand helped meet Europe’s needs.

Interest rate rises quickly delivered price stability as consumer demand started to slow. Today US and European
headline inflation is near 3% and even core measures, which respond with a lag, have declined. Even the UK, a
laggard in the inflation fight. has made some notable progress in recent months. On the downside, economic
growth in the UK and Europe has ground to a halt and market participants expect interest rate cuts as early as the
second quarter of 2024.

The US economy has surprised the sceptics by delivering 2.5% growth in 2023. Buoyed by a resilient labour
market consumers dipped into pandemic era savings. US companies have started to grow their earnings, delivering
4% earnings growth in the most recent quarter. This has helped support a more positive economic narrative.

In terms of equity performance, US and Japanese shares generated the strongest returns driven by their technology
and consumer discretionary exposure. Smaller UK Mid Cap companies significantly lagged the broader UK equity
market. Across fixed income, riskier high yield debt strongly outperformed top-rated government bonds year-to-
date. Meanwhile inflation-linked UK debt produced poor returns.

As we think about the coming year, we are excited by elevated expected returns across a range of assets. While
the debate on the depth of the upcoming recession is likely to rage for some time, we expect declining inflation

and a slowdown in economic growth.

A mild US recession, which is now the base case for many investors, could still prove challenging for earnings
from cyclical sectors. We anticipate earnings growth in these sectors to bottom in the first half of next year.

*Formerly Atlantic House Total Return Fund. Name change effective on 6™ October 2023.
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Investment Manager’s Report (Continued)
Atlantic House Balanced Return Fund* (Continued)

Performance Review

The Fund performed well over 2023, rising by almost 16%. In short everything worked well for the fund this year.
In particular, the defined returns investments performed well. The table below shows how it performed against its
benchmark.

Performance

Name 1 month 3 months 6 months YTD 1 year 3 years l::rllcceh Annualised

AH Balanced Return

Fund 3.22% 6.00% 6.24% 15.87% 15.87% 10.87%  23.20% 4.20%

IA Mixed Investment 20% -

60% 3.82% 5.65% 5.52% 6.80% 6.80% 3.65% 17.10% 3.16%
0

IA Targeted Absolute

1.57% 2.94% 4.25% 4.32% 4.32% 7.60% 14.72% 2.75%
Return

Outlook

We wrote this last year:

“There is plenty of latent value in the Total Return Fund , and we remain confident that over time it provides a
high probability of delivering on its aims. There are no plans to make significant changes to the Fund and remain
hopeful that this fund will become the firm’s multi-asset offering of choice.”

We are pleased that some of the latent value in the defined return element of the fund came through, and that the

fixed income and long volatility sleeves also performed well. It has become the firm’s multi-asset offering, and
we look forward to continued support from investors as we try and grow the fund.

Atlantic House Investments Limited

Date: 25 April 2024

*Formerly Atlantic House Total Return Fund. Name change effective on 6" October 2023.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31° December 2023 and 2022

Atlantic House Balanced Return Fund*

ABRF ATRF
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note £ £
ASSETS
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investments in Transferable Securities 3 38,450,981 31,238,422

Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 3,827,869 2,426,004
Cash at bank 5 1,316,685 1,390,927
Cash held as collateral 5 732,547 1,122,092
Dividends and interest receivable 211,175 196,739
Amount receivable on subscriptions 293,413 12,268
Receivable from Investment Manager 7,10 17,898 1,410
TOTAL ASSETS 44,850,568 36,387,862
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 1,668,616 2,948,159
Bank Overdraft 5 - 131,992
Collateral due to brokers 5 732,547 822,092
Investment management fees payable 7,10 39,236 30,176
Management fee payable 7 657 3,218
Administration fees payable 7 5,765 3,791
Transfer agency fees payable 7 3,901 2,610
Directors’ fees payable 7 13 36
Depositary and depositary oversight fees payable 7 4,615 4,048
Audit fees payable 7 4,052 3,990
Redemptions payable 39,083 51,902
Other fees payable 4,112 6,875
TOTAL LIABILITIES (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares) 2,502,597 4,008,889
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES 42,347,971 32,378,973

*Formerly Atlantic House Total Return Fund. Name change effective on 6" October 2023.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the Financial Year Ended 31° December 2023 and 2022

Atlantic House Balanced Return Fund*

ABRF ATRF
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note £ £
INCOME
Bond interest income 2 649,258 970,241
Net realised and unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 9 4,775,945 (5,594,960)
Bank interest 77,608 30,067
Expense reimbursement from Investment Manager 7,10 30,956 1,410
Swap interest income 2 1,490,507 182,734
Other income 1,220 22,616
TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME/(LOSS) 7,025,494 (4,387,892)
EXPENSES
Investment management fees 7,10 219,045 297,364
Management fees 7 7,850 32,557
Administration fees 7 22,621 22,418
Directors’ fees 7 8,522 8,338
Depositary and depositary oversight fees 7 18,815 19,975
Audit fees 7 7,461 7,781
Transfer agency fees 7 11,117 16,314
Swap interest expenses 2 1,213,884 397,570
Bank interest expenses 41,274 26,061
Other fees and expenses 7 46,063 42,533
Total Operating Expenses 1,596,652 870,911
Operating Profit/(Loss) 5,428,842 (5,258,803)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations 5,428,842 (5,258,803)

*Formerly Atlantic House Total Return Fund. Name change effective on 6" October 2023.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements. All of the results for the financial year relate
to continuing operations.

50



GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of

Redeemable Participating Shares

Atlantic House Balanced Return Fund*

ABRF ATRF
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
£ £
Net Assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
beginning of the financial year 32,378,973 56,779,295
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 5,428,842 (5,258,803)
Capital transactions
Issue of redeemable shares during the financial year 11,017,262 13,804,317
Redemption of redeemable shares during the financial year (6,477,106) (32,945,836)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the end
of the financial year 42,347,971 32,378,973

*Formerly Atlantic House Total Return Fund. Name change effective on 6™ October 2023.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

51
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Statement of Cash Flows

Atlantic House Balanced Return Fund*

ABRF ATRF
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
£ £
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 5,428,842 (5,258,803)
Adjustment to reconcile increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations to net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities
Bond interest income (649,258) (970,241)
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 4,779,584 (6,229,044)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Net (increase)/decrease in financial assets and liabilities at fair value (9,893,967) 19,459,234
Increase in other receivables (16,488) (1,410)
Increase/(decrease) in payables 7,607 (17,661)
Cash (used in)/provided by operating activities (5,123,264) 13,211,119
Interest received 634,822 1,157,595
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities (4,488,442) 14,368,714
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 10,736,117 15,208,487
Payment on redemptions of redeemable participating shares (6,489,925) (32,940,499)
Net cash provided by/(used in)financing activities 4,246,192 (17,732,012)
Net decrease in cash (242,250) (3,363,298)
Net Cash at the start of the financial year 1,558,935 4,922,233
Net Cash at the end of the financial year 1,316,685 1,558,935
Analysis of Cash
Cash at the start of the financial year 1,390,927 4,392,214
Cash held as collateral at the start of the financial year 1,122,092 530,022
Overdraft at the start of the financial year (131,992) 3)
Collateral due to brokers at the start of the financial year (822,092) -
Cash at the end of the financial year 1,316,685 1,390,927
Cash held as collateral at the end of the financial year 732,547 1,122,092
Overdraft at the end of the financial year - (131,992)
Collateral due to brokers at the end of the financial year (732,547) (822,092)

*Formerly Atlantic House Total Return Fund. Name change effective on 6™ October 2023.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Schedule of Investments
As at 31" December 2023

Atlantic House Balanced Return Fund*

(expressed in GBP) Acquisition Fair o pet
Description Quantity Currency cost Value  assets
1) INVESTMENTS
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
1) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS
GREAT BRITAIN

Canary Wharf Group Investment Holdings
Plc 2.63% 23/04/2025 800,000 GBP 810,500 721,720 1.70
Investec Plc 1.88% 16/07/2028 EMTN 500,000 GBP 499,130 429,195 1.01
Rothesay Life Plc 3.38% 12/07/2026 1,000,000 GBP 1,076,200 945,420 2.23
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 0.13%
10/08/2028 5,237,000 GBP 7,010,845 7,176,071 16.95
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 0.13%
10/08/2031 3,940,000 GBP 4,996,755 5,145,505 12.14
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 0.13%
22/03/2026 3,016,520 GBP 4,000,418 4,396,440  10.38
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 0.13%
22/03/2029 1,962,000 GBP 2,998,381 3,151,290 7.44
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 1.25%
22/11/2027 1,544,000 GBP 2,996,217 3,172,430 7.49
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 2.50%
17/07/2024 829,550 GBP 3,003,851 3,161,332 7.47
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 4.13%
22/07/2030 1,890,000 GBP 6,464,108 6,631,897  15.66
Virgin Money UK Plc 5.13% 11/12/2030
EMTN 350,000 GBP 392,000 335,955 0.79
34,248,405 35,267,255  83.26
LUXEMBOURG
Blackstone Property Partners Europe
Holdings Sarl 2.00% 20/10/2025 EMTN 500,000 GBP 499,580 465,275 1.10
499,580 465,275 1.10
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS 34,747,985 35,732,530  84.36
TOTAL TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK
EXCHANGE LISTING 34,747,985 35,732,530  84.36
B) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES DEALT ON ANOTHER REGULATED MARKET
1) OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : BONDS
BELGIUM
Euroclear Bank SA 1.25% 30/09/2024
EMTN 654,000 GBP 635,901 635,126 1.50
635,901 635,126 1.50

*Formerly Atlantic House Total Return Fund. Name change effective on 6" October 2023.
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)
As at 31*" December 2023

Atlantic House Balanced Return Fund*

(expressed in GBP) Acquisition Fair 9 net
Description Quantity Currency cost Value  assets
B) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES DEALT ON ANOTHER REGULATED MARKET (continued)
1) OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : BONDS (continued)
GREAT BRITAIN
Jupiter Fund Management Plc 8.88%
27/07/2030 400,000 GBP 476,800 401,120 0.95
476,800 401,120 0.95
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
Nature Conservancy 0.63% 01/07/2024 1,000,000 USD 729,767 766,073 1.81
729,767 766,073 1.81
TOTAL OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : BONDS 1,842,468 1,802,319 4.26
2) LISTED SECURITIES : ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES
CAYMAN ISLANDS
Platinum for Belize Blue Investment Co LLC
3.60% 20/10/2040 1,350,000 USD 1,020,882 916,132 2.16
1,020,882 916,132 2.16
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES 1,020,882 916,132 2.16
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES DEALT ON ANOTHER
REGULATED MARKET 2,863,350 2,718,451 6.42
C) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
OPTIONS
(expressed in GBP) Acquisition Fair o net
Description Quantity Currency cost value  assets
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
Call Basket of Global Stocks 02/10/2024 0.00 1,000,000 EUR 100,000 55,891 0.13
55,891 0.13
AUTOCALLABLE SWAPS
Underlying Index Fair % net
Maturity Rate Floating Counterparties Basket Notional  Currency Value  assets
23/03/2027  3m GBP LIBOR Credit Agricole CIB SXSE/NKY 2,500,000 GBP 543,250 1.28
17/08/2027  12m GBP SONIA  Merrill Lynch International ~ UKX/SXS5E/SMI 2,000,000 GBP 190,000 0.45
25/10/2027  12m GBP SONIA  Merrill Lynch International ~ UKX/RTY 3,000,000 GBP 250,500 0.59
11/01/2028  12m GBP SONIA  Merrill Lynch International ~ UKX/SX5E/SPX 2,000,000 GBP 229,400 0.54

*Formerly Atlantic House Total Return Fund. Name change effective on 6" October 2023.

54



GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Schedule of Investments (Continued)
As at 31*" December 2023

Atlantic House Balanced Return Fund*

C) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

AUTOCALLABLE SWAPS (continued)

Underlying Index Fair % net
Maturity Rate Floating Counterparties Basket Notional Currency Value assets
10/02/2028  12m GBP SONIA  Merrill Lynch International ~ UKX/SXSE/RTY 2,000,000 GBP 287,000 0.68
16/02/2028  12m GBP SONIA  JP Morgan Securities Plc. SXSE/SMI 1,000,000 GBP 107,483 0.25
06/03/2028  12m GBP SONIA  JP Morgan Securities Plc. UKX/SPX 2,000,000 GBP 395,095 0.93
Canadian Imperial Bank of
31/01/2029  12m GBP SONIA  Commerce UKX/SPX 2,100,000 GBP 152,109 0.36
Canadian Imperial Bank of
22/05/2029  12m GBP SONIA  Commerce UKX/SX5E/SPX 1,500,000 GBP 60,899 0.14
07/09/2029  12m GBP SONIA  Merrill Lynch International ~ SPX/SX5E 2,000,000 GBP 87,800 0.21
2,303,536 5.43
TOTAL AUTOCALLABLE SWAPS 2,303,536 5.43
EQUITY LINKED SWAPS
Underlying Index Fair % net
Rate Floating Counterparties Basket Notional  Currency Value assets
12m USD SOFR ~ RBC IS Bank Luxembourg ~ USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 9,600,000 USD 24,611 0.06
12m USD SOFR  Merrill Lynch International USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 1,000,000 USD (13,362)  (0.03)
12m USD SOFR  JP Morgan Securities Plc. USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 1,930,000 USD - 0.00
12m GBP SONIA  JP Morgan Securities Plc. GBP-SONIA-COMPOUND(1D) 380,000 GBP 117 0.00
12m GBP SONIA  JP Morgan Securities Plc. GBP-SONIA-COMPOUND(1D) 4,000,000 GBP 104,389 0.25
12m GBP SONIA  JP Morgan Securities Plc. GBP-SONIA-COMPOUND(1D) 1,260,000 GBP 129,587 0.31
12m GBP SONIA  JP Morgan Securities Plc. GBP-SONIA-COMPOUND(1D) 2,400,000 GBP 139,560 0.33
12m USD SOFR  JP Morgan Securities Plc. USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 1,800,000 USD 131,276 0.31
516,178 1.23
TOTAL EQUITY LINKED SWAPS 516,178 1.23
INFLATION SWAPS
Fair % net
Description Counterparties Receives  Pays Notional Currency Value assets
Platinum for Belize
Blue Investment Co RBC IS Bank (12m GBP
LLC 3.60% 20/10/2040  Luxembourg 3.60 SONIA+1.88%) 1,350,000 USD 73,709 0.17
UKRPI ly Inflation JP Morgan
Swap Securities Plc. UKRPI1ly 3.35 11,142,000 GBP 31,347 0.07
UKRPI 2y Inflation Merrill Lynch
Swap International UKRPI2y 5.52 10,000,000 GBP 340,866 0.80
UKRPI 10y Inflation JP Morgan
Swap Securities Ple. UKRPI 10Y 3.55 480,000 GBP (1,415) 0.00
UKRPI 10y Inflation JP Morgan
Swap Securities Ple. UKRPI 10Y 3.86 3,830,000 GBP (127,030)  (0.30)
UKT 0.13% August Merrill Lynch (12m GBP
2028 International 0.13  SONIA+0.17%) 2,999,117 GBP (188,797)  (0.45)

*Formerly Atlantic House Total Return Fund

. Name change effective on 6™ October 2023.
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)

As at 31" December 2023

Atlantic House Balanced Return Fund*

C) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

INFLATION SWAPS (continued)

Fair % net
Description Counterparties Receives  Pays Notional Currency Value assets
UKT 0.13% August JP Morgan (12m GBP
2028 Securities Plc. 0.13  SONIA+0.14%) 4,012,414 GBP 106,354 0.25
UKT 0.13% August RBC IS Bank (12m GBP
2031 Luxembourg 0.13  SONIA+0.33%) 1,999,944 GBP (68,850)  (0.16)
UKT 0.13% August RBC IS Bank (12m GBP
2031 Luxembourg 0.13  SONIA+0.31%) 2,998,969 GBP (102,287)  (0.24)
UKT 0.13% March Citigroup (3m GBP
2026 Global 0.13 LIBOR+0.07%) 1,000,641 GBP (124,022)  (0.29)
UKT 0.13% March Citigroup (3m GBP
2026 Global 0.13  LIBOR+0.13%) 2,999,999 GBP (237,323)  (0.56)
UKT 0.13% March JP Morgan (12m GBP
2029 Securities Plc. 0.13  SONIA+0.22%) 1,499,249 GBP (77,153)  (0.18)
UKT 0.13% March JP Morgan (12m GBP
2029 Securities Plc. 0.13  SONIA+0.24%) 1,500,739 GBP (78,036)  (0.18)
UKT 1.25% November =~ RBC IS Bank (12m GBP
2027 Luxembourg 1.25 SONIA+0.12%) 1,998,371 GBP (95,243)  (0.22)
UKT 1.25% November  JP Morgan (3m GBP
2027 Securities Plc. 1.25 LIBOR+0.04%) 1,000,808 GBP (58,426) (0.14)
Citigroup (3m GBP
UKT 2.50% July 2024 Global 2.50 LIBOR+0.06%) 1,000,275 GBP (45,614) (0.11)
JP Morgan (3m GBP
UKT 2.50% July 2024 Securities Plc. 2.50 LIBOR+0.00%) 2,004,227 GBP (109,151)  (0.26)
RBC IS Bank (12m GBP
UKT 4.31% July 2030 Luxembourg 431 SONIA+0.32%) 1,997,350 GBP (87,133)  (0.21)
JP Morgan (12m GBP
UKT 4.31% July 2030 Securities Plc. 4.31 SONIA+0.27%) 4,508,702 GBP (30,239)  (0.07)
USCPI 2y Inflation JP Morgan
Swap Securities Plc. USCPI 2y 2.46 10,000,000 USD (35,044)  (0.08)
USCPI 4y Inflation JP Morgan
Swap Securities Plc. USCPl 4y 2.44 10,000,000 USD 2,959 0.01
USCPI 10y Inflation JP Morgan
Swap Securities Plc. USCPI 10y 2.44 2,260,000 USD (6,079)  (0.01)
USCPI 10y Inflation JP Morgan
Swap Securities Plc. USCPI 10y  2.63 2,400,000 USD (23,041)  (0.05)
USCPI 10y Inflation JP Morgan
Swap Securities Plc. USCPI 10y  2.70 700,000 USD (14,100)  (0.03)
(953,748) (2.24)
TOTAL INFLATION SWAPS (953,748)  (2.24)
INTEREST RATE SWAPS
Fair % net
Description Counterparties Receives  Pays Notional Currency Value  assets
GBP-SONIA- JP Morgan (12m GBP
COMPOUND(1D) Securities Plc. 1.06 SONIA+1.06%) 2,350,000 GBP 178,408 0.42
178,408 0.42
TOTAL INTEREST RATE SWAPS 178,408 0.42

*Formerly Atlantic House Total Return Fund. Name change effective on 6" October 2023.
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C) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

VARIANCE SWAPS

Fair % net
Description Counterparties Variance Notional Currency Value  assets
Basket of Stocks Credit Agricole CIB 33.50 30,000 USD 38,594 0.09
38,594 0.09
TOTAL VARIANCE SWAPS 38,594 0.09
INDEX SWAPS
Fair % net
Description Counterparties Pays Notional Currency Value  assets
CIRVUTI Index Citigroup Global 0.25 2,352,545 USD (90,834)  (0.21)
SXSE/SMI JP Morgan Securities Plc. 0.58 2,000,000 GBP 121,200 0.29
BAEIWTUS Index Merrill Lynch International 0.15 9,156,629 USD (545) 0.00
BASRUF15 Index Merrill Lynch International 0.15 2,400,870 USD (32,185) (0.08)
JPOSCUVS Index JP Morgan Securities Plc. - 17,400 USD (4,870)  (0.01)
BXIIDCNU Index Barclays Bank Plc 0.25 41,612 USD (4,560)  (0.01)
BXIIUIF1 Index Barclays Bank Plc 0.55 58,042 USD 45,465 0.11
BEFSVRI11 Index Barclays Bank Plc 0.25 83,097 USD (13,277)  (0.03)
20,394 0.06
TOTAL INDEX SWAPS 20,394 0.06
TOTAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 2,159,253 5.12
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 40,610,234  95.90
OTHER ASSETS 2,571,718 6.07
OTHER LIABILITIES (833,981) (1.97)
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES 42,347,971  100.00
% of Total Assets
Assets
Investment in Transferable Securities 85.73
Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 8.53
Cash at Bank 2.94
Cash held as Collateral 1.63
Other Assets 1.17
Total Assets 100.00

*Formerly Atlantic House Total Return Fund. Name change effective on 6™ October 2023.
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Purchases
Security Name Quantity Cost % of
£  Total Purchases
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 4.13% 22/07/2030 1,890,000 6,464,108 32.81
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 0.13% 10/08/2031 3,940,000 4,996,755 2536
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 0.13% 10/08/2028 2,337,000 2,998,978 1522
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 0.13% 22/03/2029 1,962,000 2,998,381 1522
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 1.25% 22/11/2027 1,025,000 1,998,174 10.14
United Kingdom Gilt 2.25% 07/09/2023 250,000 248,100 1.25
Sales
Security Name Quantity Proceed % of
£ Total Sales
Tabula US Enhanced Inflation UCITS ETF USD 26,000 2,335,267 16.20
iShares Physical Gold ETC / perpetual 65,000 1,947,450 13.51
Quilter Plc 4.48% 28/02/2028 1,500,000 1,533,585 10.64
United Kingdom Gilt 0.75% 22/07/2023 1,500,000 1,505,625 10.45
Anglian Water Osprey Financing Plc 5.00% 30/04/2023
EMTN 1,000,000 1,012,640 7.03
United Kingdom Gilt 0.13% 31/01/2023 1,000,000 1,000,625 6.94
Heathrow Funding Ltd 2.63% 16/03/2028 1,000,000 885,236 6.14
Channel Link Enterprises Finance Plc 6.13% 30/06/2050 1,000,000 763,649 5.30
BP Capital Markets Plc 4.25% / perpetual 750,000 709,841 4.93
Newcastle Coal Infrastructure Group Pty Ltd 4.70%
12/05/2031 688,000 471,115 3.27
TP ICAP Finance Plc 2.63% 18/11/2028 EMTN 500,000 404,365 2.81
Royal Mint Responsibly Sourced Physical Gold ETC /
perpetual 25,000 381,951 2.65
Prudential Funding Asia Plc 6.13% 19/12/2031 EMTN 350,000 375,974 2.61
Phoenix Group Holdings Plc 6.63% 18/12/2025 350,000 357,314 2.48
Rothesay Life Plc 6.88% / perpetual 300,000 270,263 1.88
United Kingdom Gilt 2.25% 07/09/2023 250,000 252,813 1.75
Just Group Plc 5.00% / perpetual 300,000 203,674 1.41

*Formerly Atlantic House Total Return Fund. Name change effective on 6" October 2023.

The tables above show a breakdown of material purchases and sales of the Portfolios in accordance with Central Bank UCITS Regulations
79(2) requirements. All purchases and sales of investments exceeding 1% of the total value of each purchases and sales respectively, a
minimum of 20 of each such purchases and sales, are disclosed. As there were less than 20 of each such purchases and sales during the year,
all purchases and sales are disclosed in the above tables.
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Market Review

A wise man once pointed out that the stock market is not formed by thousands of clever men and women independently
arriving at their own views.

It is much more like a school exam hall where two bright kids at the front — one an optimistic bull, and one a pessimistic bear
— pass back the answers to the rest of the class. Ultimately each investment has a buyer and a seller and so views form into
two basic groups, even though the world itself is far more nuanced than this suggests.

This was never truer than in 2023. At the start of the year, inflation enthusiasts argued for a generational shift in inflation
expectations — forecasting a return to the economic malaise of the 1970s.

Meanwhile economic pessimists foresaw an avalanche of consumer and business failures resulting from the higher interest
costs.

Thankfully, neither outcome came to pass, and inflation slowed meaningfully even as the world economy continued to grow
at close to 3%. This year is a reminder that the volume of the debate is often a poor indicator of the likelihood of outcomes.

Financial markets price in uncertainty, which dampens valuations and helps enhance the long term returns for patient
investors.

As we entered 2023, we recognized a shift in this balance due to a decline in global energy prices. Natural gas prices fell
rapidly as alternative supply and lower demand helped meet Europe’s needs.

Interest rate rises quickly delivered price stability as consumer demand started to slow. Today US and European headline
inflation is near 3% and even core measures, which respond with a lag, have declined. Even the UK, a laggard in the inflation
fight. has made some notable progress in recent months. On the downside, economic growth in the UK and Europe has ground
to a halt and market participants expect interest rate cuts as early as the second quarter of 2024.

The US economy has surprised the sceptics by delivering 2.5% growth in 2023. Buoyed by a resilient labour market
consumers dipped into pandemic era savings. US companies have started to grow their earnings, delivering 4% earnings
growth in the most recent quarter. This has helped support a more positive economic narrative.

In terms of equity performance, US and Japanese shares generated the strongest returns driven by their technology and
consumer discretionary exposure. Smaller UK Mid Cap companies significantly lagged the broader UK equity market. Across
fixed income, riskier high yield debt strongly outperformed top-rated government bonds year-to-date. Meanwhile inflation-
linked UK debt produced poor returns.

As we think about the coming year, we are excited by elevated expected returns across a range of assets. While the debate on
the depth of the upcoming recession is likely to rage for some time, we expect declining inflation and a slowdown in economic
growth.

A mild US recession, which is now the base case for many investors, could still prove challenging for earnings from cyclical
sectors. We anticipate earnings growth in these sectors to bottom in the first half of next year.

Performance Review

The Fund rose nearly 14% over 2023, one of its strongest to date. This was due to strong equity markets and good terms on
new investments. It is pleasing that over the ten year life of the fund it has returned almost 7% compounded.

The higher interest rate environment has made defined return investing more attractive in absolute terms than at any time
since the fund’s launch.
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Performance Review (Continued)

Currency Perf. Perf. Perf. Perf. Perf. Ann. Perf Ann.  Perf. Ann
GBP

esrmilen (5 1.72 4.01 13.88 13.88 27.70 8.51 49.17 8.34 95.88 6.85
UK Large Cap 3.79 2.33 7.74 7.74 3541 10.66 39.81 6.94 69.30 5.32
US Large Cap 4.50 11.80 26.74 26.74 2824 8.67 102.25 15.15 209.04 11.76
EU Large Cap 3.06 8.73 2225 2225 3646 1095 66.82 10.79  89.66 6.51
Outlook

Looking forwards to 2024, the pricing for potential new investments continues to be strong. We will see what the markets do
over the next few months which will determine how much of the Fund will need rolling into these new positions. We have
always targeted a return of 7% to 8% with as little risk as possible and will continue to do so.

Evidence of this approach can be highlighted with the ‘buffers’ to current market levels that the investments in the Fund
currently have; strong markets and good investment terms have led to the fund having on average 34% protection to positive
return barriers and 39% protection to capital loss barriers.

The table below shows our scenario analysis grid as of 30" December 2023. These are estimates based on our models and
are unlikely to be exactly accurate. Having said that, as mentioned above, past scenario analyses have proven to be reasonably

accurate and investors find these grids very useful for planning purposes.

The grid below shows that the Fund is in good shape looking forwards, in all but the severest of sustained market falls.

Market Move 30%  20%  -10% 0% 0%  20%  30%
3 months [18.60%  -9.09%  -222%  2.12%  381%  431%  4.59%
1 year 16.04% -478%  238%  7.10%  893%  9.41%  9.62%

s .2 2 years 185%  0.97%  9.07%  1415%  15.74%  16.14%  16.33%

§ :E 3 years 677%  798%  17.09% 21.63% 22.68%  22.94%  23.07%
'C“;;'I:‘gséc NAV 221%  28.66% 19.13%  7.59%  431%  3.67%  3.67%

Duration 4.74 4.27 2.57 1.06 0.63 0.53 0.53

Intrinsic Value

. 4.32% 6.08% 7.05% 7.14% 6.97% 7.05% 7.05%
(Annualised)

Intrinsic value

Atlantic House Investments Limited

Date: 25 April 2024
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31° December 2023 and 2022

Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund

AHFM AHFM
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note £ £
ASSETS
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investments in Transferable Securities 3 1,749,572,717 1,412,123,553

Investments in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 164,958,269 86,245,441
Cash at bank 5 110,045,978 80,660,745
Cash held as collateral 5 38,170,142 24,389,385
Dividends and interest receivable 7,337,554 4,351,661
Amount receivable on subscriptions 6,237,260 2,936,526
TOTAL ASSETS 2,076,321,920 1,610,707,311
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investments in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 99,886,829 66,144,527
Bank Overdraft 5 3,494 87
Collateral due to brokers 5 38,031,144 18,579,385
Investment management fees payable 7,10 1,661,220 1,376,751
Management fee payable 7 68,752 46,551
Administration fees payable 7 45,782 25,675
Transfer agency fees payable 7 42,372 18,772
Directors’ fees payable 7 25 72
Depositary and depositary oversight fees payable 7 56,646 31,152
Audit fees payable 7 7,452 7,471
Redemptions payable 2,237,557 1,691,377
Other fees payable 662,601 7,526
TOTAL LIABILITIES (excluding net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares) 142,703,874 87,929,346
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES 1,933,618,046  1,522,777,965

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund

AHFM AHFM
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note £ £
INCOME
Bond interest income 2 18,630,732 18,758,130
Net realised and unrealised gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 9 227,654,492 4,981,264
Bank interest 3,766,480 903,717
Swap interest income 2 54,415,251 11,542,168
Other income - 236,565
TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME 304,466,955 36,421,844
EXPENSES
Investment management fees 7 9,484,343 7,990,672
Management fees 7 831,315 547,057
Administration fees 7 167,687 145,402
Directors’ fees 7 17,043 16,675
Depositary and depositary oversight fees 7 239,541 204,442
Audit fees 7 14,766 13,254
Transfer agency fees 7 253,955 222,922
Swap interest expenses 2 72,440,609 23,368,774
Bank interest expense 620,546 240,999
Other fees and expenses 7 140,997 124,281
Total Operating Expenses 84,210,802 32,874,478
Operating Profit 220,256,153 3,547,366
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations 220,256,153 3,547,366

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements. All of the results for the financial year

relate to continuing operations.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of

Redeemable Participating Shares

Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund

AHFM AHFM
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
£ £
Net Assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
beginning of the financial year 1,522,777,965 1,509,043,736
Increase in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 220,256,153 3,547,366
Capital transactions
Issue of redeemable shares during the financial year 582,067,567 402,261,004
Redemption of redeemable shares during the financial year (379,783,437) (381,231,637)
Dividends to holders of redeemable participating shares (11,700,202) (10,842,504)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the end of
the financial year 1,933,618,046 1,522,777,965

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund

AHFM AHFM
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
£ £
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations 220,256,153 3,547,366
Adjustment to reconcile increase in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations to net cash used in operating activities
Bond interest income (18,630,732) (18,758,130)
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 201,625,421 (15,210,764)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Net increase in financial assets and liabilities at fair value (382,419,690) (18,553,173)
Increase in payables 1,030,880 620,632
Cash used in operating activities (179,763,389) (33,143,305)
Interest received 15,644,839 19,316,986
Net cash used in operating activities (164,118,550) (13,826,319)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 578,766,833 403,660,718
Payment on redemptions of redeemable participating shares (379,237,257)  (382,066,882)

Dividends to holders of redeemable participating shares
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
Net Cash at the start of the financial year
Net Cash at the end of the financial year

Analysis of Cash

Cash at the start of the financial year

Cash held as collateral at the start of the financial year
Overdraft at the start of the financial year

Collateral due to brokers at the start of the financial year

Cash at the end of the financial year

Cash held as collateral at the end of the financial year
Overdraft at the end of the financial year

Collateral due to brokers at the end of the financial year

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(11,700,202)

(10,842,504)

187,829,374 10,751,332
23,710,824 (3,074,987)
86,470,658 89,545,645

110,181,482 86,470,658
80,660,745 87,647,186
24,389,385 89,105,712

(87) (1,541)

(18,579,385)

110,045,978
38,170,142
(3,494)
(38,031,144)

(87,205,712)

80,660,745
24,389,385
87)
(18,579,385)
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Schedule of Investments
As at 31°" December 2023

Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund

(expressed in GBP) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value assets
1) INVESTMENTS
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
1) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS
GREAT BRITAIN
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt
0.13% 10/08/2028 258,890,895 GBP 339,933,271 354,748,835  18.35
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt
0.13% 10/08/2031 40,000,000 GBP 49,682,384 52,238,627 2.70
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt
0.13% 22/03/2024 118,505,581 GBP 154,788,310 182,993,109 9.46
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt
0.13% 22/03/2026 216,589,040 GBP 275,938,274 315,668,628  16.32
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt
0.13% 22/03/2029 57,820,000 GBP 90,039,270 92,868,286 4.80
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt
1.25% 22/11/2027 120,604,863 GBP 244,468,231 247,804,751  12.82
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt
2.50% 17/07/2024 80,421,911 GBP 293,714,770 306,479,861  15.85
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt
4.13% 22/07/2030 14,480,000 GBP 49,473,816 50,809,451 2.63
1,498,038,326 1,603,611,548  82.93
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS 1,498,038,326 1,603,611,548  82.93
TOTAL TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL
STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING 1,498,038,326 1,603,611,548  82.93
B) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES DEALT ON ANOTHER REGULATED MARKET
1) OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : BONDS
GREAT BRITAIN
Church Commissioners for England 3.25%
14/07/2032 14,500,000 GBP 14,449,685 13,546,190 0.70
14,449,685 13,546,190 0.70
TOTAL OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : BONDS 14,449,685 13,546,190 0.70
2) LISTED SECURITIES : ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES
CAYMAN ISLANDS
Platinum for Belize Blue Investment Co
LLC 3.60% 20/10/2040 7,350,000 USD 5,523,088 4,987,829 0.26
5,523,088 4,987,829 0.26
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES 5,523,088 4,987,829 0.26
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES DEALT ON ANOTHER
REGULATED MARKET 19,972,773 18,534,019 0.96
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(expressed in GBP) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value assets
C) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES
1) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : BONDS
CANADA
Royal Bank of Canada 0.00.% 20/12/2024
EMTN 25,000,000 GBP 25,000,000 26,534,250 1.37
25,000,000 26,534,250 1.37
FRANCE
Credit Agricole CIB Financial Solutions
SA 6.47% 27/06/2025 EMTN 10,000,000 GBP 10,000,000 10,245,450 0.53
Credit Agricole CIB Financial Solutions
SA 6.52% 17/10/2025 EMTN 10,000,000 GBP 10,000,000 10,044,100 0.52
Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment
Bank SA 5.23% 22/05/2029 EMTN 30,000,000 GBP 30,000,000 29,521,350 1.52
50,000,000 49,810,900 2.57
LUXEMBOURG
Citigroup Global Markets Funding
Luxembourg SCA 1.10% 03/01/2024 20,000,000 GBP 20,000,000 20,082,000 1.04
20,000,000 20,082,000 1.04
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
JPMorgan Chase Financial Co LLC 6.54%
11/07/2030 EMTN 31,000,000 GBP 31,000,000 31,000,000 1.60
31,000,000 31,000,000 1.60
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : BONDS 126,000,000 127,427,150 6.58
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES 126,000,000 127,427,150 6.58
D) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS
Unrealised % net
Maturity Currency Bought Currency Sold Counterparty (Depreciation)/Appreciation  assets
02/01/2024  EUR 8,329 GBP (7,219)  CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (1) 0.00
02/01/2024  GBP 18 EUR (20) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
03/01/2024  GBP 43,384 USD (55,424) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 92) 0.00
03/01/2024  EUR 120,025 GBP (104,442) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (420) 0.00
31/01/2024  USD 24,366,497 GBP  (19,053,146) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 57,128 0.00
31/01/2024 EUR 16,660,995 GBP  (14,488,284) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (33,633) 0.00
31/01/2024  AUD 783,318 GBP (419,987) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (307) 0.00
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D) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS (continued)

Unrealised % net
Maturity Currency Bought Currency Sold Counterparty Appreciation/(Depreciation)  assets
31/01/2024  GBP 22,594 EUR (25,964) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 68 0.00
31/01/2024  GBP 104,447 EUR (120,025) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 316 0.00
23,059 0.00
TOTAL FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS 23,059 0.00
AUTOCALLABLE SWAPS
Underlying Index % net
Maturity Rate Floating Counterparties Basket Notional Currency Fair Value  assets
31/07/2024  3m GBP LIBOR  Citigroup Global UKX/SPX 51,710,000 GBP 22,628,296 1.17
31/07/2024  3m GBP LIBOR  Natixis Paris UKX/RTY 19,615,000 GBP 7,853,846 0.41
30/03/2027 3m GBP LIBOR  Merrill Lynch International ~UKX/SPX/NKY 33,540,000 GBP 6,815,328 0.35
29/04/2027 3m GBP LIBOR  Credit Agricole CIB UKX/SPX/SXSE 29,830,000 GBP 5,903,357 0.31
02/06/2027 3m GBP LIBOR  Merrill Lynch International ~UKX/SPX/NKY 45,720,000 GBP 8,572,500 0.44
29/07/2027  3m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. UKX/SPX/SXSE 35,710,000 GBP 5,687,249 0.29
03/08/2027  3m GBP SONIO  Merrill Lynch International ~ UKX/SPX/SMI 25,120,000 GBP 3,084,736 0.16
19/08/2027  3m GBP SONIO  Merrill Lynch International ~ UKX/SXSE/SMI 39,000,000 GBP 3,705,000 0.19
19/08/2027  3m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. UKX/SPX/SXSE 38,400,000 GBP 6,518,273 0.34
15/09/2027  3m GBP SONIO  Merrill Lynch International ~UKX/RTY 36,840,000 GBP 3,790,836 0.20
11/01/2028  3m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. UKX/SXSE/SMI 30,000,000 GBP 2,025,694 0.10
15/03/2028  3m GBP SONIO  Credit Agricole CIB UKX/SPX 33,910,000 GBP 5,388,299 0.28
28/04/2028  3m GBP SONIO  Citigroup Global SPX/SXSE 56,980,000 GBP 7,638,169 0.40
27/10/2028 3m GBP SONIO  UBS AG UKX/SMI 30,950,000 GBP 2,496,278 0.13
04/12/2028  3m GBP SONIO  Natixis Paris UKX/SXSE 28,000,000 GBP 3,035,200 0.16
Canadian Imperial Bank of
04/12/2028  3m GBP SONIO  Commerce UKX/SPX/SXSE 34,840,000 GBP 2,885,414 0.15
Canadian Imperial Bank of
04/12/2028  3m GBP SONIO  Commerce UKX/SPX 36,790,000 GBP 3,806,845 0.20
07/12/2028  3m GBP SONIO  Credit Agricole CIB UKX/SXSE 29,950,000 GBP 3,009,975 0.16
27/12/2028  3m GBP SONIO  Barclays Bank Plc UKX/SPX/SXSE 37,950,000 GBP 1,540,455 0.08
Canadian Imperial Bank of
22/01/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Commerce UKX/SPX 33,880,000 GBP 2,819,392 0.15
Canadian Imperial Bank of
01/03/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Commerce UKX/SPX 33,920,000 GBP 2,045,749 0.11
06/03/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Merrill Lynch International ~ SPX/SXSE 45,000,000 GBP 3,811,500 0.20
Canadian Imperial Bank of
13/03/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Commerce UKX/SPX/SXSE 39,880,000 GBP 3,064,459 0.16
21/03/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Merrill Lynch International ~ SPX/NKY 37,330,000 GBP 3,016,264 0.16
01/05/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Merrill Lynch International ~UKX/SXSE 41,860,000 GBP 2,293,928 0.12
Canadian Imperial Bank of
24/05/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Commerce UKX 50,800,000 GBP 2,710,942 0.14
25/05/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Merrill Lynch International ~ SPX/NKY 45,860,000 GBP 2,783,702 0.14
15/06/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Merrill Lynch International ~ UKX/SXSE 50,740,000 GBP 2,856,662 0.15
20/06/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Natixis Paris UKX/NKY 40,950,000 GBP 3,042,585 0.16
20/06/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Citigroup Global SPX/SXSE 42,910,000 GBP 2,850,940 0.15
02/07/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Merrill Lynch International ~ SPX/SXSE 49,870,000 GBP 2,528,409 0.13
03/09/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Merrill Lynch International ~ UKX/NKY 45,000,000 GBP 2,065,500 0.11
24/09/2029  3m GBP SONIO UBS AG UKX/SXSE 42,930,000 GBP 1,340,110 0.07

67
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GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Schedule of Investments (Continued)

As at 31" December 2023

Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund

AUTOCALLABLE SWAPS (continued)

Underlying Index % net
Maturity Rate Floating Counterparties Basket Notional Currency Fair Value  assets
26/10/2029  3m GBP SONIO  Morgan Stanley SPX/SXS5E 40,000,000 GBP 1,324,000 0.07
29/01/2030  3m GBP SONIO  Morgan Stanley UKX/NKY 45,000,000 GBP 2,218,500 0.11
147,158,392 7.65
TOTAL AUTOCALLABLE SWAPS 147,158,392 7.65
INFLATION SWAPS
Fair % net
Description Counterparties Receives  Pays Notional Currency Value assets
Church Commissioners
for England 3.25% Merrill Lynch (3m GBP
14/07/2032 International 3.25 SONIO+0.01%) 14,500,000 GBP 1,083,857 0.06
Citigroup Global Markets
Funding Luxembourg (3m GBP
SCA 1.10% 03/01/2024 Citigroup Global 1.10 LIBOR+0.84%) 20,000,000 GBP 86,073 0.00
Platinum for Belize Blue
Investment Co LLC Credit Suisse (3m GBP
3.60% 20/10/2040 International 3.60 SONIO+0.02%) 7,350,000 USD 524,017 0.03
JP Morgan (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% August 2028 Securities Plc. 0.13 LIBOR+0.05%) 40,078,547 GBP 125,591 0.01
JP Morgan (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% August 2028  Securities Plc. 0.13  LIBOR+0.12%) 70,045,427 GBP (2,595,080)  (0.13)
JP Morgan (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% August 2028  Securities Plc. 0.13  SONIO+0.22%) 30,000,001 GBP (3,235,172)  (0.17)
JP Morgan (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% August 2028  Securities Plc. 0.13  SONIO+0.14%) 40,000,250 GBP (2,004,311)  (0.10)
JP Morgan (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% August 2028  Securities Plc. 0.13  SONIO+0.21%) 30,001,165 GBP (1,327,087)  (0.07)
JP Morgan (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% August 2028  Securities Plc. 0.13  SONIO+0.28%) 49,999,941 GBP (3,368,254)  (0.17)
Merrill Lynch (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% August 2028  International 0.13  SONIO+0.11%) 35,956 GBP 678,422 0.04
Merrill Lynch (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% August 2028  International 0.13  SONIO+0.13%) 37,500 GBP (1,072,981)  (0.06)
JP Morgan (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% August 2031  Securities Plc. 0.13  SONIO+0.24%) 49,688,465 GBP (2,742,287)  (0.14)
JP Morgan (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% March 2024 Securities Plc. 0.13  LIBOR+0.08%) 25,043,660 GBP (3,859,599)  (0.20)
JP Morgan (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% March 2024 Securities Plc. 0.13 LIBOR+0.15%) 30,000,001 GBP (5,346,646)  (0.28)
(3m GBP
UKT 0.13% March 2024 Citigroup Global 0.13 LIBOR+0.01%) 39,999,999 GBP (6,828,380)  (0.35)
JP Morgan (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% March 2024 Securities Plc. 0.13  LIBOR+0.08%) 60,000,085 GBP (11,604,347)  (0.60)
JP Morgan (3m GBP
UKT 0.13% March 2026 Securities Plc. 0.13 LIBOR+0.16%) 76,015,519 GBP (11,409,191)  (0.59)
(3m GBP
UKT 0.13% March 2026  Citigroup Global 0.13  LIBOR+0.00%) 49,999,471 GBP (7,345,692)  (0.38)
(3m GBP
UKT 0.13% March 2026  Citigroup Global 0.13 LIBOR+-0.01%) 39,999,999 GBP (3,627,340)  (0.19)
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D) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Schedule of Investments (Continued)

As at 31" December 2023

Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund

INFLATION SWAPS (continued)

Fair % net

Description Counterparties Receives  Pays Notional Currency Value assets
(3m GBP

UKT 0.13% March 2026 Citigroup Global 0.13 LIBOR+0.03%) 39,999,999 GBP (3,647,955)  (0.19)
(3m GBP

UKT 0.13% March 2026~ Citigroup Global 0.13 LIBOR+0.00%) 34,999,750 GBP (5,960,933)  (0.31)
(3m GBP

UKT 0.13% March 2026~ Citigroup Global 0.13 LIBOR+0.07%) 35,000,004 GBP (5,409,538)  (0.28)
JP Morgan (3m GBP

UKT 0.13% March 2029 Securities Plc. 0.13  SONIO+0.24%) 50,000,271 GBP (1,956,064)  (0.10)
Merrill Lynch (3m GBP

UKT 0.13% March 2029 International 0.13  SONIO+0.14%) 31,875 GBP (1,083,376)  (0.06)
UKT 1.25% November JP Morgan (3m GBP

2027 Securities Plc. 1.25 LIBOR+0.09%) 30,042,278 GBP (711,845)  (0.04)
UKT 1.25% November JP Morgan (3m GBP

2027 Securities Plc. 1.25 SONIO+0.13%) 50,014,431 GBP 700,535 0.04
UKT 1.25% November JP Morgan (3m GBP

2027 Securities Plc. 1.25 LIBOR+0.05%) 40,009,886 GBP (679,156)  (0.04)
UKT 1.25% November JP Morgan (3m GBP

2027 Securities Plc. 1.25 LIBOR+0.03%) 40,004,204 GBP (704,144)  (0.04)
UKT 1.25% November JP Morgan (3m GBP

2027 Securities Plc. 1.25 LIBOR+0.05%) 40,000,429 GBP 1,202,094 0.06
UKT 1.25% November RBC IS Bank (3m GBP

2027 Luxembourg 1.25 LIBOR+0.05%) 15,000,000 GBP (143,936)  (0.01)
UKT 1.25% November RBC IS Bank (3m GBP

2027 Luxembourg 1.25 LIBOR+0.09%) 30,000,000 GBP (520,265)  (0.03)
JP Morgan (3m GBP

UKT 2.50% July 2024 Securities Plc. 2.50 LIBOR+0.03%) 19,993,600 GBP (963,330)  (0.05)
JP Morgan (3m GBP

UKT 2.50% July 2024 Securities Plc. 2.50 LIBOR+0.04%) 39,999,886 GBP (324,680)  (0.02)
JP Morgan (3m GBP

UKT 2.50% July 2024 Securities Plc. 2.50 LIBOR+0.19%) 49,911,045 GBP (1,459,515)  (0.08)
JP Morgan (3m GBP

UKT 2.50% July 2024 Securities Plc. 2.50 LIBOR+0.34%) 19,990,891 GBP (515,610)  (0.03)
(3m GBP

UKT 2.50% July 2024 Citigroup Global 2.50 LIBOR+0.06%) 49,999,999 GBP (1,955,103)  (0.10)
(3m GBP

UKT 2.50% July 2024 Citigroup Global 2.50 LIBOR+0.00%) 39,999,695 GBP (2,489,272)  (0.13)
(3m GBP

UKT 2.50% July 2024 Citigroup Global 2.50 LIBOR+0.06%) 34,999,998 GBP (1,617,924)  (0.08)
(3m GBP

UKT 2.50% July 2024 Citigroup Global 2.50 LIBOR+0.07%) 40,000,000 GBP (2,025,080)  (0.10)
JP Morgan (3m GBP

UKT 4.31% July 2030 Securities Plc. 4.13  SONIO+0.3%) 50,005,862 GBP (1,318,283)  (0.07)

(95,451,787)  (4.95)

TOTAL INFLATION SWAPS (95,451,787)  (4.95)
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D) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Schedule of Investments (Continued)

As at 31" December 2023

Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund

EQUITY LINKED SWAPS

Underlying Index % net
Rate Floating Counterparties Basket Notional Currency Fair Value assets
3m GBP SONIO Barclays Bank Plc UKX/SX5E 30,990,000 GBP 1,346,972 0.07
3m GBP SONIO Barclays Bank Plc UKX/SPX 38,900,000 GBP 2,744,791 0.14
3m GBP SONIO Barclays Bank Plc UKX/SPX 35,990,000 GBP 1,348,552 0.07
3m GBP SONIO Barclays Bank Plc SPX/SX5E 48,900,000 GBP 2,351,465 0.12
3m GBP SONIO Barclays Bank Plc UKX/SPX 42,920,000 GBP 1,624,235 0.08
3m GBP SONIO Barclays Bank Plc UKX/SX5E 40,990,000 GBP 851,471 0.04
3m GBP SONIO Barclays Bank Plc UKX/SX5E 40,980,000 GBP 390,562 0.02
3m GBP SONIO Barclays Bank Plc UKX/SPX 40,000,000 GBP 469,962 0.02
3m GBP SONIO Natixis Paris UKX/NKY 32,940,000 GBP 1,610,766 0.08
3m GBP SONIO Natixis Paris UKX/SX5E 45,000,000 GBP 603,000 0.03
13,341,776 0.67
TOTAL EQUITY LINKED SWAPS 13,341,776 0.67
TOTAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 65,071,440 3.37
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 1,814,644,157 93.84
OTHER ASSETS 161,790,934 8.37
OTHER LIABILITIES (42,817,045) (2.21)
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES 1,933,618,046  100.00
% of Total Assets

Assets
Investment in Transferable Securities 84.26
Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 7.95
Cash at Bank 5.30
Cash held as Collateral 1.84
Other Assets 0.65
Total Assets 100.00
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Significant Portfolio Movements (unaudited)
315 December 2023

Atlantic House Defined Returns Fund

Purchases

Security Name Quantity Cost % of
£ Total Purchases

United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 0.13% 10/08/2028 93,031,000 119,940,557 34.26

United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 0.13% 22/03/2029 32,320,000 49,976,479 14.28

United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 4.13% 22/07/2030 14,480,000 49,473,816 14.13

JPMorgan Chase Financial Co LLC 6.54% 11/07/2030

EMTN 31,000,000 31,000,000 8.86

Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank SA 5.23%

22/05/2029 EMTN 30,000,000 30,000,000 8.57

Credit Agricole CIB Financial Solutions SA 6.52%

17/10/2025 EMTN 10,000,000 10,000,000 2.86

Credit Agricole CIB Financial Solutions SA 6.47%

27/06/2025 EMTN 10,000,000 9,999,999 2.85

Sales

Security Name Quantity Proceeds % of
£ Total Sales

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 7.00% 23/06/2027

EMTN 35,700,000 40,698,000 44.11

Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank SA 0.00%

06/06/2028 EMTN 30,000,000 32,400,000 35.12

Credit Agricole CIB Financial Solutions SA 0.00%

30/01/2026 EMTN 15,450,000 19,158,000 20.77

The tables above show a breakdown of material purchases and sales of the Portfolios in accordance with Central Bank UCITS Regulations
79(2) requirements. All purchases and sales of investments exceeding 1% of the total value of each purchases and sales respectively, a
minimum of 20 of each such purchases and sales, are disclosed. As there were less than 20 of each such purchases and sales during the
year, all purchases and sales are disclosed in the above tables.
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Investment Manager’s Report

Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund*
Market Review

A wise man once pointed out that the stock market is not formed by thousands of clever men and women independently
arriving at their own views.

It is much more like a school exam hall where two bright kids at the front — one an optimistic bull, and one a pessimistic bear
— pass back the answers to the rest of the class. Ultimately each investment has a buyer and a seller and so views form into
two basic groups, even though the world itself is far more nuanced than this suggests.

This was never truer than in 2023. At the start of the year, inflation enthusiasts argued for a generational shift in inflation
expectations — forecasting a return to the economic malaise of the 1970s.

Meanwhile economic pessimists foresaw an avalanche of consumer and business failures resulting from the higher interest
costs.

Thankfully, neither outcome came to pass, and inflation slowed meaningfully even as the world economy continued to grow
at close to 3%. This year is a reminder that the volume of the debate is often a poor indicator of the likelihood of outcomes.

Financial markets price in uncertainty, which dampens valuations and helps enhance the long term returns for patient
investors.

As we entered 2023, we recognized a shift in this balance due to a decline in global energy prices. Natural gas prices fell
rapidly as alternative supply and lower demand helped meet Europe’s needs.

Interest rate rises quickly delivered price stability as consumer demand started to slow. Today US and European headline
inflation is near 3% and even core measures, which respond with a lag, have declined. Even the UK, a laggard in the inflation
fight. has made some notable progress in recent months. On the downside, economic growth in the UK and Europe has ground
to a halt and market participants expect interest rate cuts as early as the second quarter of 2024.

The US economy has surprised the sceptics by delivering 2.5% growth in 2023. Buoyed by a resilient labour market
consumers dipped into pandemic era savings. US companies have started to grow their earnings, delivering 4% earnings
growth in the most recent quarter. This has helped support a more positive economic narrative.

In terms of equity performance, US and Japanese shares generated the strongest returns driven by their technology and
consumer discretionary exposure. Smaller UK Mid Cap companies significantly lagged the broader UK equity market. Across
fixed income, riskier high yield debt strongly outperformed top-rated government bonds year-to-date. Meanwhile inflation-
linked UK debt produced poor returns.

As we think about the coming year, we are excited by elevated expected returns across a range of assets. While the debate on
the depth of the upcoming recession is likely to rage for some time, we expect declining inflation and a slowdown in economic

growth.

A mild US recession, which is now the base case for many investors, could still prove challenging for earnings from cyclical
sectors. We anticipate earnings growth in these sectors to bottom in the first half of next year.

Performance Review

The Fund only started trading in August 2023, so it is too early to give a full annual performance report.

Outlook

Monetary policy has been described as “driving while looking through the rear-view mirror”. The navigation data available

to a central bank relates to the state of the economy weeks or even months ago. Nowcasts can help to track the current state
of the economy, but central banks still face unpredictable and lagged effects of their changes to rates.

*Formerly Atlantic House US Enhanced Equity Fund. Name change effective on 4" August 2023.
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Investment Manager’s Report (Continued)

Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund* (Continued)
Outlook (Continued)

The rear-view mirror shows inflation has been steadily declining in the US and UK. The chart shows the profile of headline
inflation in the US and UK, where the dotted line indicates the latest headline inflation figures. To the right of this we show
the implied future inflation based on the zero-coupon inflation swaps market.

This allows policymakers to view how the market sees the future unfold:

Market inflation swap rates (annual inflation rate)

12%

10%
8% ;

| UK CPI4.6%

6%

US CP13.2%

4%

2%

0%

abc Jnbe gk b

> > > > %) > E ¥ > > > ¥l I b b &
P 42 v . \S"'L M2 v T L Lo g \)\.’L N}qﬂ,’if A o \p“' o

22 . o) e g il
o (,e\ao ‘gx’b‘ P*Q‘ \!\'b‘! 3\)0 A

I B
g : o ; SV
V“\ﬁ; CJQQ OD\ ‘;0‘1 Q¥ N Qe\o \!\'D ‘?9‘ \}\’b\g \\)0
UK CPI —US CPI

The Dynamic Duration Fund's Inflation Momentum signal increases fixed income exposure in a steadily declining inflation
environment. At present, it has no allocation to inflation in both the US and UK, but at some point, the rate of decline in
inflation will level out. Then fixed income exposure will be dialled back and inflation swap exposure increased. This will
likely happen within a few months for the US allocation but will likely take until mid-summer for the UK to reach the same
signal.

It is of some comfort to central banks that the markets expect inflation to continue to decline, but other forward-looking
indicators - such as surveys of inflation expectations - are also useful. These surveys in the US and UK show inflation is
under control, yet considerable uncertainty remains.

Atlantic House Investments Limited

Date: 25 April 2024

*Formerly Atlantic House US Enhanced Equity Fund. Name change effective on 4" August 2023.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31° December 2023 and 2022

Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund*

ADDF AUEE**
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note £ £

ASSETS
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investments in Transferable Securities 3 17,737,828 13,842,247

Investments in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 1,271,760 26,597
Cash at bank 5 4,259,064 852,352
Cash held as collateral 5 1,229 1,277,398
Dividends and interest receivable 109,464 54,004
Amount receivable on subscriptions 435,161 -
Receivable from Investment Manager 7,10 273,981 250,781
Other receivables - 47
TOTAL ASSETS 24,088,487 16,303,426
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investments in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 353,483 593,314
Bank Overdraft 5 20,434 -
Collateral due to brokers 5 1,229 1,033,448
Investment management fees payable 7,10 235,926 200,224
Management fee payable 7 334 1,809
Administration fees payable 7 7,345 5,023
Transfer agency fees payable 7 2,179 1,059
Directors’ fees payable 7 84 -
Depositary and depositary oversight fees payable 7 4,078 3,170
Audit fees payable 7 5,173 5,416
Redemptions payable 11,084 52,648
Other fees payable 12,641 10,581
TOTAL LIABILITIES (excluding net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares) 653,990 1,906,692
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES 23,434,497 14,396,734

*Formerly Atlantic House US Enhanced Equity Fund. Name change effective on 4" August 2023.

**As governed by the supplement dated 4" August 2023,the functional currency of the Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund changed
from USD to GBP. Comparatives have been converted from USD to GBP using the prevailing exchange rate at 31% December 2022 of
1.202900:1.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the Financial Year Ended 31° December 2023 and 2022

Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund*

ADDF AUEE**
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note £ £
INCOME
Bond interest income 2 349,464 161,213
Net realised and unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 9 3,348,901 (5,499,423)
Bank Interest 50,079 18,492
Expense reimbursement from Investment Manager 7,10 105,777 110,564
Swap interest income 2 115,904 63,060
Other income 4,249 8,365
TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME/(LOSS) 3,974,374 (5,137,729)
EXPENSES
Investment management fees 7,10 46,206 66,946
Management fees 7 2,747 22,542
Administration fees 7 22,891 21,556
Directors’ fees 7 8,572 8,192
Depositary and depositary oversight fees 7 17,094 14,746
Audit fees 7 7,359 7,773
Transfer agency fees 7 5,497 3,909
Swap interest expenses 2 4,328 92,463
Bank interest expense 29,335 5,751
Other fees and expenses 7 43,630 37,656
Total Operating Expenses 187,659 281,534
Operating Profit/(Loss) 3,786,715 (5,419,263)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations 3,786,715 (5,419,263)

*Formerly Atlantic House US Enhanced Equity Fund. Name change effective on 4" August 2023.

**The functional currency of the Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund changed from USD to GBP with effect from 4 August 2023.

Comparatives have been converted from USD to GBP using the average exchange rate during the year.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements. All of the results for the financial year relate to

continuing operations.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares

Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund*

ADDF AUEE**
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
£ £
Net Assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
beginning of the financial year 14,396,734 21,102,765
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 3,786,715 (5,419,263)
Capital transactions
Issue of redeemable shares during the financial year 19,449,159 457,426
Redemption of redeemable shares during the financial year (13,442,835) (4,190,658)
Currency translation adjustment*** (755,276) 2,446,464
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the end
of the financial year 23,434,497 14,396,734

*Formerly Atlantic House US Enhanced Equity Fund. Name change effective on 4" August 2023.

**The functional currency of the Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund changed from USD to GBP with effect from 4™ August 2023.
Comparatives have been converted from USD to GBP using the prevailing exchange rate at 315 December 2022.

***The currency translation adjustment above is as a result of the converted functional currency from USD to GBP. This is an accounting
adjustment for financial reporting presentation purposes and has no impact on the dealing Net Assets Values.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund*

ADDF AUEE**
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
£ £
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 3,786,715 (5,419,263)
Adjustment to reconcile increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations to net cash used in operating activities
Bond interest income (349.,464) (161,213)
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 3,437,251 (5,580,476)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Net (increase)/decrease in financial assets and liabilities at fair value (5,380,575) 4,603,072
Increase in other receivables (23,153) (128,577)
Increase in payables 40,478 80,908
Cash used in operating activities (1,925,999) (1,025,073)
Interest received 294,004 174,877
Net cash used in operating activities (1,631,995) (850,196)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 19,013,998 457,426
Payment on redemptions of redeemable participating shares (13,484,399) (4,156,505)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 5,529,599 (3,699,079)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash 3,897,604 (4,549,275)
Currency translation adjustment®** (755,276) 2,446,464
Net Cash at the start of the financial year 1,096,302 3,199,113
Net Cash at the end of the financial year 4,238,630 1,096,302
Analysis of Cash
Cash at the start of the financial year 852,352 2,904,098
Cash held as collateral at the start of the financial year 1,277,398 296,481
Overdraft at the start of the financial year - (308)
Collateral due to brokers at the start of the financial year (1,033,448) (1,158)
Cash at the end of the financial year 4,259,064 852,352
Cash held as collateral at the end of the financial year 1,229 1,277,398
Overdraft at the end of the financial year (20,434) -
Collateral due to brokers at the end of the financial year (1,229) (1,033,448)

*Formerly Atlantic House US Enhanced Equity Fund. Name change effective on 4™ August 2023.

**The functional currency of the Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund changed from USD to GBP with effect from 4™ August 2023.
Comparatives have been converted from USD to GBP using the prevailing exchange rate at 315 December 2022.

***The currency translation adjustment above is as a result of the converted functional currency from USD to GBP. This is an accounting
adjustment for financial reporting presentation purposes and has no impact on the dealing Net Assets Values.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

77



GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Schedule of Investments
As at 31°" December 2023

Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund*

(expressed in GBP) Acquisition Fair ¢4 net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value  assets
1) INVESTMENTS
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
1) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS
GREAT BRITAIN
United Kingdom Gilt 0.13% 31/01/2024 1,650,000 GBP 1,619,010 1,643,664 7.01
United Kingdom Gilt 0.25% 31/01/2025 2,800,000 GBP 2,642,853 2,680,189 11.44
United Kingdom Gilt 0.63% 07/06/2025 1,820,000 GBP 1,704,404 1,734,314 7.40
United Kingdom Gilt 1.00% 22/04/2024 2,770,000 GBP 2,712,807 2,736,483 11.68
United Kingdom Gilt 2.75% 07/09/2024 3,190,000 GBP 3,129,023 3,149,040 13.43
United Kingdom Gilt 5.00% 07/03/2025 2,710,001 GBP 2,716,593 2,733,822 11.66
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt
0.13% 10/08/2028 1,122,000 GBP 1,500,774 1,537,436 6.56
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt
4.13% 22/07/2030 434,000 GBP 1,483,846 1,522,880 6.50
17,509,310 17,737,828 75.68
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS 17,509,310 17,737,828 75.68
TOTAL TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK
EXCHANGE LISTING 17,509,310 17,737,828 75.68
B) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS
Unrealised % net
Maturity Currency Bought Currency Sold Counterparty Appreciation/(Depreciation)  assets
02/01/2024  GBP 6,482 USD (8,246) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 13 0.00
02/01/2024  GBP USD (7) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
31/01/2024 USD 4,211,124 GBP (3,292,848) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 9,873 0.04
31/01/2024  USD 4,048 GBP (3,175)  CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (1) 0.00
9,885 0.04
TOTAL FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS 9,885 0.04
EQUITY LINKED SWAPS
Underlying Index % net
Rate Floating Counterparties Basket Notional Currency  Fair Value  assets
12m USD SOFR JP Morgan Securities Plc.  USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 940,000 USD 69,625 0.30
12m USD SOFR JP Morgan Securities Plc.  USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 870,000 USD 41,761 0.18
12m USD SOFR JP Morgan Securities Plc.  USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 1,010,000 USD 42,012 0.18
12m USD SOFR JP Morgan Securities Plc.  USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 1,640,000 USD 85,869 0.37
12m USD SOFR JP Morgan Securities Plc.  USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 1,790,000 USD (1,907)  (0.01)
12m USD SOFR JP Morgan Securities Plc.  USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 2,120,000 USD 81,079 0.34

*Formerly Atlantic House US Enhanced Equity Fund. Name change effective on 4™ August 2023.
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EQUITY LINKED SWAPS (continued)

Underlying Index % net
Rate Floating Counterparties Basket Notional Currency Fair Value  assets
12m USD SOFR JP Morgan Securities Plc. ~ USD-SOFR COMPOUND(1D) 350,000 USD 25,526 0.11
12m USD SOFR JP Morgan Securities Plc. ~ USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 1,860,000 USD 74,927 0.32
12m USD SOFR JP Morgan Securities Ple. ~ USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 1,030,000 USD 67,683 0.29
12m USD SOFR JP Morgan Securities Plc. ~ USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 4,185,000 USD 42,762 0.18
12m USD SOFR JP Morgan Securities Ple. ~ USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 3,250,000 USD (83,108)  (0.35)
GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. = COMPOUND(1D) 500,000 GBP 29,777 0.13
GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. =~ COMPOUND(1D) 650,000 GBP 59,163 0.25
GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. =~ COMPOUND(1D) 1,280,000 GBP 927 0.00
GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. =~ COMPOUND(1D) 580,000 GBP 59,369 0.25
GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. =~ COMPOUND(1D) 500,000 GBP 34,436 0.15
GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. = COMPOUND(1D) 270,000 GBP 27,769 0.11
GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. =~ COMPOUND(1D) 1,180,000 GBP 60,378 0.26
GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. =~ COMPOUND(1D) 450,000 GBP 18,420 0.08
GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. = COMPOUND(1D) 970,000 GBP 72,849 0.31
GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. =~ COMPOUND(1D) 750,000 GBP 52,066 0.22
GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO  JP Morgan Securities Plc. = COMPOUND(1D) 2,530,000 GBP 202,900 0.87
Merrill Lynch
12m USD SOFR International USD-SOFR-COMPOUND(1D) 1,160,000 USD 56,161 0.23
Merrill Lynch GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO International COMPOUND(1D) 1,130,000 GBP 56,415 0.24
Merrill Lynch GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO International COMPOUND(1D) 1,499,793 GBP (28,257)  (0.12)
Merrill Lynch GBP-SONIA-
12m GBP SONIO International COMPOUND(1D) 1,501,274 GBP (26,164)  (0.11)
1,122,438 4.78
TOTAL EQUITY LINKED SWAPS 1,122,438 4.78
INFLATION SWAPS
% net
Description Counterparties Receives  Pays Notional Currency  Fair Value  assets
USCPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 2.64 USCPI 10Y 210,000 USD (3,489)  (0.01)
USCPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 2.64 USCPI10Y 1,050,000 USD (14,435)  (0.06)
USCPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 2.44 USCPI 10Y 2,170,000 USD (5,333)  (0.02)
USCPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 2.55 USCPI 10Y 260,000 USD (2,688)  (0.01)

*Formerly Atlantic House US Enhanced Equity Fund. Name change effective on 4" August 2023.
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INFLATION SWAPS (continued)

% net
Description Counterparties Receives Pays Notional Currency  Fair Value  assets
USCPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 2.67 USCPI10Y 260,000 USD (4,848)  (0.02)
USCPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 243 USCPI10Y 1,330,000 USD (3,128)  (0.01)
USCPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 2.71 USCPI 10Y 240,000 USD (4,937)  (0.02)
USCPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 2.7 USCPI10Y 80,000 USD (1,611)  (0.01)
USCPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 2.66 USCPI10Y 410,000 USD (7,266)  (0.03)
UKRPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 3.80 UKRPI10Y 250,000 GBP (7,481)  (0.03)
UKRPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 3.61 UKRPI10Y 220,000 GBP (1,929)  (0.01)
UKRPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 3.73 UKRPI10Y 560,000 GBP (13,235)  (0.06)
UKRPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 3.82  UKRPI 10Y 250,000 GBP (7,991)  (0.03)
UKRPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 3.75 UKRPI 10Y 590,000 GBP (14,982)  (0.06)
UKRPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 3.86 UKRPI10Y 140,000 GBP (4,643)  (0.02)
UKRPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 3.87 UKRPI10Y 1,260,000 GBP (50,061)  (0.21)
UKRPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 3.82 UKRPI10Y 380,000 GBP (12,334)  (0.05)
UKRPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 391 UKRPI10Y 290,000 GBP (11,021)  (0.05)
UKRPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 3.84 UKRPI10Y 490,000 GBP (16,909)  (0.07)
UKRPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 3.55 UKRPI10Y 1,100,000 GBP (3,242)  (0.01)
UKRPI 10y Inflation
Swap JP Morgan Securities Plc. 3.88 UKRPI 10Y 320,000 GBP (11,174)  (0.05)
USCPI 10y Inflation
Swap Merrill Lynch International 2.58 USCPI10Y 290,000 USD (3,105)  (0.01)
USCPI 10y Inflation
Swap Merrill Lynch International 2.53 USCPI10Y 530,000 USD (4,235)  (0.02)
USCPI 10y Inflation
Swap Merrill Lynch International 2.54 USCPI10Y 460,000 USD (3,969)  (0.02)
(214,046)  (0.89)
TOTAL INFLATION SWAPS (214,046)  (0.89)
TOTAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 918,277 3.93

*Formerly Atlantic House US Enhanced Equity Fund. Name change effective on 4™ August 2023.
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% net
Description Fair Value  assets
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 18,656,105 79.61
OTHER ASSETS 5,078,899 21.67
OTHER LIABILITIES (300,507) (1.28)
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES 23,434,497 100.00

% of Total Assets

Assets
Investment in Transferable Securities 73.64
Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 5.28
Cash at Bank 17.68
Cash held as Collateral 0.01
Other Assets 3.39
Total Assets 100.00

*Formerly Atlantic House US Enhanced Equity Fund. Name change effective on 4™ August 2023.
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Significant Portfolio Movements (unaudited)
315 December 2023

Atlantic House Dynamic Duration Fund*

Purchases
Security Name Quantity Cost % of
£ Total Purchases
United Kingdom Gilt 2.75% 07/09/2024 3,640,000 3,568,493 9.72
United Kingdom Gilt 1.00% 22/04/2024 3,270,000 3,199,132 8.71
United Kingdom Gilt 5.00% 07/03/2025 3,110,000 3,117,034 8.49
United Kingdom Gilt 0.25% 31/01/2025 2,800,000 2,642,853 7.20
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 18/07/2023 2,800,000 2,195,386 5.98
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 25/07/2023 2,800,000 2,193,131 5.97
United Kingdom Gilt 0.13% 31/01/2024 2,100,000 2,058,930 5.61
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 15/08/2023 2,300,000 1,804,480 491
United Kingdom Gilt 0.63% 07/06/2025 1,820,000 1,704,404 4.64
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 17/08/2023 2,100,000 1,648,805 4.49
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 27/07/2023 2,000,000 1,563,176 4.26
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/05/2023 2,000,000 1,551,989 4.23
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 29/06/2023 2,000,000 1,546,081 4.21
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 24/08/2023 2,000,000 1,538,243 4.19
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 0.13% 10/08/2028 1,122,000 1,500,774 4.09
United Kingdom Gilt 2.25% 07/09/2023 1,500,000 1,496,400 4.08
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 4.13% 22/07/2030 434,000 1,483,846 4.04
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 01/08/2023 1,000,000 784,246 2.14
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 03/08/2023 1,000,000 770,618 2.10
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 14/03/2023 250,000 195,500 0.53
Sales
Security Name Quantity Proceed % of
£ Total Sales
United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds 2.38% 15/01/2027 3,185,900 3,852,299 11.81
United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds 0.25% 15/01/2025 3,835,000 3,715,914 11.39
United States Treasury Note/Bond 0.13% 31/01/2023 4,000,000 3,152,816 9.66
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 18/07/2023 2,800,000 2,204,212 6.76
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 25/07/2023 2,800,000 2,203,825 6.75
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 15/08/2023 2,300,000 1,801,585 5.52
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 17/08/2023 2,100,000 1,643,075 5.04
United States Treasury Note/Bond 0.13% 28/02/2023 2,000,000 1,576,408 4.83
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/05/2023 2,000,000 1,575,423 4.83
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 27/07/2023 2,000,000 1,568,850 4.81
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 29/06/2023 2,000,000 1,568,444 4.81
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 24/08/2023 2,000,000 1,563,229 4.79
United Kingdom Gilt 2.25% 07/09/2023 1,500,001 1,516,876 4.65
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 03/08/2023 1,000,000 787,712 2.41
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 16/02/2023 1,000,000 787,712 2.41
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 01/08/2023 1,000,000 787,712 2.41
United Kingdom Gilt 1.00% 22/04/2024 500,000 488,371 1.50
United Kingdom Gilt 2.75% 07/09/2024 450,000 442,545 1.36
United Kingdom Gilt 0.13% 31/01/2024 450,000 441,060 1.35
United Kingdom Gilt 5.00% 07/03/2025 400,000 401,384 1.23

*Formerly Atlantic House US Enhanced Equity Fund. Name change effective on 4™ August 2023.
The tables above show a breakdown of material purchases and sales of the Portfolios in accordance with Central Bank UCITS Regulations

79(2) requirements. All purchases and sales of investments exceeding 1% of the total value of each purchases and sales respectively, a
minimum of 20 of each such purchases and sales, are disclosed.
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Atlantic House Global Defined Returns Fund

Market Review

A wise man once pointed out that the stock market is not formed by thousands of clever men and women independently
arriving at their own views.

It is much more like a school exam hall where two bright kids at the front — one an optimistic bull, and one a pessimistic bear
— pass back the answers to the rest of the class. Ultimately each investment has a buyer and a seller and so views form into
two basic groups, even though the world itself is far more nuanced than this suggests.

This was never truer than in 2023. At the start of the year, inflation enthusiasts argued for a generational shift in inflation
expectations — forecasting a return to the economic malaise of the 1970s.

Meanwhile economic pessimists foresaw an avalanche of consumer and business failures resulting from the higher interest
costs.

Thankfully, neither outcome came to pass, and inflation slowed meaningfully even as the world economy continued to grow
at close to 3%. This year is a reminder that the volume of the debate is often a poor indicator of the likelihood of outcomes.

Financial markets price in uncertainty, which dampens valuations and helps enhance the long term returns for patient
investors.

As we entered 2023, we recognized a shift in this balance due to a decline in global energy prices. Natural gas prices fell
rapidly as alternative supply and lower demand helped meet Europe’s needs.

Interest rate rises quickly delivered price stability as consumer demand started to slow. Today US and European headline
inflation is near 3% and even core measures, which respond with a lag, have declined. Even the UK, a laggard in the inflation
fight. has made some notable progress in recent months. On the downside, economic growth in the UK and Europe has ground
to a halt and market participants expect interest rate cuts as early as the second quarter of 2024.

The US economy has surprised the sceptics by delivering 2.5% growth in 2023. Buoyed by a resilient labour market
consumers dipped into pandemic era savings. US companies have started to grow their earnings, delivering 4% earnings
growth in the most recent quarter. This has helped support a more positive economic narrative.

In terms of equity performance, US and Japanese shares generated the strongest returns driven by their technology and
consumer discretionary exposure. Smaller UK Mid Cap companies significantly lagged the broader UK equity market. Across
fixed income, riskier high yield debt strongly outperformed top-rated government bonds year-to-date. Meanwhile inflation-
linked UK debt produced poor returns.

As we think about the coming year, we are excited by elevated expected returns across a range of assets. While the debate on
the depth of the upcoming recession is likely to rage for some time, we expect declining inflation and a slowdown in economic

growth.

A mild US recession, which is now the base case for many investors, could still prove challenging for earnings from cyclical
sectors. We anticipate earnings growth in these sectors to bottom in the first half of next year.

Performance Review

The Fund only started trading in August 2023, so it is too early to give a full annual performance report. However, the fund
has started as one would have expected and benefitted from the strong markets in the second half of 2023.

Outlook
Looking forwards to 2024, the pricing for potential new investments continues to be strong. We will see what the markets do

over the next few months which will determine how much of the Fund will need rolling into these new positions. We have
always targeted a return of 7% to 8% with as little risk as possible and will continue to do so.
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Outlook (Continued)
The table below shows our scenario analysis grid as of 30 December 2023. These are estimates based on our models and are

unlikely to be exactly accurate. Having said that, as mentioned above, past scenario analyses have proven to be reasonably
accurate and investors find these grids very useful for planning purposes.

The grid below shows that the Fund is in good shape looking forwards, in all but the severest of sustained market falls.

3 months -2.22%

il e [1445% -490%  240%  7.71%  9.87%  10.53%  10.83%
2 years 10.44% 1.02%  9.61%  1545% 17.77%  18.44%  18.76%
3 years 579%  7.47%  17.74% 23.82%  25.79%  26.42%  26.73%
Intrinsic NAV- 333900 42170  24.88%  5.61%  5.02%  5.12%  5.12%
Change

Duration 565 516 302 071 066 066  0.66

Intrinsic Value

. 5.23% 7.05% 7.63% 7.99% 7.92% 7.92% 7.92%
(Annualised)

Atlantic House Investments Limited

Date: 25 April 2024
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31° December 2023

Atlantic House Global Defined Returns Fund

AGDR*
31 Dec 2023
Note $
ASSETS
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investments in Transferable Securities 3 23,592,416

Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 986,539
Cash at bank 5 4,667,578
Cash held as collateral 5 80,000
Dividends and interest receivable 77,919
Amount receivable on subscriptions 521,981
Receivable from Investment Manager 7,10 31,857
Other receivables 1,553
TOTAL ASSETS 29,959,843
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 284,786
Investment management fees payable 7, 10 22,633
Management fee payable 7 443
Transfer agency fees payable 7 2,228
Directors’ fees payable 7 107
Depositary and depositary oversight fees payable 7 2,547
Audit fees payable 7 4,937
Redemptions payable 967
Other fees payable 7,911
TOTAL LIABILITIES (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares) 326,559
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES 29,633,284

*Launched on 26" June 2023. Therefore, no comparatives available.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the Financial Year Ended 31° December 2023

Atlantic House Global Defined Returns Fund

AGDR*
31 Dec 2023
Note $
INCOME
Bond interest income 2 335,458
Net realised and unrealised gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 9 1,446,866
Bank interest 30,200
Expense reimbursement from Investment Manager 7,10 31,857
Swap interest income 2 26,548
Other income 2,254
TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME 1,873,183
EXPENSES
Investment management fees 7,10 22,633
Management fees 7 1,600
Directors’ fees 7 6,013
Depositary and depositary oversight fees 7 3,884
Audit fees 7 4,937
Transfer agency fees 7 5,614
Swap interest expenses 2 280,269
Bank interest expenses 1
Formation expenses 7 32,721
Other fees and expenses 7 24,710
Total Operating Expenses 382,382
Operating profit 1,490,801
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations 1,490,801

*Launched on 26" June 2023. Therefore, no comparatives available.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements. All of the results for the financial year relate
to continuing operations.
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Redeemable Participating Shares

Atlantic House Global Defined Returns Fund

AGDR*
31 Dec 2023
$
Net Assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
beginning of the financial year -
Increase in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 1,490,801
Capital transactions
Issue of redeemable shares during the financial year 28,454,825
Redemption of redeemable shares during the financial year (312,342)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the end
of the financial year 29,633,284

*Launched on 26" June 2023. Therefore, no comparatives available.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Atlantic House Global Defined Returns Fund

AGDR*
31 Dec 2023
$
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations 1,490,801
Adjustment to reconcile increase in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations to net cash used in operating activities
Bond interest income (335,458)
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,155,343

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Net increase in financial assets and liabilities at fair value
Increase in other receivables
Increase in payables

Cash used in operating activities

Interest received

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares

Payment on redemptions of redeemable participating shares
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash

Net Cash at the start of the financial year

Net Cash at the end of the financial year

Analysis of Cash
Cash at the start of the financial year

Cash held as collateral at the start of the financial year
Overdraft at the start of the financial year
Collateral due to brokers at the start of the financial year

Cash at the end of the financial year

Cash held as collateral at the end of the financial year
Overdraft at the end of the financial year

Collateral due to brokers at the end of the financial year

*Launched on 26™ June 2023. Therefore, no comparatives available.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Schedule of Investments
As at 31°" December 2023

Atlantic House Global Defined Returns Fund*

(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity Currency cost Value  assets
1) INVESTMENTS
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
1) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds
0.25% 15/07/2029 2,340,000 USD 2,500,074 2,604,779 8.79
United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds
1.63% 15/10/2027 3,623,000 USD 3,689,974 3,735,613 12.60
United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds
2.38% 15/10/2028 3,725,000 USD 3,787,619 3,855,446  13.01
United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds
3.88% 15/04/2029 1,220,000 USD 2,476,130 2,520,633 8.51
12,453,797 12,716,471 42091
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS 12,453,797 12,716,471 4291
TOTAL TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK
EXCHANGE LISTING 12,453,797 12,716,471 4291
B) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES
1) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : BONDS
FRANCE
Credit Agricole CIB Financial Solutions SA 6.21%
22/08/2025 EMTN 1,500,000 USD 1,500,000 1,500,000 5.06
1,500,000 1,500,000 5.06
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : BONDS 1,500,000 1,500,000  5.06
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES 1,500,000 1,500,000 5.06
C) MONEY MARKET INSTRUMENTS
1) TREASURY BILLS
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 09/01/2024 2,200,000 USD 2,178,001 2,197,780 7.41
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 16/01/2024 2,500,000 USD 2,469,200 2,494910 8.42
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 23/01/2024 2,500,000 USD 2,469,956 2,492,311 8.41
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/01/2024 2,200,000 USD 2,173,355 2,190,944 7.39
9,290,512 9,375,945  31.63
TOTAL TREASURY BILLS 9,290,512 9,375,945  31.63
TOTAL MONEY MARKET INSTRUMENTS 9,290,512 9,375,945  31.63

*Launched on 26™ June 2023.
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)

Atlantic House Global Defined Returns Fund*

D) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Unrealised % net
Maturity Currency Bought Currency Sold Counterparty (Depreciation)/Appreciation  assets
02/01/2024 USD 444903 GBP (350,000) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (1,285) 0.00
03/01/2024 USD 74,936  GBP (58,705) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 97 0.00
31/01/2024 GBP 22,506,660 USD  (28,788,269) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (91,219)  (0.31)
31/01/2024  GBP 673,233 USD (861,132)  CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (2,729)  (0.01)
(95,136)  (0.32)
TOTAL FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS (95,136)  (0.32)
AUTOCALLABLE SWAPS
Underlying Index Fair o, net
Maturity Rate Floating Counterparties Basket Notional Currency Value assets
02/04/2029  12m USD SOFR  Merrill Lynch International ~ SPX/UKX 2,760,000 USD 71,208 0.24
Canadian Imperial Bank of
25/04/2029  12m USD SOFR  Commerce SPX 1,860,000 USD 88,884 0.30
31/05/2029  12m USD SOFR  JP Morgan Securities Plc. SPX/XINOI 1,800,000 USD 12,769 0.04
27/06/2029  12m USD SOFR  Merrill Lynch International ~ SPX 2,100,000 USD 64,050 0.22
Canadian Imperial Bank of
03/07/2029  12m USD SOFR  Commerce SPX 1,410,000 USD 50,470 0.17
16/07/2029  12m USD SOFR  Merrill Lynch International ~ SPX/SXS5E 3,340,000 USD 143,954 0.49
Canadian Imperial Bank of
07/08/2029  12m USD SOFR  Commerce SPX/SXSE 2,610,000 USD 115,265 0.39
Canadian Imperial Bank of
07/09/2029  12m USD SOFR  Commerce SPX/RTY 2,590,000 USD 65,338 0.22
16/10/2029  12m USD SOFR  Morgan Stanley SPX/ASS1 1,400,000 USD 47,856 0.16
27/11/2029  12m USD SOFR  Natixis Paris SPX/NKY 1,850,000 USD 102,675 0.35
13/12/2029  12m USD SOFR  Natixis Paris SPX/NKY 2,200,000 USD 111,980 0.38
22/01/2030 12m USD SOFR  Merrill Lynch International ~SPX/NKY 1,540,000 USD 31,416 0.11
22/02/2030  12m USD SOFR  Morgan Stanley SPX/SXSE 2,600,000 USD 80,577 0.27
986,442 3.34
TOTAL AUTOCALLABLE SWAPS 986,442 3.34
INFLATION SWAPS
Fair 9 pet
Description Counterparties Receives  Pays Notional Currency Value assets
UST 0.25% July (12m USD
2029 JP Morgan Securities Plc. 0.25 SOFR+0.46%) 2,501,460 USD (88,747)  (0.30)
UST 1.63% (12m USD
October 2027 JP Morgan Securities Plc. 1.63  SOFR+0.44%) 3,698,999 USD (28,718)  (0.10)
UST 2.38% (12m USD
October 2028 JP Morgan Securities Plc. 2.38 SOFR+0.43%) 3,798,792  USD (66,277)  (0.22)

*Launched on 26™ June 2023.
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)
As at 31*" December 2023

Atlantic House Global Defined Returns Fund*

D) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

INFLATION SWAPS (continued)

Fair % net
Description Counterparties Receives Pays Notional Currency Value  assets

UST 3.88% (12m USD
April 2029 JP Morgan Securities Plc. 3.88  SOFR+0.45%) 2,509,209 USD (5,811)  (0.02)
(189,553)  (0.64)
TOTAL INFLATION SWAPS (189,553)  (0.64)
TOTAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 701,753 2.38
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 24,294,169 81.98
OTHER ASSETS 5,380,888 18.16
OTHER LIABILITIES (41,773)  (0.14)
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES 29,633,284 100.00

% of Total Assets
Assets

Investment in Transferable Securities 78.75
Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 3.29
Cash at Bank 15.58
Cash held as Collateral 0.27
Other Assets 2.11
Total Assets 100.00

*Launched on 26" June 2023.
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GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Significant Portfolio Movements (unaudited)
315 December 2023

Atlantic House Global Defined Returns Fund*

Purchases
Security Name Quantity Cost % of
$ Total Purchases
United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds 2.38% 15/10/2028 3,725,000 3,787,619 10.40
United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds 1.63% 15/10/2027 3,623,000 3,689,974 10.13
United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds 0.25% 15/07/2029 2,340,000 2,500,074 6.86
United States Treasury Inflation Indexed Bonds 3.88% 15/04/2029 1,220,000 2,476,130 6.80
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 23/01/2024 2,500,000 2,469,956 6.78
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 16/01/2024 2,500,000 2,469,200 6.78
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 24/10/2023 2,230,000 2,210,769 6.07
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 09/01/2024 2,200,000 2,178,001 5.98
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/01/2024 2,200,000 2,173,355 597
Credit Agricole CIB Financial Solutions SA 6.21% 22/08/2025 EMTN 1,500,000 1,500,000 4.12
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/11/2023 1,500,000 1,473,726 4.05
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 24/11/2023 1,330,000 1,305,813 3.59
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 07/12/2023 1,250,000 1,227,214 3.37
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 19/12/2023 1,200,000 1,188,683 3.26
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 05/12/2023 1,000,000 984,542 2.70
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 12/12/2023 1,000,000 984,256 2.70
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 26/10/2023 930,000 914,915 2.51
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 26/09/2023 830,000 820,044 2.25
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 28/09/2023 830,000 819,645 2.25
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 29/08/2023 630,000 624,768 1.72
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 31/08/2023 630,000 624,597 1.71
Sales
Security Name Quantity Proceed % of
$ Total Sales
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 24/10/2023 2,230,000 2,230,000 16.70
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/11/2023 1,500,000 1,495,690 11.20
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 24/11/2023 1,330,000 1,330,000 9.96
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 07/12/2023 1,250,000 1,250,000 9.36
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 19/12/2023 1,200,000 1,200,000 8.98
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 05/12/2023 1,000,000 1,000,000 7.49
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 12/12/2023 1,000,000 1,000,000 7.49
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 26/10/2023 930,000 930,000 6.96
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 28/09/2023 830,000 830,000 6.21
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 26/09/2023 830,000 830,000 6.21
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 31/08/2023 630,000 630,000 4.72
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 29/08/2023 630,000 630,000 4.72

*Launched on 26™ June 2023.

The tables above show a breakdown of material purchases and sales of the Portfolios in accordance with Central Bank UCITS Regulations
79(2) requirements. All purchases and sales of investments exceeding 1% of the total value of each purchases and sales respectively, a
minimum of 20 of each such purchases and sales, are disclosed. All purchases are disclosed in the above table. As there were less than 20

of sales during the year, all sales are disclosed in the above table.
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Investment Manager’s Report

Atlantic House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund

Market Review

A wise man once pointed out that the stock market is not formed by thousands of clever men and women independently
arriving at their own views.

It is much more like a school exam hall where two bright kids at the front — one an optimistic bull, and one a pessimistic bear
— pass back the answers to the rest of the class. Ultimately each investment has a buyer and a seller and so views form into
two basic groups, even though the world itself is far more nuanced than this suggests.

This was never truer than in 2023. At the start of the year, inflation enthusiasts argued for a generational shift in inflation
expectations — forecasting a return to the economic malaise of the 1970s.

Meanwhile economic pessimists foresaw an avalanche of consumer and business failures resulting from the higher interest
costs.

Thankfully, neither outcome came to pass, and inflation slowed meaningfully even as the world economy continued to grow
at close to 3%. This year is a reminder that the volume of the debate is often a poor indicator of the likelihood of outcomes.

Financial markets price in uncertainty, which dampens valuations and helps enhance the long term returns for patient
investors.

As we entered 2023, we recognized a shift in this balance due to a decline in global energy prices. Natural gas prices fell
rapidly as alternative supply and lower demand helped meet Europe’s needs.

Interest rate rises quickly delivered price stability as consumer demand started to slow. Today US and European headline
inflation is near 3% and even core measures, which respond with a lag, have declined. Even the UK, a laggard in the inflation
fight. has made some notable progress in recent months. On the downside, economic growth in the UK and Europe has ground
to a halt and market participants expect interest rate cuts as early as the second quarter of 2024.

The US economy has surprised the sceptics by delivering 2.5% growth in 2023. Buoyed by a resilient labour market
consumers dipped into pandemic era savings. US companies have started to grow their earnings, delivering 4% earnings
growth in the most recent quarter. This has helped support a more positive economic narrative.

In terms of equity performance, US and Japanese shares generated the strongest returns driven by their technology and
consumer discretionary exposure. Smaller UK Mid Cap companies significantly lagged the broader UK equity market. Across
fixed income, riskier high yield debt strongly outperformed top-rated government bonds year-to-date. Meanwhile inflation-
linked UK debt produced poor returns.

As we think about the coming year, we are excited by elevated expected returns across a range of assets. While the debate on
the depth of the upcoming recession is likely to rage for some time, we expect declining inflation and a slowdown in economic

growth.

A mild US recession, which is now the base case for many investors, could still prove challenging for earnings from cyclical
sectors. We anticipate earnings growth in these sectors to bottom in the first half of next year.

Performance Review

The Fund only started trading in December 2023, so it is too early to give a full annual performance report.

Outlook

The Fund is positioned to benefit if markets fall sharply, and tread water in the event of markets not being too disastrous. It
is too early to extrapolate performance so far into future performance, but the fund’s design has been rigorous and we are
confident that it should “do what it says on the tin”.

Atlantic House Investments Limited

Date: 25 April 2024
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GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc
Statement of Financial Position as at 31° December 2023

Atlantic House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund

AHTD*
31 Dec 2023
Note €
ASSETS
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investments in Transferable Securities 3 35,082,870

Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 1,111,440
Cash at bank 5 15,880,787
Cash held as collateral 5 460,000
Dividends and interest receivable 266,159
Receivable from Investment Manager 7,10 11,316
TOTAL ASSETS 52,812,572
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 422,347
Bank Overdraft 5 2,274,485
Investment management fees payable 7,10 10,250
Management fee payable 7 683
Administration fees payable 7 913
Directors’ fees payable 7 717
Depositary and depositary oversight fees payable 7 1,255
Audit fees payable 7 758
Other fees payable 16,225
TOTAL LIABILITIES (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares) 2,727,633
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES 50,084,939

*Launched on 4™ December 2023. Therefore, no comparatives available.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the Financial Year Ended 31° December 2023

Atlantic House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund

AHTD*
31 Dec 2023
Note €
INCOME
Bond interest income 2 50,147
Net realised and unrealised gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 9 4,465
Bank interest 49,811
Expense reimbursement from Investment Manager 7,10 11,316
TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME 115,739
EXPENSES
Investment management fees 7,10 10,250
Management fees 7 683
Administration fees 7 717
Directors’ fees 7 717
Depositary and depositary oversight fees 7 1,255
Audit fees 7 758
Bank interest expenses 9,235
Other fees and expenses 7 7,185
Total Operating Expenses 30,800
Operating profit 84,939
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations 84,939

*Launched on 4" December 2023. Therefore, no comparatives available.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements. All of the results for the financial year relate
to continuing operations.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares

Atlantic House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund

AHTD*
31 Dec 2023
€
Net Assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
beginning of the financial year -
Increase in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 84,939
Capital transactions
Issue of redeemable shares during the financial year 50,000,000
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the end
of the financial year 50,084,939

*Launched on 4™ December 2023. Therefore, no comparatives available.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Atlantic House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund

AHTD*
31 Dec 2023
€
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Shares from operations 84,939
Adjustment to reconcile increase in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations to net cash used in operating activities
Bond interest income (50,147)
Operating profit before working capital changes 34,792
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Net increase in financial assets and liabilities at fair value (35,771,963)
Increase in other receivables (11,316)
Increase in payables 30,801
Cash used in operating activities (35,717,686)
Interest received (216,012)
Net cash used in operating activities (35,933,698)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 50,000,000
Net cash provided by financing activities 50,000,000
Net increase in cash 14,066,302
Net Cash at the start of the financial year -
Net Cash at the end of the financial year 14,066,302
Analysis of Cash
Cash at the start of the financial year -
Cash held as collateral at the start of the financial year -
Overdraft at the start of the financial year -
Collateral due to brokers at the start of the financial year -
Cash at the end of the financial year 15,880,787
Cash held as collateral at the end of the financial year 460,000
Overdraft at the end of the financial year (2,274,485)

Collateral due to brokers at the end of the financial year -
*Launched on 4" December 2023. Therefore, no comparatives available.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Schedule of Investments

As at 31" December 2023

Atlantic House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund*

(expressed in EUR) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value assets
1) INVESTMENTS
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
1) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS
AUSTRIA
BAWAG PSK Bank fuer Arbeit und
Wirtschaft und Oesterreichische
Postsparkasse AG 1.13% 31/07/2028 1,000,000 EUR 920,230 930,200 1.86
Raiffeisen-Landesbank Steiermark AG
3.75% 26/06/2026 1,000,000 EUR 1,012,420 1,017,510 2.03
1,932,650 1,947,710 3.89
BELGIUM
KBC Bank NV 0.00% 03/12/2025 1,000,000 EUR 942,160 947,190 1.89
942,160 947,190 1.89
DENMARK
Jyske Realkredit A/S 1.00% 01/04/2026 1,500,000 DKK 192,560 193,822 0.39
Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab
1.00% 01/04/2025 1,500,000 DKK 195,759 195,899 0.39
Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab
2.00% 01/01/2025 1,500,000 DKK 198,495 198,311 0.39
Nykredit Realkredit AS 1.00% 01/01/2025 1,000,000 EUR 972,380 975,143 1.95
Nykredit Realkredit AS 1.00% 01/04/2026 1,500,000 DKK 192,359 193,414 0.39
Nykredit Realkredit AS 1.00% 01/07/2026 1,500,000 DKK 191,997 193,202 0.38
Nykredit Realkredit AS 2.00% 01/01/2026 3,000,000 DKK 394,979 396,569 0.79
Realkredit Danmark A/S 1.00% 01/01/2025 1,500,000 DKK 196,544 196,852 0.39
Realkredit Danmark A/S 1.00% 01/04/2026 1,500,000 DKK 192,761 193,873 0.39
2,727,834 2,737,085 5.46
FINLAND
Aktia Bank Oyj 0.38% 05/03/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 942,530 948,780 1.89
Nordea Kiinnitysluottopankki Oyj 0.25%
18/03/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 938,480 945,290 1.89
Nordea Kiinnitysluottopankki Oyj 2.63%
01/12/2025 EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 991,710 995,240 1.99
2,872,720 2,889,310 5.77
FRANCE
Arkea Home Loans SFH SA 2.75%
22/12/2026 1,000,000 EUR 994,110 1,000,590 2.00
AXA Bank Europe SCF 3.00% 03/11/2026
EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 998,540 1,005,240 2.01
BPCE SFH SA 0.40% 24/04/2025 EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 960,760 964,330 1.92

*Launched on 4" December 2023.
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)

As at 31" December 2023

Atlantic House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund*

(expressed in EUR) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value assets
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING (continued)
1) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS (continued)
FRANCE (continued)
BPCE SFH SA 3.13% 20/07/2027 1,000,000 EUR 1,006,430 1,013,400 2.02
Caisse Francaise de Financement Local
0.38% 23/06/2025 EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 956,800 960,650 1.92
Credit Agricole Home Loan SFH SA
3.25% 28/09/2026 1,000,000 EUR 1,008,000 1,013,910 2.02
French Republic Government Bond OAT
0.00% 25/02/2025 2,500,000 EUR 2,415,075 2,418,750 4.83
Societe Generale SFH SA 3.63%
31/07/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 1,015,270 1,020,690 2.04
9,354,985 9,397,560 18.76
GERMANY
Aareal Bank AG 0.01% 01/02/2028 1,000,000 EUR 884,000 893,990 1.78
Aareal Bank AG 3.00% 11/10/2027 EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 1,000,010 1,007,640 2.01
Bayerische Landesbank 0.88% 10/09/2025
EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 961,030 965,470 1.93
Berlin Hyp AG 3.00% 11/05/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 1,001,600 1,006,650 2.01
Bundesschatzanweisungen 3.10%
12/12/2025 2,500,000 EUR 2,529,150 2,532,875 5.05
Commerzbank AG 0.88% 08/09/2025
EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 961,790 965,900 1.93
DZ HYP AG 3.97% 31/03/2025 1,000,000 EUR 1,001,230 1,000,670 2.00
Natixis Pfandbriefbank AG 3.38%
15/12/2025 EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 1,004,110 1,006,900 2.01
Sparkasse Pforzheim Calw 3.70%
23/02/2026 1,000,000 EUR 1,016,820 1,016,820 2.03
10,359,740 10,396,915 20.75
NETHERLANDS
ABN AMRO Bank NV 0.88% 14/01/2026 1,000,000 EUR 956,110 961,630 1.92
Cooperatieve Rabobank UA 0.63%
26/04/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 946,870 953,400 1.90
de Volksbank NV 0.50% 30/01/2026
EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 946,580 952,680 1.90
ING Bank NV 3.00% 15/02/2026 1,000,000 EUR 998,540 1,003,290 2.00
NIBC Bank NV 0.63% 01/06/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 941,880 948,580 1.89
Van Lanschot Kempen NV 0.88%
15/02/2027 1,000,000 EUR 934,050 942,440 1.88
5,724,030 5,762,020 11.49

*Launched on 4" December 2023.
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)
As at 31*" December 2023

Atlantic House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund*

(expressed in EUR) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value assets
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING (continued)
1) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS (continued)
SWEDEN
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB 3.25%
04/11/2025 EMTN 1,000,000 EUR 1,002,490 1,005,080 2.01
1,002,490 1,005,080 2.01
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS 34,916,609 35,082,870 70.02
TOTAL TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK
EXCHANGE LISTING 34,916,609 35,082,870 70.02
B) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
OPTIONS
(expressed in EUR) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost value assets
SWITZERLAND
Put Euro Stoxx 50 PR 20/12/2024 3000.00 (1,904) EUR (55,903) (51,611) (0.10)
Put Euro Stoxx 50 PR 20/12/2024 4325.00 1,904 EUR 382,058 376,183 0.75
326,155 324,572 0.65
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
Put SPX - S&P 500 Indices 20/12/2024
3250.00 (2,493) USD (62,888) (65,564) (0.13)
Put SPX - S&P 500 Indices 20/12/2024
4660.00 2,493 USD 444318 428,890 0.86
Put SPX - S&P 500 Indices 20/12/2024
3150.00 (14) USD (34,109) (32,576) (0.07)
Put SPX - S&P 500 Indices 20/12/2024
4500.00 14 USD 232,004 194,527 0.39
579,325 525,277 1.05
TOTAL OPTIONS 905,480 849,849 1.70
INDEX SWAPS
% net
Description Counterparties Pays Notional Currency  Fair Value assets
BFXSGVUE Index  Barclays Bank Plc 0.25 20,990 USD (50,384) (0.10)
BXIIDCNU Index Barclays Bank Plc - 17,090 USD 427) 0.00
CIEQDUVS Index  Citigroup Global 0.06 6,550 USD (5,422) (0.01)
CIEQDUVS Index  Citigroup Global 0.06 19,700 USD (16,307) (0.03)
CIEQUSSI Index Citigroup Global 0.53 26,600 USD (76,579) (0.15)
CIIRDSUI Index Citigroup Global 0.02 24,7710 USD 47,623 0.09
CHRVUTI Index Citigroup Global - 22,320 USD (36,774) 0.07)

*Launched on 4™ December 2023.
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)

As at 31" December 2023

Atlantic House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund*

B) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

INDEX SWAPS (continued)

% net
Description Counterparties Pays Notional Currency  Fair Value assets
DBAC12U3 Index Deutsche Bank 0.25 7,543 USD (1,805) 0.00
DBRPGEDU Index  Deutsche Bank 0.25 2,548 USD (18,199) (0.04)
DBVSCV23 Index Deutsche Bank 0.23 40,241 USD 64,217 0.13
MSCBCPVL Index  Morgan Stanley - 23,960 USD (261) 0.00
MSCBCTAT Index  Morgan Stanley - 5,860 USD (2,500) 0.00
MSCBDLVS Index  Morgan Stanley - 50,500 USD (9,941) (0.02)
MSCFSEDI Index Morgan Stanley - 38,770 USD (11,530) (0.02)
MSQTSTRT Index  Morgan Stanley - 62,560 USD (42,467) (0.08)

TOTAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

TOTAL INDEX SWAPS

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

OTHER ASSETS

OTHER LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

Assets

Investment in Transferable Securities

Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments

Cash at Bank
Cash held as Collateral
Other Assets
Total Assets

*Launched on 4™ December 2023.

% of Total Assets
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(160,756)  (0.30)

(160,756)  (0.30)

689,093 1.40

35,771,963  71.42
16,618,262  33.18

(2,305,286)  (4.60)

50,084,939  100.00

66.43
2.10
30.07
0.87
0.53
100.00



GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Significant Portfolio Movements (unaudited)
315 December 2023

Atlantic House Tryg Invest Defensive Strategies Fund*

Purchases
Security Name Quantity Cost % of
€ Total Purchases
Bundesschatzanweisungen 3.10% 12/12/2025 2,500,000 2,529,150 7.24
French Republic Government Bond OAT 0.00% 25/02/2025 2,500,000 2,415,075 6.92
Sparkasse Pforzheim Calw 3.70% 23/02/2026 1,000,000 1,016,820 2.91
Societe Generale SFH SA 3.63% 31/07/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 1,015,270 291
Raiffeisen-Landesbank Steiermark AG 3.75% 26/06/2026 1,000,000 1,012,420 2.90
Credit Agricole Home Loan SFH SA 3.25% 28/09/2026 1,000,000 1,008,000 2.89
BPCE SFH SA 3.13% 20/07/2027 1,000,000 1,006,430 2.88
Natixis Pfandbriefbank AG 3.38% 15/12/2025 EMTN 1,000,000 1,004,110 2.88
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB 3.25% 04/11/2025 EMTN 1,000,000 1,002,490 2.87
Berlin Hyp AG 3.00% 11/05/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 1,001,600 2.87
DZ HYP AG 3.97% 31/03/2025 1,000,000 1,001,230 2.87
Aareal Bank AG 3.00% 11/10/2027 EMTN 1,000,000 1,000,010 2.86
AXA Bank Europe SCF 3.00% 03/11/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 998,540 2.86
ING Bank NV 3.00% 15/02/2026 1,000,000 998,540 2.86
Arkea Home Loans SFH SA 2.75% 22/12/2026 1,000,000 994,110 2.85
Nordea Kiinnitysluottopankki Oyj 2.63% 01/12/2025 EMTN 1,000,000 991,710 2.84
Nykredit Realkredit AS 1.00% 01/01/2025 1,000,000 972,380 2.78
Commerzbank AG 0.88% 08/09/2025 EMTN 1,000,000 961,790 2.75
Bayerische Landesbank 0.88% 10/09/2025 EMTN 1,000,000 961,030 2.75
BPCE SFH SA 0.40% 24/04/2025 EMTN 1,000,000 960,760 2.75
Caisse Francaise de Financement Local 0.38% 23/06/2025 EMTN 1,000,000 956,800 2.74
ABN AMRO Bank NV 0.88% 14/01/2026 1,000,000 956,110 2.74
Cooperatieve Rabobank UA 0.63% 26/04/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 946,370 2.71
de Volksbank NV 0.50% 30/01/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 946,580 2.71
Aktia Bank Oyj 0.38% 05/03/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 942,530 2.70
KBC Bank NV 0.00% 03/12/2025 1,000,000 942,160 2.70
NIBC Bank NV 0.63% 01/06/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 941,880 2.70
Nordea Kiinnitysluottopankki Oyj 0.25% 18/03/2026 EMTN 1,000,000 938,480 2.69
Van Lanschot Kempen NV 0.88% 15/02/2027 1,000,000 934,050 2.68
BAWAG PSK Bank fuer Arbeit und Wirtschaft und
Oesterreichische Postsparkasse AG 1.13% 31/07/2028 1,000,000 920,230 2.64
Aareal Bank AG 0.01% 01/02/2028 1,000,000 884,000 2.53
Nykredit Realkredit AS 2.00% 01/01/2026 3,000,000 394,979 1.13
Sales
Security Name Quantity Proceed % of
€ Total Sales

There were no sales during the year.

*Launched on 4" December 2023.

The tables above show a breakdown of material purchases and sales of the Portfolios in accordance with Central Bank UCITS Regulations
79(2) requirements. All purchases and sales of investments exceeding 1% of the total value of each purchases and sales respectively, a
minimum of 20 of each such purchases and sales, are disclosed.
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Investment Manager’s Report

Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund
Market Review

A wise man once pointed out that the stock market is not formed by thousands of clever men and women independently
arriving at their own views.

It is much more like a school exam hall where two bright kids at the front — one an optimistic bull, and one a pessimistic bear
— pass back the answers to the rest of the class. Ultimately each investment has a buyer and a seller and so views form into
two basic groups, even though the world itself is far more nuanced than this suggests.

This was never truer than in 2023. At the start of the year, inflation enthusiasts argued for a generational shift in inflation
expectations — forecasting a return to the economic malaise of the 1970s.

Meanwhile economic pessimists foresaw an avalanche of consumer and business failures resulting from the higher interest
costs.

Thankfully, neither outcome came to pass, and inflation slowed meaningfully even as the world economy continued to grow
at close to 3%. This year is a reminder that the volume of the debate is often a poor indicator of the likelihood of outcomes.

Financial markets price in uncertainty, which dampens valuations and helps enhance the long term returns for patient
investors.

As we entered 2023, we recognized a shift in this balance due to a decline in global energy prices. Natural gas prices fell
rapidly as alternative supply and lower demand helped meet Europe’s needs.

Interest rate rises quickly delivered price stability as consumer demand started to slow. Today US and European headline
inflation is near 3% and even core measures, which respond with a lag, have declined. Even the UK, a laggard in the inflation
fight. has made some notable progress in recent months. On the downside, economic growth in the UK and Europe has ground
to a halt and market participants expect interest rate cuts as early as the second quarter of 2024.

The US economy has surprised the sceptics by delivering 2.5% growth in 2023. Buoyed by a resilient labour market
consumers dipped into pandemic era savings. US companies have started to grow their earnings, delivering 4% earnings
growth in the most recent quarter. This has helped support a more positive economic narrative.

In terms of equity performance, US and Japanese shares generated the strongest returns driven by their technology and
consumer discretionary exposure. Smaller UK Mid Cap companies significantly lagged the broader UK equity market. Across
fixed income, riskier high yield debt strongly outperformed top-rated government bonds year-to-date. Meanwhile inflation-
linked UK debt produced poor returns.

As we think about the coming year, we are excited by elevated expected returns across a range of assets. While the debate on
the depth of the upcoming recession is likely to rage for some time, we expect declining inflation and a slowdown in economic

growth.

A mild US recession, which is now the base case for many investors, could still prove challenging for earnings from cyclical
sectors. We anticipate earnings growth in these sectors to bottom in the first half of next year.

Performance Review

The Fund rose 8.3% over 2023. Pleasingly, its correlation to global equities was almost exactly zero, so it was truly
uncorrelated.
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Investment Manager’s Report (Continued)

Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund (Continued)
Outlook

We look forward to continuing to improve the risk management processes around the fund, which also double as expectation
management tools for investors. We believe predictability is important, but predictability does not mean going up in a straight
line — it means performing as one would expect in various market environments, and if we can make this fund predictable in
that regard, and carry on delivering positive returns that are uncorrelated with equities, the future bodes well.

Atlantic House Investments Limited

Date: 25 April 2024
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31° December 2023 and 2022

Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund

AUSF AUSF*
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note $ $
ASSETS
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investments in Transferable Securities 3 149,051,266 108,299,842

Investments in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 5,122,365 3,209,907
Cash at bank 5 7,136,944 6,960,262
Cash held as collateral 5 1,775,265 1,182,872
Dividends and interest receivable 48,426 41,881
Amount receivable on subscriptions 187,918 2,404,125
Receivable from Investment Manager 7,10 570 6,035
Other receivables 26 56
TOTAL ASSETS 163,322,780 122,104,980
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investments in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 4,265,344 3,776,194
Collateral due to brokers 5 265 2,872
Investment management fees payable 7, 10 118,416 71,684
Management fee payable 7 2,460 3,916
Administration fees payable 7 8,219 5,534
Transfer agency fees payable 7 4,245 3,560
Depositary and depositary oversight fees payable 7 9,724 4,899
Audit fees payable 7 5,989 6,089
Redemptions payable 65,490 9,498
Performance fee payable 7 31,912 33,773
Other fees payable 15,043 7,323
TOTAL LIABILITIES (excluding net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares) 4,527,107 3,925,342
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES 158,795,673 118,179,638

*Launched on 29" April 2022.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the Financial Year Ended 31° December 2023

Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund

AUSF AUSF*
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note $ $
INCOME
Bond interest income 2 16,573 4,231
Net realised and unrealised loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 9 17,644,186 762,346
Bank Interest 636,218 211,832
Expense reimbursement from Investment Manager 7,10 570 6,299
Other income 7 5,300 3,427
TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME 18,302,883 988,135
EXPENSES
Performance fees 7 - 33,773
Investment management fees 7,10 594,457 219,403
Management fees 7 27,337 31,301
Administration fees 7 34,034 24,228
Directors’ fees 7 10,669 6,705
Depositary and depositary oversight fees 7 40,057 19,621
Audit fees 7 12,250 6,089
Transfer agency fees 7 42,125 13,274
Swap interest expenses 2 - 11,068
Bank interest expense 12,745 2,404
Formation expenses 7 - 49,806
Other fees and expenses 7 75,144 45,104
Total Operating Expenses 848,818 462,776
Operating Profit 17,454,065 525,359
Finance Costs
Dividends to holders of redeemable participating shares 13 3,174,998 1,396,922
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 14,279,067 (871,563)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations 14,279,067 (871,563)

*Launched on 29™ April 2022.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements. All of the results for the
financial year relate to continuing operations.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of

Redeemable Participating Shares

Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund

AUSF AUSF*
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
$ $
Net Assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
beginning of the financial year 118,179,638 -
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 14,279,067 (871,563)
Capital transactions
Issue of redeemable shares during the financial year 56,935,230 129,851,809
Redemption of redeemable shares during the financial year (30,598,262) (10,800,608)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the end
of the financial year 158,795,673 118,179,638

*Launched on 29" April 2022.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund

AUSF AUSF*
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
$ $
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 14,279,067 (871,563)
Adjustment to reconcile increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations to net cash used in operating activities
Bond interest income (16,573) (4,231)
Dividends to holders of redeemable participating shares 3,174,998 1,396,922
Operating profit before working capital changes 17,437,492 521,128

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Net increase in financial assets and liabilities at fair value
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables
Increase in payables

Cash used in operating activities
Interest received/(paid)

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares
Payment on redemptions of redeemable participating shares

Dividends to holders of redeemable participating shares
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash
Net Cash at the start of the financial year

Net Cash at the end of the financial year

Analysis of Cash
Cash at the start of the financial year

Cash held as collateral at the start of the financial year
Overdraft at the start of the financial year
Collateral due to brokers at the start of the financial year

Cash at the end of the financial year

Cash held as collateral at the end of the financial year
Overdraft at the end of the financial year

Collateral due to brokers at the end of the financial year

*Launched on 29" April 2022.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(42,174,732)

(107,733,555)

5,495 (6,091)

59,230 136,778
(24,672,515)  (107,081,740)
10,028 (37,650)
(24,662,487)  (107,119,390)
59,151,437 127,447,684
(30,542,270) (10,791,110)
(3,174,998) (1,396,922)
25,434,169 115,259,652
771,682 8,140,262
8,140,262 -
8,911,944 8,140,262
6,960,262 -
1,182,872 -
(2,872) -
7,136,944 6,960,262
1,775,265 1,182,872
(265) (2.872)
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Schedule of Investments
As at 31°" December 2023

Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund

(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value  assets
1) INVESTMENTS
A) MONEY MARKET INSTRUMENTS
1) TREASURY BILLS
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 01/02/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,924,607 5,973,706 3.76
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 02/01/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,937,520 5,996,521 3.78
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 04/01/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,935,638 5,998,272 3.78
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 05/03/2024 7,500,000 USD 7,404,254 7,431,981 4.68
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 06/02/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,923,073 5,969,309 3.76
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 07/03/2024 7,500,000 USD 7,401,891 7,429,855 4.68
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 08/02/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,921,100 5,967,533 3.76
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 11/01/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,932,176 5,992,125 3.77
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 12/03/2024 7,500,000 USD 7,405,217 7,424,130 4.68
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 13/02/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,923,403 5,963,127 3.76
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 14/03/2024 7,500,000 USD 7,403,438 7,422,263 4.67
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 15/02/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,921,438 5,961,573 3.75
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 16/01/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,927,772 5,987,785 3.77
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 18/01/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,931,295 5,985,950 3.77
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 19/03/2024 7,500,000 USD 7,405,079 7,412,798 4.67
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 20/02/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,925,873 5,957,094 3.75
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 21/03/2024 7,500,000 USD 7,402,219 7,410,343 4.67
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 22/02/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,923,839 5,955,449 3.75
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 23/01/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,928,113 5,981,546 3.77
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 25/01/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,926,402 5,979,808 3.77
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 27/02/2024 7,500,000 USD 7,402,888 7,438,400 4.68
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 29/02/2024 7,500,000 USD 7,400,582 7,436,396 4.68
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/01/2024 6,000,000 USD 5,926,605 5,975,302 3.76
148,134,422 149,051,266  93.87
TOTAL TREASURY BILLS 148,134,422 149,051,266  93.87
TOTAL MONEY MARKET INSTRUMENTS 148,134,422 149,051,266  93.87
B) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS
Unrealised % net
Maturity Currency Bought Currency Sold Counterparty (Depreciation)/Appreciation  assets
02/01/2024 USD 21,367 GBP (16,810) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (62) 0.00
02/01/2024 GBP 4,126  USD (5,249) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 11 0.00
02/01/2024 USD 1,586 GBP (1,248) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg %) 0.00
02/01/2024 GBP 10,264 USD (13,059) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 27 0.00
02/01/2024 GBP 46 USD (58) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
02/01/2024 GBP 26 USD (33) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
02/01/2024 GBP 41 USD (52) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)
As at 31*" December 2023

Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund

B) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS (continued)

Unrealised % net
Maturity Currency Bought Currency Sold Counterparty (Depreciation)/Appreciation  assets
03/01/2024 USD 118,699 GBP (92,989) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 153 0.00
03/01/2024 GBP 333 USD (425) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 1) 0.00
03/01/2024 GBP 131 USD (167) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
03/01/2024 GBP - USD - CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
31/01/2024 GBP 14,904,430 USD (19,064,256) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (60,408)  (0.04)
31/01/2024 GBP 10,978,036 USD (14,042,005) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (44,494)  (0.03)
31/01/2024 GBP 57,835,940 USD (73,977,951) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (234,409)  (0.15)
31/01/2024 GBP 25,512,327 USD (32,632,818) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (103,401)  (0.07)
31/01/2024 EUR 151,097 USD (168,039) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (895) 0.00
31/01/2024 GBP 172,957 USD (220,934) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (407) 0.00
31/01/2024 GBP 512,216 USD (653,177) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (78) 0.00
31/01/2024 GBP 137,836 USD (175,768) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 210 0.00
31/01/2024 GBP 92,989 USD (118,784) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (219) 0.00
(444,209)  (0.29)
TOTAL FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS (444,209)  (0.29)
OPTIONS
(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair ¢4 net
Description Quantity Currency cost value assets
ITALY
Put Telecom Italia SPA 20/06/2025 154.00 18,885,980 EUR 660,223 371,455 0.23
371,455 0.23
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
Call Basket of Stocks 21.06.2024 33.00 5,000,000 USD 150,000 80,993 0.05
Call SPX/USOSFR2 15.03.2024 4.61 2,000,000 USD 200,000 54,216 0.03
Call XIN1/USDCNH 28.03.2024 7.50 2,000,000 USD 200,000 1,040 0.00
Call Basket of Stocks 24.04.2025 33.00 10,000,000 USD 285,000 391,472 0.25
Call Basket of Stocks 16.12.2024 30.00 5,000,000 USD 160,000 51,604 0.03
Call Basket of Stocks 13.12.2024 35.00 20,000,000 USD 290,000 (11,085) (0.01)
Call Basket of Stocks 13.11.2025 18.50 10,000,000 USD 190,000 233,204 0.15
Call SPX/USOSFR10 25.03.2024 4.61 10,000,000 USD 200,000 5,137 0.00
Call Basket of Stocks 15.03.2024 29.00 2,000,000 USD 189,000 332 0.00
Call Basket of Stocks 20.12.2024 22.50 10,000,000 USD 300,000 59,921 0.04
Call SPX Index 27.06.2025 4,550.43 10,000,000 USD 200,000 178,490 0.11
1,045,324 0.65
TOTAL OPTIONS 1,416,779 0.88
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Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund

B) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

VARIANCE SWAPS

Fair % net
Description Counterparties Variance Notional Currency Value  assets
Basket of Stocks Citigroup Global 22.00 200,000 USD 466,947 0.29
Basket of Stocks Citigroup Global 23.80 150,000 EUR 212,175 0.13
Basket of Stocks Goldman Sachs International 0.00 14,500,000 JPY (97,366)  (0.06)
Basket of Stocks Goldman Sachs International - 27,000,000 JPY (143,991)  (0.09)
Eurostoxx50/Nasdaq100 Morgan Stanley 29 1,827 USD 26,825 0.02
464,590 0.29
TOTAL VARIANCE SWAPS 464,590 0.29

VOLATILITY SWAPS
Fair % net
Description Counterparties Volatility Notional Currency Value  assets
Basket of Stocks Barclays Bank Plc. 20.03 150,000 EUR (84,874)  (0.05)
Basket of Stocks Barclays Bank Plc. 21.00 200,000 USD 341,520 0.22
Basket of Stocks BNP Paribas 21.82 200,000 USD (172,325)  (0.11)
Basket of Stocks BofA Securities Europe SA 19.28 100,000 EUR 40,872 0.03
Basket of Stocks BofA Securities Europe SA 17.69 200,000 EUR 15,465 0.01
Basket of Stocks Credit Agricole CIB 33.50 70,000 USD 247,100 0.16
Basket of Stocks Goldman Sachs International 36.62 200,000 USD (318,893)  (0.20)
Basket of Stocks Merrill Lynch International 22.36 250,000 EUR 590,988 0.37
659,853 0.43
TOTAL VOLATILITY SWAPS 659,853 0.43

INDEX SWAPS

Fair % net
Description Counterparties Pays Notional Currency Value  assets
BAEICAE2 Index BofA Securities Europe SA 0.20 97,442 EUR 66,273 0.04
BAEICAES Index BofA Securities Europe SA 0.20 50,924 EUR 32,311 0.02
BAEISTUS Index BofA Securities Europe SA 0.10 116,625 USD (29,261)  (0.02)
BAEIWTUS Index BofA Securities Europe SA 0.15 283,606 USD (134,029)  (0.08)
BEFSVRI11 Index Barclays Bank Plc. 0.25 145,302 USD (29,195)  (0.02)
BXIIDCNU Index Barclays Bank Plc. 0.25 150,062 USD (27,668)  (0.02)
BXIIUIF1 Index Barclays Bank Plc. 0.55 275,000 USD 687,326 0.43
CICXBIMG6 Index Citigroup Global - 250,251 USD (752,004)  (0.47)
CICXRAVD Index Citigroup Global 0.40 358,388 USD 347,300 0.22
JCREVCMI Index JP Morgan Securities Plc. 0.15 158,517 EUR (124,384)  (0.08)
JCREVCXI1 Index JP Morgan Securities Plc. 0.15 155,467 EUR 154,741 0.10
JMABDOR?2 Index JP Morgan Securities Plc. 0.65 135,440 USD (2,667) 0.00
JPFCVAOI Index JP Morgan Securities Plc. 0.55 312,147 USD 387,337 0.24
JPOSCUVS Index JP Morgan Securities Plc. - 108,860 USD (297,575)  (0.19)
MLSREIS1 Index BofA Securities Europe SA 0.15 306,783 EUR 77,130 0.05
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B) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

INDEX SWAPS (continued)

Fair % net

Description Counterparties Pays Notional Currency Value  assets
MSCBCTAT Index Morgan Stanley 0.25 64,121 USD (735,183)  (0.46)
NEXUS Basket Portfolio JP Morgan Securities Plc. - 10,000,000 EUR (860,444)  (0.54)
(1,239,992)  (0.78)

TOTAL INDEX SWAPS (1,239,992)  (0.78)

TOTAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

OTHER ASSETS

OTHER LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

% of Total Assets
Assets
Investment in Transferable Securities
Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments
Cash at Bank
Cash held as Collateral
Other Assets
Total Assets

112

857,021 0.53

149,908,287  94.40
9,149,149 5.76

(261,763)  (0.16)

158,795,673 100.00

91.26
3.13
4.37
1.09
0.15

100.00
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Significant Portfolio Movements (unaudited)
31% December 2023

Atlantic House Uncorrelated Strategies Fund

Purchases
Security Name Quantity Cost % of
$ Total Purchases
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 12/03/2024 7,500,000 7,405,217 1.47
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 19/03/2024 7,500,000 7,405,079 1.47
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 05/03/2024 7,500,000 7,404,254 1.47
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 14/03/2024 7,500,000 7,403,438 1.47
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 27/02/2024 7,500,000 7,402,888 1.47
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 21/03/2024 7,500,000 7,402,219 1.47
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 07/03/2024 7,500,000 7,401,891 1.47
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 29/02/2024 7,500,000 7,400,583 1.47
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 14/12/2023 6,000,000 5,943,413 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/11/2023 6,000,000 5,942,908 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 21/12/2023 6,000,000 5,942,800 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 07/12/2023 6,000,000 5,942,637 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 24/11/2023 6,000,000 5,942,140 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 21/11/2023 6,000,000 5,941,067 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 19/12/2023 6,000,000 5,939,050 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 28/11/2023 6,000,000 5,938,633 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 05/12/2023 6,000,000 5,938,575 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 12/12/2023 6,000,000 5,938,458 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 13/04/2023 6,000,000 5,938,400 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 02/01/2024 6,000,000 5,937,520 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 02/11/2023 6,000,000 5,937,000 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 04/04/2023 6,000,000 5,936,958 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 11/05/2023 6,000,000 5,936,300 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 04/01/2024 6,000,000 5,935,638 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 24/10/2023 6,000,000 5,935,000 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 06/04/2023 6,000,000 5,934,783 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 27/04/2023 6,000,000 5,934,750 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 14/11/2023 6,000,000 5,934,250 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 25/05/2023 6,000,000 5,934,067 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 18/04/2023 6,000,000 5,933,992 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 31/10/2023 6,000,000 5,933,627 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 22/06/2023 6,000,000 5,933,565 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 26/10/2023 6,000,000 5,933,267 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 09/11/2023 6,000,000 5,933,267 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 07/11/2023 6,000,000 5,932,689 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 15/06/2023 6,000,000 5,932,500 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 16/11/2023 6,000,000 5,932,497 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 01/06/2023 6,000,000 5,932,203 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 11/01/2024 6,000,000 5,932,176 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 02/05/2023 6,000,000 5,931,750 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 18/01/2024 6,000,000 5,931,295 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 27/06/2023 6,000,000 5,931,068 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 06/07/2023 6,000,000 5,931,025 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 18/05/2023 6,000,000 5,930,233 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/05/2023 6,000,000 5,930,233 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 06/06/2023 6,000,000 5,929,930 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 29/06/2023 6,000,000 5,929,088 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 17/10/2023 6,000,000 5,928,933 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 20/06/2023 6,000,000 5,928,750 1.18
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Purchases (continued)

Security Name Quantity Cost % of

$ Total Purchases
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 23/01/2024 6,000,000 5,928,113 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 16/01/2024 6,000,000 5,927,772 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 15/08/2023 6,000,000 5,927,317 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 11/07/2023 6,000,000 5,927,312 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 19/10/2023 6,000,000 5,927,200 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 10/10/2023 6,000,000 5,927,200 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/01/2024 6,000,000 5,926,605 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 25/01/2024 6,000,000 5,926,402 1.18
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 05/10/2023 6,000,000 5,926,183 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 20/02/2024 6,000,000 5,925,873 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 10/08/2023 6,000,000 5,925,683 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 27/07/2023 6,000,000 5,925,683 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 12/10/2023 6,000,000 5,925,467 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 22/08/2023 6,000,000 5,925,092 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 17/08/2023 6,000,000 5,924,925 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 19/09/2023 6,000,000 5,924,925 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 01/02/2024 6,000,000 5,924,607 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 29/08/2023 6,000,000 5,924,350 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 22/02/2024 6,000,000 5,923,839 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 14/09/2023 6,000,000 5,923,408 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 13/02/2024 6,000,000 5,923,403 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 26/09/2023 6,000,000 5,923,333 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 21/09/2023 6,000,000 5,923,275 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 03/10/2023 6,000,000 5,923,163 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 06/02/2024 6,000,000 5,923,073 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 24/08/2023 6,000,000 5,922,650 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 07/09/2023 6,000,000 5,922,500 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 28/09/2023 6,000,000 5,922,300 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 31/08/2023 6,000,000 5,921,892 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 15/02/2024 6,000,000 5,921,438 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 03/08/2023 6,000,000 5,921,273 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 08/02/2024 6,000,000 5,921,100 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 18/07/2023 6,000,000 5,920,518 1.17
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 25/07/2023 6,000,000 5,917,943 1.17
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Sales
Security Name Quantity Proceed % of
$ Total Sales
Japan Bank for International Cooperation 0.63% 22/05/2023 7,000,000 7,021,875 1.50
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 14/09/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 21/09/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 28/09/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 18/04/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 02/05/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 26/01/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 23/02/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 23/03/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 18/05/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 15/06/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 05/01/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 19/01/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 10/08/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 09/02/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 27/07/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 03/08/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 28/02/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 07/03/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 16/02/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 02/03/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 07/09/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 05/10/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 09/03/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/03/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 06/04/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 02/11/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 13/04/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 27/04/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 17/08/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 24/08/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 31/08/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 14/03/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 21/03/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 28/03/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 04/04/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/11/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 11/05/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 25/05/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 01/06/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 03/01/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 31/01/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 22/06/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 29/06/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 06/07/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 12/10/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 19/10/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 26/10/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 30/05/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
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Sales (continued)

Security Name Quantity Proceed % of

$ Total Sales
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 09/11/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 16/11/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 24/11/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 06/06/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 20/06/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 27/06/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 07/12/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 14/12/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 21/12/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 11/07/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 18/07/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 25/07/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 15/08/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 22/08/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 29/08/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 19/09/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 26/09/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 03/10/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 10/10/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 17/10/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 24/10/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 31/10/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 07/11/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 14/11/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 21/11/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 28/11/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 05/12/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 12/12/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28
United States Treasury Bill 0.00% 19/12/2023 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.28

The tables above show a breakdown of material purchases and sales of the Portfolios in accordance with Central Bank UCITS Regulations
79(2) requirements. All purchases and sales of investments exceeding 1% of the total value of each purchases and sales respectively, a
minimum of 20 of each such purchases and sales, are disclosed. All purchases and sales are disclosed in the tables above.
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Market Review

During the annual period ending 31 December 2023, the global convertible market posted a strong return, as measured by
the Refinitiv Global Convertible Bond Index’s return of 12.44%. The market environment of 2023 was often challenging
because of interest rate, geopolitical and economic uncertainties. However, in the final months of the year, investor sentiment
brightened markedly as inflation data moderated and the US Federal Reserve indicated the potential for multiple interest rate
cuts in 2024.

Global convertible issuance ramped up significantly in 2023. For the year, issuance totaled $79.4 billion, more than double
the $39.5 billion brought to market in 2023. U.S. companies led ($53.4 billion), followed by Europe ($13.4 billion), Asia
($9.0 billion) and Japan ($3.6 billion). Many of these new convertible issues came to market with attractive terms, including
higher coupons and lower conversion premiums.

Performance Review

For the 12-month reporting period ended 31 December 2023, the Calamos Global Convertible Fund gained 11.53% (US
Accumulating I shares). In addition to capturing the majority of the upside of the Refinitiv Global Convertible Bond Index,
the Fund strongly outperformed the Morningstar Convertible Bond Fund—Global Category Average’s return of 8.05%.

Our team focuses on actively managing the Fund’s risk-reward characteristics, favoring issues that we believe offer an
attractive blend of upside participation in global equity upside and reduced vulnerability to market pullbacks.

Over the annual period, the Fund benefited from its overweight position and security selection in the information technology
sector and from strong selection in the consumer discretionary sector. In information technology, positioning in the
semiconductor materials and equipment industry and semiconductors industry proved particularly advantageous. In the
consumer discretionary sector, the Fund benefited from security selection in the hotels, resorts and cruise lines industry and
the automobile manufacturers industry as well as from a relatively heavy position in the strong-performing home furnishing
retail industry.

In contrast, overweight allocations and positioning in the health care and materials sectors detracted from performance. In
the health care sector, holdings in the biotechnology and pharmaceuticals industries lagged. In the materials sector, holdings
in the specialty chemicals, diversified metals and mining, and steel industries underperformed.

From a regional perspective, strong security selection in Japan, Emerging Asia and the United States contributed favorably.
Security selection in Europe, Canada and Emerging Latin America tempered the pace of gains.

Positioning Discussion

Calamos Global Convertible Fund seeks to provide lower-volatility global equity market participation. We actively manage
the Fund with the goal of providing a favorably asymmetric risk/reward profile that captures equity upside while mitigating
the impact of drawdowns. During the reporting period, this included remaining active in the new issuance market.

As we have discussed in the past, convertible securities blend equity and fixed-income characteristics. Convertible securities
vary in their levels of equity and credit sensitivity and these levels change over time for individual convertible securities and
the market overall. As of the end of the reporting period, the Fund emphasizes convertibles with more pronounced credit
characteristics and those with balanced levels of equity and credit sensitivity over issues with the highest level of equity
sensitivity. This positioning reflects our team’s vigilance to the uncertainties on the horizon, including those related to
monetary policy, interest rates, inflation and fiscal policy with a contentious US election approaching.

From a sector standpoint, the information technology, consumer discretionary and health care sectors represent the largest
allocations within the Fund as of the end of the reporting period. The Fund’s smaller allocations include real estate, materials
and utilities.

From a regional perspective, the Fund’s largest country allocations at the end of the reporting period are to the United States,
Japan and France. The Fund has maintained a notable underweight to Europe versus the Refinitiv Global Convertible Bond
Index, reflecting geopolitical and economic considerations.
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Positioning Discussion (Continued)

Our team employs a disciplined investment process that strives for the best possible return outcomes consistent with the
Fund’s investment guidelines. As part of our fundamental research process, we evaluate environmental, social and
governance (ESG) information, although we do not exclude investments solely based on ESG criteria nor do we target a
certain average ESG rating for the portfolio. When the Fund adopted an Article 8 SFDR Classification on 1 December 2022,
it specifically committed to seeking to promote a reduction in Greenhouse Gas (GHS) emissions, with at least 10% of its
portfolio invested in companies with GHS outputs lower than the average output of the Refinitiv Global Convertible Bond
Index. Throughout the reporting period, the Fund remained well above that threshold. As of the end of the reporting period,
78% of the portfolio holdings are invested in issuers that met this requirement, based on the currently available information.

In Conclusion

We believe Calamos Global Convertible Fund offers a compelling approach for lower volatility participation in the global
equity market over full market, economic and interest rate cycles.

We expect that new issues will be a potential bright spot for the convertible market over the next year or two. With the zero-
rate world of years past replaced by a more normal interest rate environment and large maturity walls approaching in
investment-grade bonds, high-yield debt and convertibles, we expect more companies, including investment-grade
companies, will choose to issue convertible securities. (In exchange for the conversion feature, convertibles typically offer
lower coupons than comparable nonconvertible debt, which can be an appealing option for issuers to keep borrowing costs
low.) This will likely mean an increased opportunity set, potentially with higher coupons and better credits.

We thank the Fund’s shareholders for their trust and look forward to serving them in the years to come.

Calamos Advisors LLC

Date: 25 April 2024
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CGCF CGCF
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note $ $
ASSETS
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investments in Transferable Securities 3 490,885,958 527,485,984

Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 1,628,126 2,035,488
Cash at bank 5 21,100 -
Cash held as collateral 5 800,000 23,470,000
Dividends and interest receivable 1,310,739 1,068,688
Amount receivable on subscriptions 553,952 1,013,340
Amount receivable on sale of securities 5,124 4,439,496
Receivable from Investment Manager 7,10 190 -
Net receivable on foreign exchange transactions 10,181,158 17,448,424
Other receivables 43,657 44921
TOTAL ASSETS 505,430,004 577,006,341
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 1,104,003 707
Bank Overdraft 5 - 4,137,553
Collateral due to brokers 5 332 -
Amount payable on purchase of securities 10,070,786 13,450,553
Investment management fees payable 7,10 389,162 487,863
Management fee payable 7 24,757 28,299
Administration fees payable 7 43,243 20,621
Transfer agency fees payable 7 17,739 10,235
Directors’ fees payable 7 980 870
Depositary and depositary oversight fees payable 7 26,741 19,632
Audit fees payable 7 7,260 7,492
Redemptions payable 1,293,061 2,103,626
Other fees payable 28,903 66,568
TOTAL LIABILITIES (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares) 13,006,967 20,334,019
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES 492,423,037 556,672,322

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CGCF CGCF
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note $ $
INCOME
Dividend income 1,457,416 3,041,767
Bond interest income 2 4,345,295 3,408,837
Net realised and unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 9 61,916,679 (169,389,023)
Bank interest 485,850 498,723
Expense reimbursement from Investment Manager 7, 10 190 -
Other income 484,315 230,066
TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME/(LOSS) 68,089,745 (162,209,630)
EXPENSES
Investment management fees 7,10 5,325,507 6,360,819
Management fees 7 329,713 348,180
Administration fees 7 115,686 120,791
Directors’ fees 7 10,717 10,326
Depositary and depositary oversight fees 7 111,035 136,793
Audit fees 7 18,304 15,339
Transfer agency fees 7 118,019 135,032
Bank interest expenses 41,529 51,624
Other fees and expenses 7 583,688 504,207
Total Operating Expenses 6,654,198 7,683,111
Operating Profit/(Loss) 62,035,547 (169,892,741)
Withholding tax 571,059 984,678
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations 61,464,488 (170,877,419)

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements. All of the results for the financial year relate

to continuing operations.
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Calamos Global Convertible Fund

CGCF CGCF
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
$ $
Net Assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
beginning of the financial year 556,672,322 752,896,742
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 61,464,488 (170,877,419)
Capital transactions
Issue of redeemable shares during the financial year 86,353,302 244,251,650

Redemption of redeemable shares during the financial year

Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the end
of the financial year

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CGCF CGCF
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
$ $
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 61,464,488  (170,877,419)
Adjustment to reconcile increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations to net cash provided by operating activities
Bond interest income (4,345,295) (3,408,837)
Dividend income (1,457,416) (3,041,767)
Tax expense 571,059 984,678
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 56,232,836  (176,343,345)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Net decrease in financial assets and liabilities at fair value 38,110,684 208,794,142
Decrease/(increase) other receivables 11,702,712 (21,932,289)
Decrease in payables (3,482,562) (1,639,864)
Cash provided by operating activities 102,563,670 8,878,644
Interest received 3,926,909 3,290,308
Dividend received 1,633,751 3,029,294
Taxation paid (571,059) (984,678)
Net cash provided by operating activities 107,553,271 14,213,568
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 86,812,690 268,007,626

Payment on redemptions of redeemable participating shares
Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash

Net Cash at the start of the financial year

Net Cash at the end of the financial year

Analysis of Cash
Cash at the start of the financial year

Cash held as collateral at the start of the financial year
Overdraft at the start of the financial year
Collateral due to brokers at the start of the financial year

Cash at the end of the financial year

Cash held as collateral at the end of the financial year
Overdraft at the end of the financial year

Collateral due to brokers at the end of the financial year

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Schedule of Investments

As at 31" December 2023

Calamos Global Convertible Fund

(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity Currency cost Value assets
1) INVESTMENTS
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
1) LISTED SECURITIES : EQUITIES
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
Apollo Global Management Inc 6.75%
31/07/2026 / Preference 114,005 USD 5,948,556 6,428,742 1.31
5,948,556 6,428,742 1.31
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : EQUITIES 5,948,556 6,428,742 1.31
2) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS
AUSTRALIA
Flight Centre Travel Group Ltd 1.63%
01/11/2028 6,000,000 AUD 4,399,452 3,882,630 0.79
4,399,452 3,882,630 0.79
CAYMAN ISLANDS
Meituan 0.00% 27/04/2028 9,800,000 USD 9,503,505 8,494,738 1.73
9,503,505 8,494,738 1.73
FRANCE
Schneider Electric SE 0.00% 15/06/2026 26,043 EUR 5,354,030 5,637,046 1.14
SOITEC 0.00% 01/10/2025 25,185 EUR 5,784,744 5,243,920 1.06
SPIE SA 2.00% 17/01/2028 2,300,000 EUR 2,634,177 2,645,880 0.54
13,772,951 13,526,846 2.74
GERMANY
Duerr AG 0.75% 15/01/2026 2,600,000 EUR 3,421,722 2,651,613 0.54
Rheinmetall AG 2.25% 07/02/2030 2,200,000 EUR 2,402,846 2,774,050 0.56
5,824,568 5,425,663 1.10
GREAT BRITAIN
Ocado Group Plc 0.75% 18/01/2027 3,600,000 GBP 5,010,678 3,613,495 0.73
Ocado Group Plc 0.88% 09/12/2025 2,400,000 GBP 3,209,141 2,791,667 0.57
8,219,819 6,405,162 1.30
INDIA
Bharti Airtel Ltd 1.50% 17/02/2025 2,980,000 USD 3,551,678 5,042,994 1.02
3,551,678 5,042,994 1.02
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(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity Currency cost Value assets
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING (continued)
2) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS (continued)
ISRAEL
CyberArk Software Ltd 0.00% 15/11/2024 3,867,000 USD 4,004,647 5,481,939 1.11
4,004,647 5,481,939 1.11
ITALY
Nexi SpA 0.00% 24/02/2028 3,000,000 EUR 2,855,757 2,875,812 0.58
Saipem SpA 2.88% 11/09/2029 4,700,000 EUR 5,302,189 5,597,164 1.14
8,157,946 8,472,976 1.72
JAPAN
Nippon Steel Corp 0.00% 05/10/2026 320,000,000 JPY 2,853,065 3,029,470 0.62
SCREEN Holdings Co Ltd 0.00%
11/06/2025 870,000,000 JPY 8,219,737 12,349,190 2.51
11,072,802 15,378,660 3.13
JERSEY
Cornwall Jersey Ltd 0.75% 16/04/2026 2,600,000 GBP 3,568,739 1,975,662 0.40
3,568,739 1,975,662 0.40
LUXEMBOURG
Corestate Capital Holding SA 8.00%
31/12/2026 2,500,000 EUR 2,453,485 302,053 0.06
2,453,485 302,053 0.06
MEXICO
Fomento Economico Mexicano SAB de CV
2.63% 24/02/2026 4,500,000 EUR 5,022,489 4,976,220 1.01
5,022,489 4,976,220 1.01
NETHERLANDS
America Movil BV 0.00% 02/03/2024 4,800,000 EUR 5,869,380 5,324,395 1.08
Redcare Pharmacy NV 0.00% 21/01/2028 3,000,000 EUR 3,896,071 3,105,621 0.63
9,765,451 8,430,016 1.71
NEW ZEALAND
Xero Investments Ltd 0.00% 02/12/2025 3,902,000 USD 3,991,444 3,469,697 0.70
3,991,444 3,469,697 0.70
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(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity Currency cost Value assets
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING (continued)
2) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS (continued)
SOUTH KOREA
L&F Co Ltd 2.50% 26/04/2030 3,000,000 USD 2,676,630 2,090,100 0.42
LG Chem Ltd 1.25% 18/07/2028 5,100,000 USD 5,218,550 4,901,763 1.00
POSCO Holdings Inc 0.00% 01/09/2026 4,600,000 EUR 5,199,518 5,887,427 1.20
SK Hynix Inc 1.75% 11/04/2030 2,200,000 USD 2,622,580 3,083,454 0.63
15,717,278 15,962,744 3.25
TAIWAN
Gigabyte Technology Co Ltd 0.00%
27/07/2028 2,000,000 USD 2,037,000 2,121,340 0.43
2,037,000 2,121,340 0.43
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
Etsy Inc 0.13% 01/10/2026 4,740,000 USD 5,535,051 5,461,286 1.11
JPMorgan Chase Bank NA 0.00%
18/02/2024 2,500,000 EUR 2,848,020 3,084,188 0.63
JPMorgan Chase Financial Co LLC 0.00%
14/01/2025 2,700,000 EUR 3,234,145 2,997,893 0.61
Microchip Technology Inc 1.63%
15/02/2027 2,398,000 USD 4,701,232 6,134,972 1.25
United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.25%
31/03/2024 4,025,000 USD 4,005,504 3,995,677 0.81
United States Treasury Note/Bond 4.38%
31/10/2024 4,039,000 USD 4,005,079 4,022,197 0.82
Zillow Group Inc 1.38% 01/09/2026 2,735,000 USD 2,936,557 3,722,171 0.76
27,265,588 29,418,384 5.99
VIETNAM
Vingroup JSC 3.00% 20/04/2026 3,200,000 USD 3,369,937 3,088,096 0.63
3,369,937 3,088,096 0.63
VIRGIN ISLANDS (UK)
ANLLIAN Capital Ltd 0.00% 05/02/2025 1,900,000 EUR 2,567,333 2,082,780 0.42
2,567,333 2,082,780 0.42
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS 144,266,112 143,938,600 29.24
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(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity Currency cost Value assets
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING (continued)
3) LISTED SECURITIES : INVESTMENT FUNDS
IRELAND
Goldman Sachs Plc - USS$ Liquid Reserves
Fund 18,418,627 USD 18,418,627 18,418,627 3.74
18,418,627 18,418,627 3.74
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : INVESTMENT FUNDS 18,418,627 18,418,627 3.74
TOTAL TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK
EXCHANGE LISTING 168,633,295 168,785,969 34.29
B) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES DEALT ON ANOTHER REGULATED MARKET
1) OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : BONDS
BERMUDA ISLANDS
Jazz Investments I Ltd 2.00% 15/06/2026 5,488,000 USD 6,506,184 5,542,716 1.13
NCL Corp Ltd 1.13% 15/02/2027 9,818,000 USD 9,427,887 9,048,858 1.84
15,934,071 14,591,574 2.97
CAYMAN ISLANDS
Sea Ltd 0.25% 15/09/2026 9,742,000 USD 9,742,000 8,009,287 1.63
Seagate HDD Cayman 3.50% 01/06/2028 5,086,000 USD 5,119,310 6,144,905 1.25
Wynn Macau Ltd 4.50% 07/03/2029 5,534,000 USD 5,697,659 5,653,037 1.15
20,558,969 19,807,229 4.03
INDIA
Bharti Airtel Ltd 1.50% 17/02/2025 1,185,000 USD 1,340,176 2,005,352 0.41
1,340,176 2,005,352 0.41
ITALY
Eni SpA 2.95% 14/09/2030 EMTN 4,700,000 EUR 5,036,703 5,458,007 1.11
Prysmian SpA 0.00% 02/02/2026 2,400,000 EUR 2,766,589 2,931,491 0.60
7,803,292 8,389,498 1.71
JAPAN
CyberAgent Inc 0.00% 19/02/2025 130,000,000 JPY 1,546,291 907,734 0.18
Daifuku Co Ltd 0.00% 13/09/2030 740,000,000 JPY 5,337,209 5,697,055 1.16
Sanrio Co Ltd 0.00% 14/12/2028 700,000,000 JPY 5,210,559 5,420,284 1.10
12,094,059 12,025,073 2.44
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B) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES DEALT ON ANOTHER REGULATED MARKET (continued)
1) OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : BONDS (continued)
LUXEMBOURG
Citigroup Global Markets Funding
Luxembourg SCA 0.00% 15/03/2028 EMTN 5,000,000 EUR 5,401,802 6,126,757 1.24
5,401,802 6,126,757 1.24
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
Akamai Technologies Inc 0.13% 01/05/2025 3,087,000 UsSD 3,817,605 3,928,918 0.80
Akamai Technologies Inc 1.13% 15/02/2029 3,874,000 UsSD 3,875,938 4,203,872 0.85
American Water Capital Corp 3.63%
15/06/2026 5,135,000 UsSD 5,137,685 5,136,284 1.04
Block Inc 0.13% 01/03/2025 4,052,000 USD 4,843,209 3,966,746 0.81
Citigroup Global Markets Holdings
Inc/United States 0.00% 26/02/2026 23,000,000 HKD 2,929,947 2,737,211 0.56
CMS Energy Corp 3.38% 01/05/2028 2,662,000 USD 2,676,064 2,639,533 0.54
Coherus Biosciences Inc 1.50% 15/04/2026 1,873,000 USD 2,159,823 1,059,219 0.22
Coinbase Global Inc 0.50% 01/06/2026 3,301,000 USD 3,388,465 3,014,671 0.61
Dexcom Inc 0.25% 15/11/2025 5,109,000 USD 5,709,153 5,344,779 1.09
Dexcom Inc 0.38% 15/05/2028 2,662,000 USD 2,662,160 2,730,094 0.55
Enovis Corp 3.88% 15/10/2028 2,392,000 USD 2,436,722 2,880,518 0.58
Envista Holdings Corp 1.75% 15/08/2028 2,615,000 USD 2,647,688 2,384,932 0.48
Halozyme Therapeutics Inc 0.25%
01/03/2027 4,285,000 USD 4,255,874 3,703,867 0.75
Halozyme Therapeutics Inc 1.00%
15/08/2028 2,950,000 USD 2,941,497 2,747,306 0.56
Lucid Group Inc 1.25% 15/12/2026 3,712,000 USD 3,693,440 1,952,215 0.40
NeoGenomics Inc 0.25% 15/01/2028 2,812,000 USD 2,962,725 2,132,086 0.43
ON Semiconductor Corp 0.50% 01/03/2029 5,408,000 USD 5,379,877 5,697,057 1.16
Pacira BioSciences Inc 0.75% 01/08/2025 2,463,000 USD 2,873,986 2,283,671 0.46
Palo Alto Networks Inc 0.38% 01/06/2025 762,000 USD 912,981 2,260,161 0.46
PPL Capital Funding Inc 2.88% 15/03/2028 5,715,000 USD 5,787,827 5,551,836 1.13
Rivian Automotive Inc 4.63% 15/03/2029 2,788,000 USD 2,791,775 3,930,745 0.80
Sarepta Therapeutics Inc 1.25% 15/09/2027 2,808,000 USD 2,811,584 2,847,227 0.58
Southern Co 3.88% 15/12/2025 2,704,000 USD 2,702,234 2,708,355 0.55
Tyler Technologies Inc 0.25% 15/03/2026 3,608,000 USD 3,829,963 3,663,131 0.74
Wayfair Inc 1.00% 15/08/2026 3,776,000 USD 4,209,271 3,331,867 0.68
Wayfair Inc 3.50% 15/11/2028 5,231,000 USD 5,293,419 8,108,206 1.65
Workiva Inc 1.13% 15/08/2026 535,000 USD 656,764 736,096 0.15
Workiva Inc 1.25% 15/08/2028 3,880,000 USD 3,878,417 3,947,280 0.80
Zscaler Inc 0.13% 01/07/2025 1,708,000 USD 2,158,854 2,596,860 0.53
99,424,947 98,224,743 19.96
TOTAL OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : BONDS 162,557,316 161,170,226 32.76
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES DEALT ON ANOTHER
REGULATED MARKET 162,557,316 161,170,226 32.76
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C) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES
1) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : BONDS
CANADA
Dye & Durham Ltd 3.75% 01/03/2026 5,676,000 CAD 4,729,142 3,293,715 0.67
Lithium Americas Argentina Corp 1.75%
15/01/2027 6,173,000 USD 6,227,808 3,924,978 0.80
10,956,950 7,218,693 1.47
CAYMAN ISLANDS
Farfetch Ltd 3.75% 01/05/2027 4,301,000 USD 4,806,643 68,945 0.01
NIO Inc 4.63% 15/10/2030 2,526,000 USD 2,532,062 2,673,923 0.54
7,338,705 2,742,868 0.55
LIBERIA
Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd 6.00%
15/08/2025 968,000 USD 975,459 2,579,720 0.52
975,459 2,579,720 0.52
MAURITIUS ISLANDS
MakeMyTrip Ltd 0.00% 15/02/2028 6,591,000 USD 6,805,111 8,062,618 1.76
6,805,111 8,062,618 1.76
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
Affirm Holdings Inc 0.00% 15/11/2026 3,805,000 USD 3,796,081 3,122,232 0.63
Alnylam Pharmaceuticals Inc 1.00%
15/09/2027 2,821,000 USD 2,807,836 2,796,119 0.57
Amyris Inc 1.50% 15/11/2026 3,835,000 USD 3,835,000 131,847 0.03
BILL Holdings Inc 0.00% 01/04/2027 3,811,000 USD 3,916,848 3,173,496 0.64
Confluent Inc 0.00% 15/01/2027 3,688,000 USD 3,709,370 3,084,532 0.63
CONMED Corp 2.25% 15/06/2027 2,949,000 USD 2,959,499 2,950,798 0.60
Datadog Inc 0.13% 15/06/2025 1,978,000 USD 2,744,116 2,779,049 0.56
DigitalOcean Holdings Inc 0.00%
01/12/2026 9,921,000 USD 9,284,052 8,208,237 1.67
DISH Network Corp 0.00% 15/12/2025 5,118,000 USD 2,694,109 3,204,482 0.65
DraftKings Holdings Inc 0.00% 15/03/2028 9,847,000 USD 9,698,606 7,994,188 1.62
Dropbox Inc 0.00% 01/03/2028 4,690,000 USD 4,708,658 4,724,847 0.96
Fastly Inc 0.00% 15/03/2026 7,928,000 USD 6,855,095 6,903,781 1.40
Innoviva Inc 2.50% 15/08/2025 1,439,000 USD 1,464,397 1,554,581 0.32
Insmed Inc 0.75% 01/06/2028 2,783,000 USD 2,953,261 3,189,541 0.65
Integer Holdings Corp 2.13% 15/02/2028 2,853,000 USD 2,920,731 3,648,416 0.74
Integra LifeSciences Holdings Corp 0.50%
15/08/2025 2,467,000 USD 2,548,831 2,322,683 0.47
Tonis Pharmaceuticals Inc 0.00% 01/04/2026 2,855,000 USD 2,957,457 3,018,763 0.61
John Bean Technologies Corp 0.25%
15/05/2026 3,906,000 USD 3,981,584 3,538,641 0.72
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C) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES (continued)
1) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : BONDS (continued)
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.) (continued)
Lantheus Holdings Inc 2.63% 15/12/2027 1,822,000 USD 1,822,000 2,045,632 0.42
Liberty Broadband Corp 3.13% 31/03/2053 2,872,000 uUSD 2,873,619 2,849,483 0.58
LivePerson Inc 0.00% 15/12/2026 3,092,000 uUsSD 3,073,873 2,051,450 0.42
MicroStrategy Inc 0.00% 15/02/2027 6,258,000 USD 6,301,700 5,441,894 1.10
Middleby Corp 1.00% 01/09/2025 2,421,000 uUsSD 3,103,647 2,954,297 0.60
Morgan Stanley Finance LLC 1.00%
23/11/2027 6,330,000 USD 6,500,064 7,216,199 1.46
Nabors Industries Inc 1.75% 15/06/2029 2,925,000 uUSD 2,964,811 2,157,976 0.44
Northern Oil and Gas Inc 3.63% 15/04/2029 6,620,000 USD 6,935,119 7,820,536 1.59
Omnicell Inc 0.25% 15/09/2025 2,380,000 uUSD 3,092,774 2,184,508 0.44
ON Semiconductor Corp 0.00% 01/05/2027 1,425,000 USD 1,956,452 2,333,181 0.47
Pegasystems Inc 0.75% 01/03/2025 2,125,000 uUSD 2,434,946 1,975,887 0.40
Pioneer Natural Resources Co 0.25%
15/05/2025 1,511,000 uUSD 1,959,142 3,683,531 0.75
Redfin Corp 0.00% 15/10/2025 5,696,000 uUSD 5,583,251 4,832,315 0.98
Shift4 Payments Inc 0.00% 15/12/2025 2,531,000 uUSD 2,878,734 2,834,847 0.58
Shockwave Medical Inc 1.00% 15/08/2028 3,924,000 uUSD 3,998,401 3,837,947 0.78
Snap Inc 0.13% 01/03/2028 6,193,000 USD 5,581,950 4,882,437 0.99
Stride Inc 1.13% 01/09/2027 2,299,000 USD 2,315,006 2,918,558 0.59
TransMedics Group Inc 1.50% 01/06/2028 2,669,000 uUSD 2,723,596 3,027,581 0.61
Uber Technologies Inc 0.88% 01/12/2028 4,733,000 USD 4,764,171 5,155,847 1.05
Unity Software Inc 0.00% 15/11/2026 3,809,000 uUsSD 3,790,257 3,175,525 0.63
148,489,044 139,725,864 28.35
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : BONDS 174,565,269 160,929,763 32.65
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES 174,565,269 160,929,763  32.65
D) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS
Unrealised
Appreciation/ % net
Maturity Currency Bought Currency Sold Counterparty (Depreciation) assets
02/01/2024  GBP 10,743 USD (13,654) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 39 0.00
02/01/2024 USD 19,251 EUR (17,482) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (50) 0.00
02/01/2024 EUR 3,923 USD (4,323) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 8 0.00
02/01/2024  GBP 11 USD (14) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
02/01/2024 EUR 6 USD (7) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
02/01/2024 USD 31 EUR (28) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
03/01/2024 USD 40,834 CHF (34,485) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (187) 0.00
03/01/2024 USD 3,090 GBP (2,428) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 5) 0.00
03/01/2024 GBP - USD - CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
03/01/2024 EUR 36,563 USD (40,473) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (102) 0.00
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D) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (continued)

FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS (continued)

Unrealised
Appreciation/ % net
Maturity Currency Bought Currency Sold Counterparty (Depreciation)  assets
03/01/2024 GBP 43 USD (55) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
03/01/2024 EUR 215 USD (238) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
03/01/2024 USD 215 CHF (181) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg - 0.00
28/03/2024 EUR 1,133,768 USD (1,264,128) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (8,064) 0.00
28/03/2024 GBP 84,623 USD (108,387) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (486) 0.00
28/03/2024 GBP 32,805 USD (42,017) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (188) 0.00
28/03/2024 EUR 107,349 USD (119,692) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (764) 0.00
28/03/2024 EUR 117,500,163 USD (131,010,202) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (835,767)  (0.17)
28/03/2024 GBP 33,001,508 USD (42,268,806) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (189,376)  (0.04)
28/03/2024 EUR 4,551,400 USD (5,074,715)  CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (32,374)  (0.01)
28/03/2024 EUR 5,151,243 USD (5,743,527)  CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg (36,640)  (0.01)
28/03/2024  CHF 12,829,652 USD (15,371,001)  CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 31,522 0.01
28/03/2024  CHF 265,969 USD (317,903) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 1,403 0.00
28/03/2024  CHF 34,485 USD (41,219) CACEIS IS Bank Luxembourg 182 0.00
(1,070,849)  (0.22)
TOTAL FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS (1,070,849)  (0.22)
OPTIONS
(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity Currency cost value  assets
CAYMAN ISLANDS
Call Alibaba Group Holding 21/06/2024 85.00 1,015 USD 739,200 593,775 0.12
739,200 593,775 0.12
FRANCE
Call Total Energies SE 21/06/2024 60.00 2,117 EUR 1,103,365 1,001,197 0.20
1,103,365 1,001,197 0.20
TOTAL OPTIONS 1,842,565 1,594,972 0.32
TOTAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 524,123 0.10
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 491,410,081  99.80
OTHER ASSETS 12,915,920 2.62
OTHER LIABILITIES (11,902,964) (2.42)
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES 492,423,037 100.00
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% of Total Assets

Assets

Investment in Transferable Securities 97.12
Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 0.32
Cash at Bank 0.01
Cash held as Collateral 0.16
Other Assets 2.39
Total Assets 100.00
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Purchases
Security Name Quantity Cost % of
$ Total Purchases
Goldman Sachs Plc - US$ Liquid Reserves Fund 226,902,981 226,902,981 57.76
Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg SCA 0.00%
15/03/2028 EMTN 10,000,000 10,803,605 2.75
Apollo Global Management Inc 6.75% 31/07/2026 /
Preference 114,005 5,948,556 1.51
PPL Capital Funding Inc 2.88% 15/03/2028 5,715,000 5,787,827 1.47
Wynn Macau Ltd 4.50% 07/03/2029 5,534,000 5,697,659 1.45
ON Semiconductor Corp 0.50% 01/03/2029 5,408,000 5,379,877 1.37
Schneider Electric SE 0.00% 15/06/2026 26,043 5,354,030 1.36
Daifuku Co Ltd 0.00% 13/09/2030 740,000,000 5,337,209 1.36
Saipem SpA 2.88% 11/09/2029 4,700,000 5,302,189 1.35
Wayfair Inc 3.50% 15/11/2028 5,231,000 5,293,419 1.35
LG Chem Ltd 1.25% 18/07/2028 5,100,000 5,218,550 1.33
Sanrio Co Ltd 0.00% 14/12/2028 700,000,000 5,210,559 1.33
American Water Capital Corp 3.63% 15/06/2026 5,135,000 5,137,685 1.31
Seagate HDD Cayman 3.50% 01/06/2028 5,086,000 5,119,309 1.30
Eni SpA 2.95% 14/09/2030 EMTN 4,700,000 5,036,703 1.28
Fomento Economico Mexicano SAB de CV 2.63%
24/02/2026 4,500,000 5,022,490 1.28
Uber Technologies Inc 0.88% 01/12/2028 4,733,000 4,764,171 1.21
United States Treasury Note/Bond 4.38% 31/10/2024 4,039,000 4,005,079 1.02
Shockwave Medical Inc 1.00% 15/08/2028 3,924,000 3,998,401 1.02
Workiva Inc 1.25% 15/08/2028 3,880,000 3,878,416 0.99
Sales
Security Name Quantity Proceed % of
$ Total Sales
Goldman Sachs Plc - USS Liquid Reserves Fund 221,934,907 221,934,907 45.46
ON Semiconductor Corp 0.00% 01/05/2027 6,184,000 10,125,323 2.07
DTE Energy Co 88,183 9,886,761 2.03
Bank of America Corp 7.25% / Preference 7,780 8,815,242 1.81
Wells Fargo & Co 7.50% / Preference 7,746 8,761,276 1.79
ADM Ag Holding Ltd 0.00% 26/08/2023 8,000,000 7,810,000 1.60
Okta Inc 0.13% 01/09/2025 8,023,000 7,325,110 1.50
Five9 Inc 0.50% 01/06/2025 7,655,000 7,238,788 1.48
Menicon Co Ltd 0.00% 29/01/2025 900,000,000 6,268,313 1.28
Oak Street Health Inc 0.00% 15/03/2026 6,358,000 6,134,213 1.26
Oliver Capital Sarl 0.00% 29/12/2023 5,800,000 6,009,932 1.23
Nexi SpA 0.00% 24/02/2028 6,600,000 5,454,337 1.12
PDD Holdings Inc 0.00% 01/12/2025 5,464,000 5,439,412 1.11
Citigroup Global Markets Funding Luxembourg SCA
0.00% 15/03/2028 EMTN 5,000,000 5,401,802 1.11
Sea Ltd 2.38% 01/12/2025 4,537,000 5,293,080 1.08
Wayfair Inc 3.25% 15/09/2027 5,537,000 4,773,223 0.98
Sunrun Inc 0.00% 01/02/2026 5,973,000 4,539,480 0.93
Snap Inc 0.13% 01/03/2028 6,000,000 4,174,583 0.86
Mercari Inc 0.00% 14/07/2028 830,000,000 4,158,607 0.85
Booking Holdings Inc 0.75% 01/05/2025 2,389,000 4,150,057 0.85

The tables above show a breakdown of material purchases and sales of the Portfolios in accordance with Central Bank UCITS Regulations
79(2) requirements. All purchases and sales of investments exceeding 1% of the total value of each purchases and sales respectively, a

minimum of 20 of each such purchases and sales, are disclosed.
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During the annual period ending 31 December 2023, the S&P 500 Index returned 26.29%. However, the returns of many of
the names within the broad equity market and bond market were more muted. The S&P 500 is a market-capitalization
weighted index, and a small group of stocks, colloquially named “The Magnificent Seven” (Apple, Microsoft, Amazon,
Nvidia, Alphabet, Tesla, and Meta), accounted for approximately 60% of the index’s annual return. The S&P 500 Equal
Weight Index delivered a still impressive 13.87% for the year, the ICE BofA All U.S. Convertibles ex Mandatory Index rose
13.77%, and the Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond Index gained 5.53%.

The reporting period began in the midst of a record pace of interest rate hikes in the United States and ended with the Federal
Reserve suggesting that proactive cuts may be on the table. The market rotated quickly around narratives of Fed policy and
whether the U.S. economy was likely to experience a hard or soft landing. Although the economy continued to show
surprising momentum, fears of an overly aggressive Federal Reserve and worries about a “higher for longer” interest rate
environment dominated financial headlines. In March, the sudden and unexpected collapse of Silicon Valley Bank caught
markets off guard, and fears quickly spread globally with Credit Suisse’s failure in Switzerland. Interest rate hike expectations
quickly gave way to fears of tighter lending standards and a broad collapse in market liquidity. Interest rates fell as markets
anticipated a Fed rescue, and banks quickly joined energy as market underperformers. Investors gravitated toward the relative
safety of mega-cap companies with reliable growth profiles and fully funded capital needs, and most notably favored those
companies that were Al- and tech-related.

The Fed paused interest rate hikes in June and chose to hold rates steady in its September, October, and December meetings.
Inflation proved to be sticky but began to decline in the second half of the year. Markets rallied strongly in the fourth quarter
on the belief that rate hikes may have ended and saw a further boost in late December when Chairman Powell spoke and
pivoted toward the prospect of proactive interest rate cuts.

Performance Review

Calamos Growth and Income Fund can invest in equities, convertible securities, options, and bonds. This multi-asset class
strategy is designed to enhance performance through full market cycles and mitigate exposure to downward moves in the
stock market. For the 12-month reporting period ended 31 December 2023, the Fund performed in line with our expectations.
The Fund posted a strong gain of 19.45% (US Accumulating I shares), capturing a healthy measure of the all-equity index’s
return.

The Fund’s investments in equities enhanced relative performance, as the portfolio was smartly invested in top-performing
technology stocks while avoiding some problematic health care names. The Fund’s bias toward quality growth stocks also
worked well for the period.

The use of convertible securities to gain access to lower-valued but more volatile small-cap businesses lagged for the period,
but we continue to view these securities as attractive means to access smaller-cap businesses that are trading at attractive
valuations. Investments in consumer discretionary names delivered strong absolute performance yet lagged those of the all-
equity S&P 500 Index. Information technology holdings were a relative drag on performance when compared to the all-
equity index because of the Fund’s slight underweight to the outperforming semiconductor industry. An underweight to the
more defensive consumer staples sector was additive to relative performance, as was strong security selection.

Positioning Discussion

We believe the best positioning for this environment is a neutral risk posture, focusing on specific areas with real growth
tailwinds, companies with improving returns on capital in 2024, and equities and fixed income securities with valuations at
favorable expected risk-adjusted returns. We see compelling prospects for companies with exposure to new products and
geographic growth opportunities (examples can be found in health care, electric vehicles, and Al-related infrastructure and
software); specific infrastructure spending areas (in materials and industrial sectors); and the normalization of supply chains
and areas of the service economy.

From a sector standpoint, the portfolio’s largest weights are within information technology and financials on an absolute
basis, while the smallest sector weights with holdings are in real estate and utilities.

We are selectively using convertible bonds to gain exposure to some higher-risk industries. From an asset-class perspective,
cash and short-term Treasuries remain useful tools to lower volatility in a multi-asset-class portfolio, given their yields.
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In Conclusion

Given our expectation of slowing but positive economic growth over the next year, we are assessing the investment
opportunities with a continued focus on real growth and return improvement areas. In addition to areas with favorable cyclical
factors, we believe companies that can improve profitability in a slower-growth environment are good investments. Many
companies are focused on improving their returns on capital through improved efficiencies, normalized supply chains, and
revised investment strategies based on the current interest-rate environment. The pace of corporate cost-cutting and
restructuring has increased over the past several quarters across several areas, providing more opportunities to identify
companies with improving returns on capital. Over the short- and intermediate-term, improved real returns on capital should
drive higher equity prices.

Calamos Advisors LLC

Date: 25 April 2024
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31°* December 2023 and 2022

Calamos Growth And Income Fund

CGIF CGIF*
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note $ $
ASSETS
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:
Investments in Transferable Securities 3 72,912,117 17,268,992
Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 232,675 99,599
Cash at bank 5 3,810,929 1,728,716
Cash held as collateral 5 90,419 -
Dividends and interest receivable 124,881 17,444
Amount receivable on subscriptions 2,287,380 259,090
Amount receivable on sale of securities 61,447 49,287
Receivable from Investment Manager 7,10 48,602 105,059
Other receivables 1,241 180
TOTAL ASSETS 79,569,691 19,528,367
LIABILITIES
Amount payable on purchase of securities 2,808,270 1,302,907
Investment management fees payable 7,10 65,685 43,269
Management fee payable 7 4,092 2,611
Administration fees payable 7 13,020 4,954
Transfer agency fees payable 7 8,439 3,762
Directors’ fees payable 7 980 870
Depositary and depositary oversight fees payable 7 17,647 2,913
Audit fees payable 7 4,820 4,825
Redemptions payable 40,931 16,978
Other fees payable 61,589 20,051
TOTAL LIABILITIES (excluding net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares) 3,025,473 1,403,140
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES 76,544,218 18,125,227

*Launched on 3™ June 2022.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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for the Financial Year Ended 31° December 2023

Calamos Growth And Income Fund

CGIF CGIF*
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note $ $
INCOME
Dividend income 496,899 58,497
Bond interest income 2 53,952 8,367
Net realised and unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 9 6,982,990 (605,289)
Bank interest 112,989 8,591
Expense reimbursement from Investment Manager 7,10 210,652 105,059
Other income 1,341 8
TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME/(LOSS) 7,858,823 (424,767)
EXPENSES
Investment management fees 7,10 451,916 44,465
Management fees 7 38,169 17,925
Administration fees 7 41,461 8,019
Directors’ fees 7 10,717 6,615
Depositary and depositary oversight fees 7 123,074 35,043
Audit fees 7 7,790 4,825
Transfer agency fees 7 19,481 7,880
Bank interest expenses 35 27
Formation expenses 7 - 46,089
Other fees and expenses 7 365,300 64,564
Total Operating Expenses 1,057,943 235,452
Operating Profit/(Loss) 6,800,880 (660,219)
Withholding tax 131,547 16,089
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations 6,669,333 (676,308)

*Launched on 3™ June 2022.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements. All of the results for the financial year

relate to continuing operations.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of

Redeemable Participating Shares

Calamos Growth And Income Fund

CGIF CGIF*
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
$ $
Net Assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
beginning of the financial year 18,125,227 -
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 6,669,333 (676,308)
Capital transactions
Issue of redeemable shares during the financial year 58,029,076 18,920,929
Redemption of redeemable shares during the financial year (6,279,418) (119,394)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the end
of the financial year 76,544,218 18,125,227

*Launched on 3" June 2022.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CGIF CGIF*
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
$ $
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 6,669,333 (676,308)
Adjustment to reconcile increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations to net cash used in operating activities
Bond interest income (53,952) (8,367)
Dividend income (496,899) (58,497)
Tax expense 131,547 16,089
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 6,250,029 (727,083)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Net increase in financial assets and liabilities at fair value (55,776,201) (17,368,591)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables 43,236 (154,526)
Increase in payables 1,598,380 1,386,162
Cash used in operating activities (47,884,556) (16,864,038)
Interest paid (22,270) (1,218)
Dividend received 465,684 50,638
Taxation paid (131,547) (16,089)
Net cash used in operating activities (47,572,689) (16,830,707)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 56,000,786 18,661,839
Payment on redemptions of redeemable participating shares (6,255,465) (102,416)
Net cash provided by financing activities 49,745,321 18,559,423
Net increase in cash 2,172,632 1,728,716
Net Cash at the start of the financial year 1,728,716 -
Net Cash at the end of the financial year 3,901,348 1,728,716
Analysis of Cash
Cash at the start of the financial year 1,728,716 -
Cash held as collateral at the start of the financial year - -
Overdraft at the start of the financial year - -
Collateral due to brokers at the start of the financial year - -
Cash at the end of the financial year 3,810,929 1,728,716
Cash held as collateral at the end of the financial year 90,419 -

Overdraft at the end of the financial year
Collateral due to brokers at the end of the financial year

*Launched on 3™ June 2022.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Schedule of Investments

As at 31" December 2023

Calamos Growth And Income Fund

(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value  assets
1) INVESTMENTS
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
1) LISTED SECURITIES : EQUITIES
CURACAO

Schlumberger NV 5,962 USD 309,006 310,262 0.41
309,006 310,262 0.41
IRELAND
Linde Plc 1,601 UsSD 571,800 657,547 0.86
Accenture Plc 1,737 USD 530,083 609,531 0.80
Jazz Pharmaceuticals Plc 608 USD 84,706 74,785 0.10
Medtronic Plc 3,527 USD 293,257 290,554 0.38
1,479,846 1,632,417 2.14
JERSEY
Glencore Plc 14,388 GBP 87,773 86,582 0.11
Aptiv Plc 4,012 USD 400,659 359,957 0.47
488,432 446,539 0.58
SWITZERLAND
Chubb Ltd 2,319 USD 483,123 524,094 0.68
Alcon Inc 3,025 USD 224,945 236,314 0.31
708,068 760,408 0.99
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
Abbott Laboratories 2,017 USD 209,122 222,011 0.29
AbbVie Inc 2,326 USD 341,254 360,460 0.47
Adobe Inc 564 USD 264,784 336,482 0.44
Advanced Micro Devices Inc 2,613 USD 292,819 385,182 0.50
Alphabet Inc - Class A 23,043 USD 2,719,798 3,218,877 4.21
Amazon.com Inc 17,956 USD 2,228,075 2,728,235 3.56
American Express Co 1,193 USD 194,213 223,497 0.29
American International Group Inc 3,037 USD 181,998 205,757 0.27
Elevance Health Inc 588 USD 277,216 277,277 0.36
Apollo Global Management Inc 6.75%
31/07/2026 / Preference 7,380 USD 388,445 416,158 0.54
Apple Inc 28,594 USD 4,881,349 5,505,203 7.19
Assurant Inc 1,337 USD 191,169 225,271 0.29
Bank of America Corp 16,498 USD 516,148 555,488 0.73
BlackRock Inc 278 USD 195,609 225,680 0.29
Boeing Co 1,759 USD 369,051 458,501 0.60
Boston Scientific Corp 8,480 USD 438,188 490,229 0.64
Bristol-Myers Squibb Co 3,121 USD 195,351 160,139 0.21
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)

As at 31" December 2023

Calamos Growth And Income Fund

(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net

Description Quantity  Currency cost Value  assets

A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING (continued)

1) LISTED SECURITIES : EQUITIES (continued)

UNITED STATES (U.S.A.) (continued)
Broadcom Inc 887 USD 641,386 990,114 1.29
CMS Energy Corp 2,553 USD 140,727 148,253 0.19
CSX Corp 21,228 USD 673,222 735,975 0.96
Chart Industries Inc 6.75% 15/12/2025 /
Preference 1,716 UsSD 98,675 95,375 0.12
Chevron Corp 2,075 USD 327,275 309,507 0.40
Cisco Systems Inc 5,651 USD 281,612 285,490 0.37
Citigroup Inc 1,781 UsSD 82,087 91,615 0.12
Coca-Cola Co 8,164 USD 483,084 481,105 0.63
Comcast Corp 9,797 UsSD 397,114 429,598 0.56
ConocoPhillips 2,524 USD 283,174 292,961 0.38
Costco Wholesale Corp 892 USD 491,516 588,791 0.77
DTE Energy Co 2,876 UsSD 310,018 317,108 0.41
Danaher Corp 2,133 USD 486,387 493,448 0.64
Dexcom Inc 1,778 USD 198,315 220,632 0.29
Walt Disney Co 3,305 USD 299,269 298,408 0.39
Exxon Mobil Corp 7,263 USD 768,337 726,155 0.95
Meta Platforms Inc 3,647 USD 900,616 1,290,892 1.69
Freeport-McMoRan Inc 9,403 USD 364,559 400,286 0.52
Goldman Sachs Group Inc 670 USD 228,731 258,466 0.34
Hess Corp 1,833 USD 254,996 264,245 0.35
Home Depot Inc 1,537 USD 482,557 532,647 0.70
Honeywell International Inc 3,681 USD 728,701 771,943 1.01
Humana Inc 271 USD 133,350 124,067 0.16
JB Hunt Transport Services Inc 1,958 USD 359,508 391,091 0.51
Intuit Inc 257 USD 124,620 160,633 0.21
JPMorgan Chase & Co 5,465 USD 783,336 929,597 1.21
Johnson & Johnson 4,930 USD 795,211 772,728 1.01
KKR & Co Inc 2,959 USD 184,486 245,153 0.32
Kenvue Inc 3,793 USD 85,317 81,663 0.11
Lam Research Corp 416 USD 246,028 325,836 0.43
Las Vegas Sands Corp 7,276 USD 368,155 358,052 0.47
Eli Lilly & Co 1,306 USD 601,534 761,294 0.99
Lowe's Cos Inc 1,344 USD 286,948 299,107 0.39
Marathon Petroleum Corp 2,150 USD 281,247 318,974 0.42
Marsh & McLennan Cos Inc 2,980 USD 539,861 564,621 0.74
Mastercard Inc 2,087 USD 795,278 890,126 1.16
McDonald's Corp 1,453 USD 403,009 430,829 0.56
McKesson Corp 497 USD 215,582 230,101 0.30
Merck & Co Inc 5,479 USD 578,384 597,321 0.78
Microsoft Corp 14,092 USD 4,365,488 5,299,156 6.92
Micron Technology Inc 2,478 USD 170,218 211,473 0.28
Mondelez International Inc 2,768 USD 186,760 200,486 0.26
Monster Beverage Corp 3,708 USD 197,952 213,618 0.28
Morgan Stanley 7,201 USD 621,888 671,493 0.88
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Calamos Growth And Income Fund

(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value  assets
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING (continued)
1) LISTED SECURITIES : EQUITIES (continued)
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.) (continued)
Netflix Inc 844 USD 318,320 410,927 0.54
NextEra Energy Inc 6.93% 01/09/2025 /
Preference 6,550 USD 283,776 249,686 0.33
NIKE Inc 3,065 USD 336,903 332,767 0.43
Northrop Grumman Corp 771 USD 362,201 360,936 0.47
NVIDIA Corp 3,930 USD 1,319,794 1,946,215 2.54
Oracle Corp 2,028 USD 202,527 213,812 0.28
PPG Industries Inc 3,095 UsSD 427,299 462,857 0.60
Parker-Hannifin Corp 1,269 USD 468,307 584,628 0.76
PayPal Holdings Inc 2,426 UsSD 152,381 148,981 0.19
PepsiCo Inc 2,213 USD 385,935 375,856 0.49
Pfizer Inc 6,279 UsSD 240,352 180,772 0.24
Philip Morris International Inc 4,722 USD 453,058 444,247 0.58
Pioneer Natural Resources Co 771 USD 171,225 173,382 0.23
Procter & Gamble Co 4,648 USD 685,444 681,118 0.89
RTX Corp 5,533 USD 482,873 465,547 0.61
S&P Global Inc 653 USD 258,303 287,660 0.38
Salesforce Inc 1,495 USD 298,030 393,394 0.52
ServiceNow Inc 560 USD 300,688 395,634 0.52
Sherwin-Williams Co 489 USD 153,291 152,519 0.20
Starbucks Corp 2,773 USD 271,612 266,236 0.35
Stryker Corp 538 USD 145,425 161,109 0.21
TJX Cos Inc 2,325 USD 199,230 218,108 0.28
T-Mobile US Inc 3,314 USD 483,305 531,334 0.69
Tesla Inc 3,704 USD 832,429 920,370 1.20
Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc 799 USD 426,697 424,101 0.55
UnitedHealth Group Inc 1,908 USD 967,088 1,004,505 1.31
Veralto Corp 371 USD 32,612 30,518 0.04
Visa Inc 5,147 USD 1,193,771 1,340,021 1.75
Vulcan Materials Co 1,240 USD 255,456 281,493 0.37
Walmart Inc 2,993 USD 451,057 471,846 0.62
Wells Fargo & Co 9,771 USD 425,974 480,929 0.63
Zimmer Biomet Holdings Inc 2,754 USD 343,862 335,162 0.44
48,460,332 54,821,550  71.59
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : EQUITIES 51,445,684 57,971,176  75.71
2) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS
SOUTH KOREA
SK Hynix Inc 1.75% 11/04/2030 200,000 USD 257,217 280,314 0.37
257,217 280,314 0.37
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(expressed in USD) Acquisition
Description Quantity  Currency cost

Fair
Value

% net
assets

A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING (continued)

2) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS (continued)

UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)

Ares Capital Corp 4.63% 01/03/2024 117,000 USD 121,298 121,230 0.16
United States Treasury Note/Bond 2.25%
31/03/2024 696,000 USD 681,639 690,930 0.90
United States Treasury Note/Bond 3.00%
30/06/2024 635,000 USD 628,251 628,439 0.82
United States Treasury Note/Bond 3.25%
31/08/2024 635,000 USD 627,474 627,232 0.82
United States Treasury Note/Bond 4.38%
31/10/2024 711,000 USD 706,844 708,042 0.93
JPMorgan Chase Bank NA 0.00%
10/06/2024 100,000 EUR 128,710 113,005 0.15
2,894,216 2,888,878 3.78
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS 3,151,433 3,169,192 4.15
3) LISTED SECURITIES : EXCHANGE TRADED FUNDS
IRELAND
iShares Nasdaq US Biotechnology UCITS
ETF 29,940 USD 191,814 191,018 0.25
191,814 191,018 0.25
TOTAL LISTED SECURITIES : EXCHANGE TRADED FUNDS 191,814 191,018 0.25
TOTAL TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK
EXCHANGE LISTING 54,788,931 61,331,386  80.11
B) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES DEALT ON ANOTHER REGULATED MARKET
1) OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : EQUITIES
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
AMG Capital Trust I 5.15% 15/10/2037 /
Preference 2,379 USD 119,358 115,791 0.15
119,358 115,791 0.15
TOTAL OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : EQUITIES 119,358 115,791 0.15
2) OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : BONDS
CAYMAN ISLANDS
Seagate HDD Cayman 3.50% 01/06/2028 317,000 USD 341,570 383,000 0.50
341,570 383,000 0.50
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(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value  assets
B) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES DEALT ON ANOTHER REGULATED MARKET (continued)
2) OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : BONDS (continued)
ISRAEL
CyberArk Software Ltd 0.00% 15/11/2024 412,000 USD 484,187 584,059 0.76
484,187 584,059 0.76
LIBERIA
Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd 6.00%
15/08/2025 91,000 USD 195,933 242,516 0.32
195,933 242,516 0.32
UNITED STATES (U.S.A))
Akamai Technologies Inc 0.38%
01/09/2027 102,000 UsSD 104,420 114,357 0.15
Akamai Technologies Inc 1.13%
15/02/2029 332,000 USD 341,577 360,270 0.47
Alliant Energy Corp 3.88% 15/03/2026 288,000 USD 283,641 286,597 0.37
Alnylam Pharmaceuticals Inc 1.00%
15/09/2027 214,000 USD 209,969 212,113 0.28
Axon Enterprise Inc 0.50% 15/12/2027 136,000 UsSD 148,909 172,126 0.22
BILL Holdings Inc 0.00% 01/12/2025 114,000 USD 115,444 106,779 0.14
Booking Holdings Inc 0.75% 01/05/2025 226,000 USD 362,319 427,019 0.56
CMS Energy Corp 3.38% 01/05/2028 395,000 USD 391,535 391,666 0.51
CenterPoint Energy Inc 3.37% 15/09/2029 2,389 USD 95,611 92,259 0.12
Dexcom Inc 0.25% 15/11/2025 320,000 USD 333,688 334,768 0.44
EQT Corp 1.75% 01/05/2026 44,000 USD 115,425 117,130 0.15
Enphase Energy Inc 0.00% 01/03/2026 40,000 USD 43,584 36,726 0.05
Enphase Energy Inc 0.00% 01/03/2028 162,000 USD 165,470 145,084 0.19
Envista Holdings Corp 1.75% 15/08/2028 85,000 USD 81,783 77,522 0.10
Fluor Corp 1.13% 15/08/2029 215,000 USD 219,728 234,055 0.31
Ford Motor Co 0.00% 15/03/2026 276,000 USD 271,745 274,932 0.36
John Bean Technologies Corp 0.25%
15/05/2026 421,000 USD 385,695 381,405 0.50
Liberty Media Corp 3.75% 15/03/2028 163,000 USD 175,337 195,233 0.26
Liberty Media Corp-Liberty Formula One
2.25% 15/08/2027 217,000 USD 222,283 221,099 0.29
Liberty Media Corp 2.38% 30/09/2053 130,000 USD 130,762 141,006 0.19
Live Nation Entertainment Inc 2.00%
15/02/2025 396,000 USD 413,422 419,431 0.55
Middleby Corp 1.00% 01/09/2025 408,000 USD 489,092 497,874 0.65
Morgan Stanley Finance LLC 1.00%
23/11/2027 243,000 USD 259,121 277,020 0.36
Northern Oil and Gas Inc 3.63%
15/04/2029 161,000 USD 183,839 190,197 0.25
Nutanix Inc 0.25% 01/10/2027 184,000 USD 186,021 191,614 0.25
ON Semiconductor Corp 0.50% 01/03/2029 410,000 USD 429,920 431,915 0.56
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(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value  assets
B) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES DEALT ON ANOTHER REGULATED MARKET (continued)
2) OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : BONDS (continued)
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.) (continued)
PPL Capital Funding Inc 2.88% 15/03/2028 483,000 USD 466,958 469,211 0.61
Palo Alto Networks Inc 0.38% 01/06/2025 60,000 USD 126,008 177,965 0.23
Pebblebrook Hotel Trust 1.75% 15/12/2026 266,000 USD 231,668 239,009 0.31
Rapid7 Inc 1.25% 15/03/2029 143,000 USD 146,529 159,672 0.21
Rivian Automotive Inc 4.63% 15/03/2029 130,000 UsSD 171,432 183,284 0.24
Southwest Airlines Co 1.25% 01/05/2025 129,000 USD 134,154 130,815 0.17
Tetra Tech Inc 2.25% 15/08/2028 247,000 UsSD 250,773 259,212 0.34
Tyler Technologies Inc 0.25% 15/03/2026 140,000 UsSD 138,453 142,139 0.19
Wayfair Inc 3.25% 15/09/2027 86,000 USD 111,259 106,419 0.14
Western Digital Corp 3.00% 15/11/2028 126,000 UsSD 147,849 154,316 0.20
Workiva Inc 1.25% 15/08/2028 143,000 USD 143,025 145,480 0.19
8,228,448 8,497,719 11.11
TOTAL OTHER ORGANISED MARKET : BONDS 9,250,138 9,707,294 12.69
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES DEALT ON ANOTHER
REGULATED MARKET 9,369,496 9,823,085 12.84
C) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES
1) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : BONDS
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.)
Advanced Energy Industries Inc 2.50%
15/09/2028 142,000 USD 143,305 150,877 0.20
Exact Sciences Corp 2.00% 01/03/2030 132,000 USD 151,762 158,726 0.21
Integer Holdings Corp 2.13% 15/02/2028 189,000 USD 220,239 241,693 0.32
Uber Technologies Inc 0.88% 01/12/2028 289,000 USD 294,412 314,819 0.41
Welltower OP LLC 2.75% 15/05/2028 338,000 USD 347,975 373,493 0.49
1,157,693 1,239,608 1.63
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : BONDS 1,157,693 1,239,608 1.63
2) OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUSTS
UNITED STATES (U.S.A.) Total
American Tower Corp 1,834 USD 372,982 395,924 0.52
Invitation Homes Inc 3,580 USD 117,135 122,114 0.16
490,117 518,038 0.68
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES : REAL
ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUSTS 490,117 518,038 0.68
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES 1,647,810 1,757,646 2.31
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D) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Unrealised % net
Maturity Currency Bought Currency Sold Counterparty Appreciation/(Depreciation)  assets
03/01/2024  GBP 835 USD (1,064) Bank of America - 0.00
- 0.00
TOTAL FORWARD CURRENCY EXCHANGE CONTRACTS - 0.00
OPTIONS
(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair o net
Description Quantity Currency cost value  assets
UNITED STATES (U.S.A))
Call MRUT Index Mini 15/03/2024 200.00 75 USD 59,811 72,375 0.09
Call MSCI EAFE Index 15/03/2024 2130.00 10 USD 104,700 140,450 0.18
Put NDX Nasdaq 100 Index 16/02/2024 15825.00 2 USD 56,734 19,850 0.03
221,245 232,675 0.30
TOTAL OPTIONS 221,245 232,675 0.30
TOTAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 232,675 0.30
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 73,144,792 95.56
OTHER ASSETS 6,424,899 8.39
OTHER LIABILITIES (3,025,473)  (3.95)
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES 76,544,218 100.00
% of Total Assets
Assets
Investment in Transferable Securities 91.64
Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 0.29
Cash at Bank 4.79
Cash held as Collateral 0.11
Other Assets 3.17
Total Assets 100.00
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Significant Portfolio Movements (unaudited)
315 December 2023

Calamos Growth And Income Fund

Purchases
Security Name Quantity Cost % of
$ Total Purchases
Apple Inc 21,609 3,880,350 6.50
Microsoft Corp 10,516 3,471,883 5.81
Alphabet Inc - Class A 17,224 2,139,478 3.58
Amazon.com Inc 13,653 1,770,838 2.97
NVIDIA Corp 3,131 1,247,837 2.09
Visa Inc 3,845 926,082 1.55
Meta Platforms Inc 2,722 779,523 1.31
UnitedHealth Group Inc 1,542 776,107 1.30
Linde Plc 1,941 705,254 1.18
Tesla Inc 2,939 689,613 1.15
Broadcom Inc 781 656,281 1.10
United States Treasury Note/Bond 3.00% 30/06/2024 635,000 628,251 1.05
United States Treasury Note/Bond 3.25% 31/08/2024 635,000 627,474 1.05
Mastercard Inc 1,560 618,126 1.04
JPMorgan Chase & Co 4,108 612,140 1.03
Johnson & Johnson 3,811 603,768 1.01
Exxon Mobil Corp 5,541 595,199 1.00
Parker-Hannifin Corp 1,471 555,544 0.93
Honeywell International Inc 2,748 540,711 0.91
ON Semiconductor Corp 0.50% 01/03/2029 515,000 534,500 0.90
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Significant Portfolio Movements (unaudited) (Continued)
315 December 2023

Calamos Growth And Income Fund

Sales
Security Name Quantity Proceed % of
$ Total Sales
American Electric Power Co Inc 6.13% 15/08/2023 6,671 331,269 3.02
iShares MSCI China UCITS ETF 67,997 326,562 2.98
Linde Plc 858 276,689 2.52
RTX Corp 3,286 268,393 2.45
Microchip Technology Inc 0.13% 15/11/2024 250,000 257,590 2.35
Apple Inc 1,282 215,644 1.97
Broadcom Inc 229 204,448 1.86
KKR & Co Inc 6.00% 15/09/2023 / Preference 2,922 203,114 1.85
Wynn Macau Ltd 4.50% 07/03/2029 200,000 200,095 1.82
Pacira BioSciences Inc 0.75% 01/08/2025 221,000 198,661 1.81
SPDR Russell 2000 U.S. Small Cap UCITS ETF 3,745 189,211 1.72
Gilead Sciences Inc 2,415 187,776 1.71
Aptiv Plc 5.50% 15/06/2023 1,603 185,418 1.69
Coca-Cola Co 3,441 183,044 1.67
Vail Resorts Inc 0.00% 01/01/2026 206,000 182,541 1.66
NVIDIA Corp 591 180,365 1.64
AES Corp 6.88% 15/02/2024 3,640 179,844 1.64
Boston Scientific Corp 5.50% 01/06/2023 1,529 178,305 1.62
Linde Plc 415 170,662 1.56
UnitedHealth Group Inc 356 169,887 1.55
DTE Energy Co 1,565 157,872 1.44
Chevron Corp 1,098 156,343 1.42
ON Semiconductor Corp 0.00% 01/05/2027 97,000 148,287 1.35
Microsoft Corp 521 146,599 1.34
Marriott Vacations Worldwide Corp 0.00% 15/01/2026 171,000 146,452 1.33
Booking Holdings Inc 55 145,175 1.32
Palo Alto Networks Inc 0.38% 01/06/2025 66,000 143,859 1.31
Sysco Corp 1,831 137,881 1.26
Mondelez International Inc 1,754 132,110 1.20
Medtronic Plc 1,861 131,166 1.20
McKesson Corp 292 128,949 1.18
Ulta Beauty Inc 300 127,342 1.16
Discover Financial Services 1,322 124,870 1.14
Granite Construction Inc 3.75% 15/05/2028 108,000 122,099 1.11
Envista Holdings Corp 2.38% 01/06/2025 71,000 121,976 1.11
Southwest Airlines Co 4,181 120,459 1.10
Airbnb Inc 0.00% 15/03/2026 138,000 115,048 1.05
Estee Lauder Cos Inc 780 114,678 1.05
Charles Schwab Corp 2,168 113,810 1.04

The tables above show a breakdown of material purchases and sales of the Portfolios in accordance with Central Bank UCITS Regulations
79(2) requirements. All purchases and sales of investments exceeding 1% of the total value of each purchases and sales respectively, a
minimum of 20 of each such purchases and sales, are disclosed.
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Investment Manager’s Report

Causeway Defined Growth Fund

Introduction

The Fund aims to generate capital growth of 7-8% per annum over the medium to long-term and aims to do so in anything
but the bleakest of market conditions. It achieves this via exposure to a diversified portfolio of autocallable instruments linked
to major global equity indices.

Performance Review

The Fund was approved by the Central Bank of Ireland in December 2019 and made its first investments into equity market
linked autocallable instruments, collateralised on G7 Government Bonds in March 2020. Since launch the Fund has invested
in 37 different autocallable instruments, 21 of which have matured early with an average coupon of 9% per annum.

As of 31 December 2023, the Fund holds a portfolio of sixteen different instruments with varied underlying indices, durations
and return profiles. Existing instruments are topped-up and new instruments added on an ongoing basis depending on the
prevailing pricing conditions. The average coupon of the portfolio is 10.02% per annum, with the average distance above the
final autocall barrier being 29.7%.

Performance from launch to 31 December 2023 is 11.24% (annualised return of 2.77%).

After challenging conditions for equity markets during 2022 and the first half or 2023, we believe the Fund’s current portfolio
of investments remain on track to deliver its long-term objectives, while maintaining significant protection to the downside.

Outlook
As ever, it is difficult to predict how markets might perform in the future, but the portfolio is constructed in such a way that
the fund will perform better than the market in most market scenarios over the long run. The Fund is currently well positioned

to continue to grow its AUM, increase its portfolio of investments; and in turn deliver its stated aim of returning 7% to 8%
per annum over the medium to long term.

Causeway Securities Limited

Date: 25 April 2024
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31° December 2023 and 2022

Causeway Defined Growth Fund

CDGF CDGF
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note $ $
ASSETS
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investments in Transferable Securities 3 20,070,046 20,893,078

Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 4,828,281 2,250,822
Cash at bank 5 515,139 590,906
Cash held as collateral 5 3,106,411 1,590,473
Dividends and interest receivable 38,171 47,620
Amount receivable on subscriptions 7 -
Receivable from Investment Manager 7,10 53,571 25378
Other receivables 908 1,597
TOTAL ASSETS 28,612,534 25,399,874
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Investment in Financial Derivative Instruments 3 2,468,105 2,582,841
Bank Overdraft 5 16 5
Collateral due to brokers 5 3,106,411 1,230,473
Investment management fees payable 7,10 36,553 11,784
Sub-Investment management fees payable 7 14,496 14,163
Management fee payable 7 4,987 4,786
Administration fees payable 7 21,949 13,737
Transfer agency fees payable 7 5,558 6,190
Depositary and depositary oversight fees payable 7 5,280 3,403
Audit fees payable 7 7,345 7,454
Redemptions payable 28,550 -
Other fees payable 1,526 4,108
TOTAL LIABILITIES (excluding net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares) 5,700,776 3,878,944
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES 22,911,758 21,520,930

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the Financial Year Ended 31° December 2023 and 2022

Causeway Defined Growth Fund

CDGF CDGF
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
Note $ $
INCOME
Bond interest income 2 118,731 130,010
Net realised and unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 9 4,099,206  (3,708,658)
Bank Interest 47,580 18,315
Expense reimbursement from Investment Manager 7,10 133,153 101,115
Swap interest income 2 1,195,560 248,786
Other income 2,246 11,003
TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME/(LOSS) 5,596,476  (3,199,429)
EXPENSES
Investment management fees 7,10 148,118 149,977
Sub-Investment management fees 7 90,371 92,577
Management fees 7 63,083 60,769
Administration fees 7 37,545 36,467
Directors’ fees 7 10,669 10,083
Depositary and depositary oversight fees 7 24,581 21,327
Audit fees 7 9,152 8,149
Transfer agency fees 7 36,111 38,860
Swap interest expense 2 1,680,232 538,750
Bank interest expenses 91,243 13,526
Other fees and expenses 7 80,064 62,347
Total Operating Expenses 2,271,169 1,032,832
Operating Profit/(Loss) 3,325,307  (4,232,261)
Finance Costs
Dividends to holders of redeemable participating shares 13 247,710 223,172
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 3,077,597  (4,455,433)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares from operations 3,077,597  (4,455,433)

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements. All of the results for the financial year relate to
continuing operations.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares

Causeway Defined Growth Fund

CDGF CDGF
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
$ $
Net Assets attributable to holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the
beginning of the financial year 21,520,930 26,859,443
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 3,077,597 (4,455,433)
Capital transactions
Issue of redeemable shares during the financial year 3,961,024 6,619,308
Redemption of redeemable shares during the financial year (5,647,793) (7,502,388)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Shares at the end
of the financial year 22,911,758 21,520,930

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

151



GemCap Investment Funds (Ireland) Plc

Statement of Cash Flows

Causeway Defined Growth Fund

CDGF CDGF
31 Dec 2023 31 Dec 2022
$ $
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares from operations 3,077,597 (4,455,433)
Adjustment to reconcile increase/(decrease) in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations to net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Bond interest income (118,731) (130,010)
Dividends to holders of redeemable participating shares 247,710 223,172
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 3,206,576 (4,362,271)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Net (increase)/decrease in financial assets and liabilities at fair value (1,869,163) 3,843,654
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables (27,504) 184,534
Increase/(decrease) in payables 32,069 (181,384)
Cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 1,341,978 (515,467)
Interest received 128,180 125,033
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 1,470,158 (390,434)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 3,961,017 6,671,062
Payment on redemptions of redeemable participating shares (5,619,243) (7,502,388)
Dividends to holders of redeemable participating shares (247,710) (223,172)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,905,936) (1,054,498)
Net decrease in cash (435,778) (1,444,932)
Net Cash at the start of the financial year 950,901 2,395,833
Net Cash at the end of the financial year 515,123 950,901
Analysis of Cash
Cash at the start of the financial year 590,906 709,605
Cash held as collateral at the start of the financial year 1,590,473 1,690,000
Overdraft at the start of the financial year %) (3,772)
Collateral due to brokers at the start of the financial year (1,230,473) -
Cash at the end of the financial year 515,139 590,906
Cash held as collateral at the end of the financial year 3,106,411 1,590,473
Overdraft at the end of the financial year (16) (5)
Collateral due to brokers at the end of the financial year (3,106,411) (1,230,473)

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Schedule of Investments
As at 31°" December 2023

Causeway Defined Growth Fund

(expressed in USD) Acquisition Fair % net
Description Quantity  Currency cost Value assets
1) INVESTMENTS
A) TRANSFERABLE SECURITIES ADMITTED TO AN OFFICIAL STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
1) LISTED SECURITIES : BONDS
GREAT BRITAIN
United Kingdom Inflation-Linked Gilt 0.13%
10/08/2028 2,524,000 GBP 4,590,688 4,408,954  19.24
4,590,688 4,408,954  19.24
UNITED STATES (U.S.A))
United States Treasury Inflation Indexed
Bonds 0.13% 15/04/2025 2,000,000 USD 2,134,386 2,298